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HIGHLIGHTS

Paycom’s 40 percent 
revenue growth in 2014 

bested our organic, top-line 
compound annual growth 

rate of 38 percent from 
2010 through 2013.

PAYCOM IS DISRUPTING THE LARGE AND GROWING HCM TAM

Human Capital
Management

In 2015, the International Data Corporation 

estimates the Total Addressable Market (TAM) 

for HCM to be approximately $24 billion in 

the U.S., a market of which Paycom’s share 

currently represents approximately 1 percent.



  paycom
OVERVIEW
A leading provider of a comprehensive, cloud-based 
human capital management (HCM) software solution, 
Paycom delivers functionality and data analytics that 
businesses need to efficiently and effectively manage 
the complete employment life cycle, from recruitment to 
retirement. 

Designed for the cloud before the term “cloud” was even 
coined, our solution requires no integration, because its 
core system of record is maintained within a single data-
base. With Paycom, businesses avoid the laborious task 
of updating information across multiple databases—a 
distinct advantage over this common practice among 
third-party vendors that must link their HCM offerings. 

As a result, the Paycom solution maintains the highest 
level of data integrity, allowing companies to use it for 
actionable business intelligence with real-world, real-time 
analytics at executives’ fingertips.  

Paycom’s full application suite includes talent acquisition, 
time and labor management, payroll, talent management 
and human resource management. 

We remain dedicated to continuous innovation with 
quality applications and services that exceed the status 
quo. Our internal and proprietary development process is 
completely focused on the end user—from the frontline 
employee to the reporting and analytical requirements 
of the C-suite. By having a “finger on the pulse” of the 
industry and listening to user feedback, Paycom continues 
to improve and expand its innovative set of HCM tools to 
meet the ever-evolving needs of today’s employers.

For more information about Paycom and our applications, 
visit www.paycom.com.

Paycom’s full suite includes talent acquisition, time and 
labor management, payroll, talent management and 
human resource management.



Fellow stockholders,

For Paycom, 2014 was truly a momentous year. We 
embraced becoming a public company and continued to 
see all-time highs in the demand for our single-database 
human capital management solution. We continue to 
disrupt the large and growing HCM total addressable mar-
ket, which International Data Corporation estimates to be 
approximately $24 billion in the U.S. in 2015, a market of 
which Paycom’s share currently represents approximately 1 
percent. With this large addressable market, opportunities 
for our future growth are substantial.  

Technology
The story behind our 2014 performance is Paycom’s 
innovative technology. We continue to reap the ben-
efits of our initial investments in a single-database 
approach, which simplifies operation for our clients as 
well as internal software development as we expand 
our technology. Software-as-a-Service has been part of 
our DNA from the beginning. This unique positioning 
has given us a platform to make enhancements and 
add applications without having to integrate systems or 
patch together legacy codes. 

Investments in research and development keep Paycom at 
the forefront of innovation in the HCM industry, exempli-
fied by the releases of valuable features such as Paycom 
Surveys, Push Reporting and the ACA Dashboard during 
2014. We are proud of the releases of a robust set of new 
applications in 2014 that included Candidate Tracker, 
Schedule Exchange, and an enhanced Employee
Self-Service and mobile version of the solution.

As the breadth of our technology grows, so do our op-
portunities to sell additional applications to clients. We 
continue to see significant opportunities as we enrich 
existing tools and add new ones to enhance functional-
ity of our HCM solution.

Growth
We are a growth-driven organization. Paycom’s 40.3 
percent revenue growth in 2014 bested our organic, 
top-line compound annual growth rate of 38 percent 

from 2010 through 2013, highlighting our growing 
momentum in the marketplace. 

We continued our strong track record of opening 
offices with experienced sales management teams and 
penetrating new markets. In 2014, we launched sales 
offices in Baltimore, Indianapolis, Philadelphia, Portland 
and Silicon Valley. 

Paycom’s employee count reached 1,021 as of Decem-
ber 31, 2014, and while we grew revenue 40.3 percent 
in 2014 over the prior year, we only saw a 21.5 percent 
increase in our overall employee count. Our employees 
continue to be a driv-
ing factor behind our 
success. We believe 
that we are only as 
good as the collective 
dedication, energy 
and expertise of our 
people.

Commitment 
to Clients
Client satisfaction is 
central to our focus 
at Paycom. With that 
in mind, each and 
every client is assigned 
a dedicated Paycom 
Specialist to guide it 
and respond to any 
questions that may 
arise to maximize the 
client’s experience 
with our software. 
Our specialists re-
ceive superior training, becoming experts in all of our 
products with the ability to solve real-world business 
problems using Paycom applications. 

In 2014, every one of Paycom’s client-facing employees 
received either certification or recertification training 
in every application in our suite. This allows clients the 

Chad Richison
President, Chief Executive
Officer and Founder
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Chad Richison
Chief Executive Officer

convenience of a single point of contact, instead of 
being transferred and shuffled among departments, 
based on need. 

Based on our comprehensive training program, HR.com, 
the largest social network for human resource (HR) pro-
fessionals, ranked Paycom among the top medium-sized 
companies in its Leadership 500 Excellence Awards.  

Our unique on-boarding process for new clients signifi-
cantly differentiates us from the competition. To ease 
the burden associated with switching vendors, clients 
first are assigned a transition specialist representative 
(TSR), who helps set up their data. Then they receive a 
new client specialist representative (NCS), who remains 
with them for their first few months of processing with 
us. With our competitors, the burden of transition is 
placed heavily on the client, not the vendor. This onus 
not only can extend the transition timeline, but can 
compromise data integrity. By assuming the bulk of 
responsibility, we make transitioning to Paycom as sim-
ple and smooth as possible for our clients, and we are 
proud of this process.

Retention: A Key Indicator 
As a result of our client retention focus, we enjoyed an-
other year of serving highly satisfied clients, reflected in 
our 91 percent average annual revenue retention rate. 
Our average annual revenue retention rate for the two 
previous years was also 91 percent, demonstrating that 
our solution continues to be popular with and work for 
those who matter most: the businesses that rely on us, 
day in and day out.

Part of Paycom’s retention effort is focused on earning 
back clients who are lured to competitors; many return 
because the other providers sold them on promises that 
went unfulfilled. For example, a digital marketing agen-
cy left for a competitor that partners with third parties 
for their HCM offerings. The agency quickly returned 
to Paycom after realizing the new provider’s software 
proved to be far more labor-intensive and time-consum-
ing, and the level of customer service did not compare 
to what they were accustomed.

Outlook
Having celebrated our 16th year in business, we are 
enthusiastic about the opportunities that lay ahead as 
we believe the market potential for outsourced payroll 
and HCM remains in its early stages. As we see it, the 
popularity of HCM technology will continue to grow as 
today’s tech-savvy employees continue to demand ac-
cess to their own data and easy-to-use, mobile-friendly 
interfaces. Paycom is uniquely positioned to capitalize 
on this trend because of our proprietary software and 
single-database solution.

We continue to invest in generating new business, and 
will focus resources toward our sales force and our 
newly opened offices throughout 2015, as significant 
white space remains to address potential clients with 
our best in-class solution and as a result, we will contin-
ue to assess opening offices in the future.

Market demand for new applications remains strong 
and we will continue to build solid relationships with 
our clients by meeting this demand and addressing 
their greatest HCM needs. We will continue to lead our 
industry with technology that empowers the C-suite, 
HR and their employees. 

We have seen the beginning of the transition in which 
employees are now entering their own data and 
information, rather than HR personnel. Mobile access 
to HCM applications continues to grow as employees 
are more engaged with their employers through our 
Employee Self-Service application. We look forward to 
fostering a richer interaction between employees and 
their employers. 

Through our innovative technology, we are dedicated 
to meeting the ever-evolving needs of managing what 
matters most to employers: their people.
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LEADERSHIP TEAM

Craig BoelteStacey PezoldWilliam Kerber IIIJeffrey York



Craig Boelte
Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Boelte has served as Paycom’s Chief Financial Officer since February 2006, bringing more than 28 years 
of experience in various facets of the human resources and workforce management field. Before joining the 
company, Mr. Boelte owned an accounting practice that served Paycom. Prior to that, Mr. Boelte spent nine 
years at Deloitte & Touche, where he served as senior tax manager. A member of the Oklahoma Society of 
CPAs and the American Institute of CPAs, he received both his bachelor of science in business administration 
and master of accounting degrees from Oklahoma State University.  

Jeffrey York 
Chief Sales Officer
Mr. York has served as Paycom’s Chief Sales Officer since 2007, having opened the company’s Dallas location 
in 2002 before joining the corporate executive team. He came to Paycom after 12 years at ADP, where he 
held a variety of sales management positions, including vice president of sales for the major accounts division. 
Mr. York earned his MBA from Baylor University and his bachelor’s degree in business administration from 
Texas Tech University. 

William Kerber III
Chief Information Officer
Mr. Kerber has served as Paycom’s Chief Information Officer since July 2007 and has been with the company 
since 1999. Mr. Kerber is a founding team member, bringing more than 18 years of software development 
and network design experience. Prior to this role, he served as a lead software developer and network 
architect. He attended the Oklahoma School of Science and Mathematics and received his bachelor’s degree 
in computer science from the University of Oklahoma’s engineering/computer science program, where he is 
currently a member of its board of advisors. 

Stacey Pezold
Chief Operating Officer
Mrs. Pezold has served as Paycom’s Chief Operating Officer since March 2015 and previously served as 
Paycom’s Executive Vice President of Operations from September 2012 to March 2015 after joining Paycom 
in 2005. In the last eight years, Mrs. Pezold has served as Paycom’s Executive Vice President, Director 
of Corporate Training and Regional Manager. Mrs. Pezold has over 11 years of leadership and training 
experience. Mrs. Pezold earned her bachelor’s degree from Oklahoma State University.

Chad Richison
President, Chief Executive Officer and Founder
Mr. Richison has served as President and Chief Executive Officer since founding Paycom in 1998. He 
has also served as a director of the company since 1998. Mr. Richison began his career in sales with 
a national payroll and human resources company and a regional payroll company prior to founding 
Paycom. Mr. Richison received his bachelor’s degree in mass communications journalism from the 
University of Central Oklahoma.
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APPLICATIONS

ACA Dashboard 
Paycom, which previously offered ACA reporting data through its single-database 
solution, released its ACA Dashboard, allowing employers to gather employee count, 
employee status, health care plan affordability and monitor ACA period information 
quickly and accurately. In addition, the ACA Dashboard can be autopopulated with an 

employer’s existing data, which then can be autopopulated into the required IRS forms under Sections 
6055 and 6056, including the Forms 1094 and 1095.

Enhanced Employee Self-Service Features
During the first quarter, Paycom completed its Employee Self-Service redesign, which 
included responsive coding that dynamically adapts to any size of screen that the 
employee may be using. Clients utilizing Employee Self-Service now have the ability to 

choose their preferred color format, as well as upload their company logo. This customizable feature 
accompanied a new look with the main-menu navigation visible everywhere, allowing employees to 
jump easily from one section of the application to another.

Push Reporting
Paycom redefined the reporting process for employers with the release of its Push 
Reporting, a new capability that increases the quality, speed and efficiency in which HR 
executives can populate, produce and analyze employee-data reports. Users have the 
ability to create fully customized reports that can be scheduled for automatic delivery to 

various departments as needed and can be autopopulated based on preferred frequency: daily, weekly, 
monthly, quarterly or annually.

Mobile
Paycom’s enhanced mobile version allows for easy and automatic resizing of the 
application on any device, making it easier to run payroll, edit and approve time cards, 
and make employee changes on the go from any location.

Paycom’s application offerings and enhancements are key differentiators from the competition. In 2014, our 
technology underwent numerous application updates, with each rigorously tested before release and pushed 
to clients without any downtime. These created greater value and expanded Paycom’s portfolio. Unrivaled in 
the industry, Paycom continues monthly development releases, all of which are communicated to clients. 

New applications or features for 2014 included:



Paycom Surveys
With Paycom Surveys, employers now gain useful information and insight into their 
workforce that otherwise may have remained undisclosed, adding another data point 
to the complete employment life cycle. The solution can be used in conjunction with 
Paycom’s deep analytics and reporting tools to gain valuable knowledge regarding 

manager performance, employee onboarding and departure trends.

Schedule Exchange
Boasting a clickable calendar and customizable colors, the flexible and functional 
Schedule Exchange tool takes the trouble out of a time-consuming task: scheduling 
employees. Managers can allocate shifts on a day-to-day basis, batch-assign shifts 

to multiple employees and get an instant, big-picture view of employee availability. Assigned shifts 
automatically display on time cards as well as in the Employee Self-Service portal, where co-workers are 
empowered to swap shifts with one another, or issue requests for a shift to be picked up.

Candidate Tracker
Candidate Tracker allows recruiters and hiring managers to keep close tabs on potential 
employees. Candidate Tracker was designed to manage individuals who have not yet 
applied. Recruiters can “claim” candidates and make notes as the tool assembles a 
contact history searchable by school, degree, skill set, previous employer, ZIP code, follow-

up date and more. This feature also measures return on investment of recruiting events to reveal where 
an employer’s money is best spent for networking with prospects.

Employee Directory
The Employee Directory allows users to view important employee information, such as 
phone numbers, addresses, email addresses, birth dates and more, all from the user’s 
preferred format.

Multi-Client Code Development
Larger clients and enterprise companies with employees spread across separate business 
entities and tax identification numbers find this development to be particularly useful, as it 
allows them to seamlessly move a transferring employee’s information while maintaining 

the integrity of the tax and compliance reporting chain.



During 2014, Paycom continued to attract 
larger clients with sizeable head counts, 
representing an opportunity to increase its 
revenue per client while limiting incremental 
costs.

One new client win includes a restaurant 
group with more than 6,000 employees. This 
client joined Paycom after using a provider 
that claimed to have a single application, yet 
could not meet the customer’s standards. 
With nine applications enabled through 
Paycom, this client exemplifies the strength 
of utilizing a full HCM application suite in a 
single-database solution.  

Another new client was a health care provid-
er with roughly 3,700 employees. The client 
switched to Paycom after using a variety of 
vendors for payroll, time and attendance, 
and benefits administration. They chose Pay-
com because of our superior ACA reporting 
abilities, as well as the attractive option of 
combining all of these functions under one 
provider.

Lastly, we signed a parking-solution provid-
er with nearly 2,000 employees, converting 
them from one of our largest competitors. 
This client had been maintaining five sep-
arate systems, which resulted in issues of 
disparate data. The company executives were 
excited to switch to Paycom, as they were 
looking for an innovative partner that could 
grow alongside them.

  paycom
CLIENT WINS
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PART I

SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A
of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”) and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). Forward-looking statements are any statements that look to future
events and consist of, among other things, statements regarding our business strategy; anticipated future
operating results and operating expenses; our ability to attract new clients to purchase our solution; our ability
to retain clients and induce them to purchase additional applications; our ability to increase the number of sales
personnel or sales teams; our ability to accurately forecast future revenues and appropriately plan our expenses;
market acceptance of our solution and applications; alternate ways of addressing human capital management
(“HCM”) needs or new technologies generally by us and our competitors; continued acceptance of Software –
as-a-Service (“SaaS”) as an effective method for delivering HCM solutions and other business management
applications; the attraction and retention of qualified employees and key personnel; our ability to protect and
defend our intellectual property; costs associated with defending intellectual property infringement and other
claims; events in the markets for our solution and alternatives to our solution, as well as in the United States and
global markets generally; future regulatory, judicial and legislative changes in our industry; and changes in the
competitive environment in our industry and the markets in which we operate. In addition, forward-looking
statements also consist of statements involving trend analyses and statements including such words as “may,”
“believe,” “could,” “anticipate,” “would,” “might,” “plan,” “expect,” and similar expressions or the negative
of such terms or other comparable terminology. These forward-looking statements speak only as of the date of
this Annual Report on Form 10-K and are subject to business and economic risks. As such, our actual results
could differ materially from those set forth in the forward-looking statements as a result of the factors set forth
below in Part I, Item 1A, “Risk Factors,” and in our other reports filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “SEC”). We do not undertake any obligation to update or revise the forward-looking
statements to reflect events that occur or circumstances that exist after the date on which such statements were
made, except to the extent required by law.

Item 1. Business

Unless we state otherwise or the context otherwise requires, the terms “Paycom,” “we,” “us,” “our” and
the “Company” refer, prior to the 2014 Reorganization discussed in Part II, Item 7, “Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Recent Developments—The 2014
Reorganization,” to Paycom Payroll Holdings, LLC (“Holdings”), Holdings’ consolidated subsidiaries and
solely with respect to the financial statements and related notes thereto, WCAS Paycom Holdings, Inc. (“WCAS
Holdings”), and, as of and after the 2014 Reorganization, to Paycom Software, Inc. (“Software”), a Delaware
corporation formed in anticipation of our initial public offering, and Software’s consolidated subsidiaries,
including Holdings. Accordingly, all financial and other information herein relating to periods prior to the 2014
Reorganization is that of, or derived from, Holdings. For additional information concerning the 2014
Reorganization, see Part II, Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Operations—Recent Developments—The 2014 “Reorganization,” which description is hereby incorporated by
reference.

Overview

We are a leading provider of a comprehensive, cloud-based HCM software solution delivered as SaaS. We
provide functionality and data analytics that businesses need to manage the complete employment life cycle from
recruitment to retirement. Our solution requires virtually no customization and is based on a core system of
record maintained in a single database for all HCM functions, including talent acquisition, time and labor
management, payroll, talent management and human resources (“HR”) management applications. Our user-
friendly software allows for easy adoption of our solution by employees, enabling self-management of their
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HCM activities in the cloud, which reduces the administrative burden on employers and increases employee
productivity.

Organizations need sophisticated, flexible and intuitive applications that can quickly adapt to their evolving
HCM requirements, streamline their HR processes and systems and enable them to control costs. We believe that
the HCM needs of most organizations are currently served either by legacy providers offering outdated on-
premise products or multiple providers that partner together in an attempt to replicate a comprehensive product.
These approaches often result in large up-front capital requirements, extended delivery times, high costs, low
scalability and challenges with system integration.

Because our solution was developed in-house and is based on a single platform, there is no need to integrate,
update or access multiple databases, which are common issues with competitor offerings that use multiple third-
party systems in order to link together their HCM offerings. Additionally, our solution maintains data integrity
for accurate, actionable and real-time analytics and business intelligence and helps clients minimize the risk of
compliance errors due to inaccurate or missing information. We deliver feature-rich applications while
maintaining excellence in information security and quality management standards as evidenced by our
International Organization for Standardization (“ISO”) certifications. As part of our client retention effort, a
specialist within a dedicated team is assigned to each client to provide industry-leading personalized service.

The key benefits of our differentiated solution as compared to competing products include:

• Comprehensive HCM solution. Our solution offers functionality that manages the entire employment
life cycle for employers and employees, from recruitment to retirement. Our user-friendly applications
help clients identify candidates, onboard employees, manage time and labor, administer payroll
deductions and benefits, manage performance, off board employees and administer post-termination
health benefits such as COBRA. Our solution also has the advantage of being built in-house by our
highly trained and skilled team of software developers;

• Core system of record enabling data analytics maintained on a single database. Our solution is based
on a core system of record that contains payroll and HR information in one convenient database,
thereby reducing costs by eliminating the need for multiple software products and vendors and the
maintenance of employee data in numerous databases that have to be merged or synchronized. This
core system of record allows our clients the ability to access and analyze accurate employee
information to make business decisions based upon actionable, real-time, point-and-click analytics
provided on our client dashboard;

• Personalized support provided by trained personnel. Our solution is supported by one-on-one personal
assistance from trained specialists. Services specialists are assigned to specific clients and are trained
across all of our applications, ensuring they provide comprehensive, expert-level service;

• Software-as-a-Service delivery model. Our SaaS delivery model allows clients with a geographically
dispersed workforce to operate more efficiently and allows these clients to access and use our client-
oriented Internet solution on demand and remotely through a standard web browser, smart phones,
tablets and other web-enabled devices, which lowers the total cost of ownership as compared to on-
premise products;

• Cloud-based architecture. Our cloud-based architecture allows our solution to be implemented
remotely and software enhancements and newly developed applications to be deployed without client
disruption and involvement, which requires smaller investments in hardware, personnel,
implementation time and consulting; and

• Scalability to grow with our clients. Our solution offers improved scalability as our clients are able to
use the same solution as their businesses grow by deploying applications as-needed in real-time, which
allows clients to align HCM spending with evolving HCM needs as compared to traditional HCM
products that require clients to migrate to new software as they grow, but retain fixed costs even if the
client shrinks in size.
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We sell our solution directly through our internally trained, client-focused and highly skilled sales force
based in offices across the United States. As a part of our client retention effort, a specialist within a dedicated
team is assigned to each client to provide industry-leading, personalized service. We have over 12,000 clients,
none of which constituted more than one-half of one percent of our revenues for the year ended December 31,
2014. We believe that as a result of our focus on client retention, we enjoy high client satisfaction as evidenced
by an average annual revenue retention rate of 91% from existing clients for the three years ended December 31,
2014. We believe our revenue retention rate understates our client loyalty because this rate also includes former
clients that were acquired or otherwise ceased operations.

We were founded in 1998. Since our founding, we have focused on providing an innovative SaaS HCM
solution. As of December 31, 2014, we had 1,021 employees across the United States. For the years ended
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, our revenues were $150.9 million $107.6 million and $76.8 million,
respectively, representing year-over-year growth in revenues of approximately 40% and 40%, respectively. We
currently derive the majority of our revenues from payroll processing. We are able to determine revenues from
payroll processing because all of our clients are required to utilize our payroll application in order to access our
other applications. We do not separately track our revenues across our other applications because we often sell
applications in various groupings and configurations for a single price. We realized net income (loss) of $5.7
million, $0.6 million and ($0.4) million for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Industry Background

Large Market Opportunity for HCM Technologies

According to the International Data Corporation (“IDC”), the U.S. market for HCM applications is
comprised of software that automates business processes covering the entire span of an employee’s relationship
with his or her employer. IDC estimates that the U.S. market, excluding payroll services, will total $7.0 billion in
2015. These applications include maintenance of HR records, recruiting applications, performance management,
time and labor management tracking, compliance, compensation management and other HR functions. According
to IDC, the U.S. market for payroll services will be an estimated $16.8 billion in 2015. The payroll services
market includes transactional activities associated with paying employees, maintaining accounting records and
administrating payroll taxes while payroll accounting applications offer the functionality to effectively track
these various payments and transfers.

IDC estimates that the international market for HCM applications (excluding the United States and payroll
services) will be $5.2 billion in 2015.

Economic and Technological Trends Are Driving Demand for HCM Solutions

Organizations operating in today’s global economy are continually under pressure to reduce operating costs
in order to maintain or improve their competitive positions. One tactic used by organizations is to utilize
information technology (“IT”), provided by external resources in order to automate internal processes, reduce
internal administrative burdens and more effectively manage capital expenditures and labor costs. As a result,
businesses are increasingly making the strategic decision to leverage HCM technologies in order to improve the
effectiveness and efficiency of their internal HR and accounting functions and capture opportunities for cost
savings.

Organizations are also managing internal costs and administrative burdens by transitioning technological
assets from on-premise to the cloud. By shifting HR systems to the cloud, businesses seek to avoid the
difficulties associated with maintaining software and security updates, and storage needs as well as other
maintenance issues. The rise of cloud computing has supported the SaaS delivery model. According to IDC, the
global SaaS market is projected to grow from $39 billion in 2013 to $103 billion in 2018, at a compound annual
growth rate (“CAGR”) of 21%.

We believe that businesses increasingly view data concerning their human capital as a critical strategic
resource that can result in more informed decision-making concerning employee recruitment, retention and
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compensation. This revolution in data analytics and its extension to HR functions has increased the number of
employees within an organization that can benefit from, and who regularly interface with, information
technologies. As a result, organizations seek intuitive technologies that do not require extensive training or
advanced technological credentials to be effectively utilized. The user experience of business applications is
changing to emulate the consumer experience as HR buyers increasingly seek applications that are intuitive and
available anywhere on any web-enabled device.

Incumbent HCM Products Struggle To Meet the Needs of Businesses

We believe that a majority of businesses and organizations in the United States are using multiple HCM
systems from more than one vendor, thereby impeding their ability to share data across these systems. Several
incumbent payroll and HCM vendors offer product sets that are comprised of separate systems that require
integration. In certain cases, this disparate product offering across several vendors is the result of several
acquisitions which often leads to a loosely coupled product set that is marked by significant architectural
differences and weak data integration. We believe that this type of offering increases the risk of user or system
error and reduces overall effectiveness.

A comprehensive HCM solution leverages the same data, process and workflow management, security
model, reporting and analytics tools, and user portals to provide a uniform user experience. We believe that
significant analytical power remains trapped within the data that organizations are accessing across multiple
applications and databases but are unable to analyze in a unified context.

We believe that vendors who pursue market segmentation strategies based on organization size or industry
create difficulties for clients who grow, either in size or industry scope, beyond the confines of those vendors’
offerings. A scalable HCM solution based on a core system of record allows for an organization to grow in size
and scope without transitioning to a new user interface or back-end database.

The Paycom Solution

We offer an end-to-end SaaS HCM solution that provides our clients and their employees with immediate
access to accurate and secure information and analytics 24 hours a day, seven days a week from any location. We
believe that our solution delivers the following benefits:

Comprehensive HCM Solution

Our solution offers functionality that manages the entire employment life cycle for employers and
employees, from recruitment to retirement. Our user-friendly applications streamline client processes and provide
clients and their employees with the ability to directly access and manage administrative processes, including
applications that identify candidates, onboard employees, manage time and labor, administer payroll deductions
and benefits, manage performance, off board employees and administer post-termination health benefits such as
COBRA. The widespread employee usage of our applications helps further integrate our solution into the
administrative processes of our clients. Our solution also has the advantage of being built in-house by our highly
trained and skilled team of software developers, thereby minimizing data integrity issues across applications.

Core System of Record

Our solution is based on a core system of record that contains payroll and HR information in one convenient
database, thereby reducing costs and eliminating the need for multiple software products and vendors and the
maintenance of employee data in numerous databases. This core system of record enables our clients to input
employee data one time and enjoy seamless functionality across our applications. When a revision is made to the
file of an employee, all appropriate personnel have access to the change in real time. In addition, our core system
of record helps clients minimize the risk of compliance errors due to inaccurate or missing information that
results from maintaining multiple databases. Through accurate tracking and management of employee payroll
and other HR data, such information can be compiled for comprehensive and consistent reporting for our clients.
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Data Analytics

Our solution allows clients to analyze accurate employee information to make business decisions based
upon actionable, real-time, point-and-click analytics provided through our client dashboard. This functionality
helps our clients operate with a more complete and accurate picture of their organization as our solution’s
embedded analytics capture the content and context of everyday business events, facilitating fast and informed
decision-making from any location. The employees of our clients also benefit from our analytics platform as they
are able to model in real-time the impact of their HCM decisions on their compensation, benefits and rewards.

Personalized Support Provided by Trained Personnel

Our applications are supported by one-on-one personal assistance from trained specialists. Services
specialists are assigned to specific clients and are trained across all of our applications, ensuring they provide
comprehensive, expert- level service. Our client service is ISO 9001:2008 certified on the basis of its quality and
consistency. We strive to provide our clients with high levels of service and support to ensure their continued use
of our solution for all of their HCM needs. We have maintained high client satisfaction, as evidenced by an
average annual revenue retention rate of 91% from existing clients for the three years ended December 31, 2014.

Software-as-a-Service Delivery Model

Our SaaS delivery model allows clients with a geographically dispersed and mobile workforce to operate
more efficiently, and allows these clients to implement, access and use our client-oriented Internet solution on
demand and remotely through standard web browsers, smart phones, tablets and other web-enabled devices. Our
SaaS solution reduces the time, risk, headcount and costs associated with installing and maintaining applications
for on-premise products within the information technology infrastructure of our clients.

Secure Cloud-Based Architecture

Our cloud-based architecture allows our solution to be implemented remotely with minimal client
interaction. Updates such as software enhancements and newly developed applications can be deployed without
client interaction, disruption or involvement, allowing our clients to make a smaller investment in hardware,
personnel, implementation time and consulting. Additionally, we own and maintain all of the infrastructure
technology to host our solution and to maximize system availability for clients. Our focus and investment in
technology and data security has been recognized with ISO/IEC 27001:2005 certified security standards that
provide our clients with a “best-in-class” level of data security.

Scalability to Grow with our Clients

Our solution is highly scalable. We have served a diversified client base ranging in size from one to more
than 8,000 employees. We calculate the number of clients’ employees based on parent company grouping. Our
clients are able to use the same solution while their businesses grow by deploying applications as-needed in real-
time. Pricing is determined by employee headcount and the number of applications utilized, enabling our clients
to align HCM spending with their evolving HCM needs as compared to traditional HCM products that require
clients to migrate to new software as they grow but retain fixed costs even if the client shrinks in size.

Efficient and Productive Research and Development

We believe that we benefit from a competitive advantage with our research and development investments,
people and processes. Early investments in our proprietary, cloud-based architecture enables us to develop and
deploy applications in a timely and cost-efficient manner. We have also chosen to base our research and
development team in Oklahoma and Texas, which we believe provides us with high-quality talent at a lower cost
compared to other locations in the United States with a need for technology talent. These strategic decisions have
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enabled us to have a highly productive research and development function while our research and development
expenses grew 102%, 31% and 33% from the comparable year period, for 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Our Strategy for Growth

Our strategy is to continue to establish our solution as the HCM industry standard. To accomplish this, we
intend to:

Increase Our Presence in Existing Markets

Although we have clients in all 50 states, we believe a significant opportunity exists to expand our presence
within markets where we currently have a sales office. We have a sales office in 29 of the 50 largest metropolitan
statistical areas (“MSAs”) in the United States based on 2010 U.S. census data, only one of which is served by
multiple sales teams. We believe that the 50 largest MSAs in the United States could collectively support at least
100 additional sales teams. Each sales office is typically staffed with one sales team, with each team comprised
of a sales manager and approximately six to nine other sales professionals. We plan to increase our presence in
existing markets by adding sales offices and increasing the number of our sales teams to further penetrate and
effectively capture these markets.

Expand Into Additional Markets

We plan to continue expanding our sales capability by opening sales offices in certain metropolitan areas
where we currently have no sales teams. We have identified 50 untapped metropolitan areas where we could
potentially open a new sales office staffed with at least one sales team. Since September 2012, we have opened
sales offices in Baltimore, Brooklyn, Cincinnati, Detroit, Indianapolis, Kansas City, Minneapolis, Nashville, New
York, Philadelphia, Pittsburgh, Portland, San Francisco, Seattle and Silicon Valley. We intend to open eight to
twelve additional offices over the next two years, as well as potentially expand over the longer term into
international markets.

Enlarge our Existing Client Relationships

We dedicate our resources to helping our clients facilitate their goals, whether through helping them execute
better hiring decisions, manage compensation more effectively or simply operate more efficiently. We believe a
significant growth opportunity exists in selling additional applications to our current clients. Many clients have
subsequently deployed additional applications as they recognize the benefits of our comprehensive solution. As
we extend and enhance the functionality of our solution, we will continue to invest in initiatives to increase the
adoption of our solution and maintain our high levels of client satisfaction.

Target Larger Clients

As we have organically grown our operations and increased the number of our applications, the average size
of our clients has also grown significantly. Based on our total revenues, we have grown at an approximately 38%
CAGR from January 1, 2009 through December 31, 2014. Our solution requires no adjustment to serve larger
clients. We believe larger employers represent a substantial opportunity to increase the number of clients and to
increase our revenue per client, with limited incremental cost to us. To further capitalize on this opportunity, we
intend to target larger businesses opportunistically where our current sales model is effective.

Maintain Our Leadership in Innovation by Strengthening and Extending our Solution

Our ability to develop and deploy new applications and updates rapidly and cost-effectively has been
integral to the results that we have achieved to date. We intend to continue extending the functionality and range
of our solution in the future. Our development efforts are performed exclusively in-house and are heavily based
upon proactive research and client input. In the near-term, we intend to focus our investments on further
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developing applications within our higher margin HR and talent management applications. Over the long term,
we intend to increase our investment in the development of new applications that are responsive to the needs of
our clients, which are garnered through ongoing client interaction and collaboration.

Our Applications

Our HCM solution offers a full suite of applications that generally fall within the following categories:
talent acquisition, time and labor management, payroll, talent management and HR management.

Talent Acquisition

Applicant Tracking. Our applicant tracking application simplifies the recruiting processes needed
to hire the most qualified employees. By using our all-in-one system, our clients can move
candidates from the application process through new employee on-boarding without re-keying
data.

Candidate Tracker. Our candidate tracker application enables recruiters to track and stay
connected to potential talent through an online database of top candidates. This application helps
clients fill future positions faster without the cost of professional recruiting firms.

Background Checks. Our background check application helps to ensure that prospective new hires
are qualified candidates. We provide clients with the tools for authorizing background checks,
creating pre-adverse and adverse action letters and securely storing results as required by the Fair
Credit Reporting Act.

On-Boarding. Our on-boarding application streamlines the hiring and termination processes for
employees of our clients by creating online checklists of tasks to be assigned to an employee or
group of employees.

E-Verify®. Our E-Verify® application automates employment verification and reduces our clients’
exposure to audits and penalties that could result from I-9 violations.

Tax Credit Services. Our tax credit services application helps employers process and calculate the
available federal tax credits associated with hiring employees who meet various qualifications.

Time and Labor Management

Time and Attendance. Our time and attendance application allows our clients to accurately and
efficiently manage when, where and how employees report their hours worked. Clients can apply
customized rules, use batch editing and use timecard management tools to manage complex time
and attendance needs. Our web time clocks feature allows employees to clock in and out online,
which automatically updates the payroll application when approved, eliminating the need to
manually calculate timesheets and rekey information into payroll systems. We also offer several
different types of hardware terminals that are ideal for single or multi-clock environments.

Scheduling/Schedule Exchange. Our scheduling application helps managers with employee
scheduling through automated functionality that provides for a seamless workflow with the
payroll and time and attendance applications. Our schedule exchange application allows
employees and managers access to their schedules at any time and employees can approve, decline
or swap their schedules and see what shifts are available for pickup.
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Time-Off Requests. Our time-off requests application automates and standardizes the time off
request procedure and helps employers remain effectively staffed. Managers can view an online
time-off calendar to easily monitor and approve or deny time-off requests. Our employee self-
service tool allows employees to view the time-off they have available, submit requests and view
blackout dates, the status of requests and any manager comments.

Labor Allocation. Our labor allocation application simplifies the process of setting up and tracking
employee hours based on the job the employee is working.

Labor Management Reports/Push Reporting. Our labor management reports application helps
clients get up-to-the-minute reports on the information they need to better manage their labor
force, such as overtime and labor distribution. Our push reporting application also gives clients the
ability to set up recurring reports and to schedule them to be run automatically and sent to users on
either a daily, weekly, monthly, quarterly or yearly basis.

Payroll

Payroll and Tax Management. Our payroll application is the foundation of our solution and all of
our clients are required to utilize this application in order to access our other applications. Our
payroll application is automatically updated with changes in employee information and offers other
time saving functionality such as batch editing and effective dating. The application can be
accessed at any time to make changes, run payroll and generate custom reports. We also help our
clients by handling their payroll taxes and deposits, regulatory correspondence, amendments, and
penalty and interest disputes.

Paycom Pay. Our Paycom Pay application eliminates the tedious job of check reconciliation by
issuing checks to our clients’ employees that clear from a Paycom bank account, which helps
clients eliminate potential liability and simplifies the reconciliation process.

Expense Management. Our expense management application eliminates the manual, paper-based
processes associated with employee expense reimbursement and allows employers to control and
monitor expenses by setting clearly defined rules and parameters for employee reimbursement.
Employees can upload receipts when submitting their expenses and access an expense dashboard
where they can view the status of their submitted expenses.

Garnishment Management. Our garnishment management application allows us to handle
communications with garnishment payees and agencies and to calculate and track garnishment
payments.

Talent Management

Employee Self-Service. Our employee self-service application improves employee engagement by
empowering our clients’ employees to self-manage certain transactions, obtain quick answers to
frequent payroll and HR questions, access their pay history and view performance goals and
reviews and total compensation reports to review their compensation and benefits package.
Benefits information and paid time off accruals also give employees the ability to make informed
decisions regarding their benefit selections and time-off requests.

Compensation Budgeting. Our compensation budgeting application provides compensation and
performance information in one system, giving clients with valuable workforce insight to help
manage and formulate salary budgets and helping establish merit-based compensation increases.
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Performance Management. Our performance management application allows for standardized
positions across a company with set pay grades and performance goals. It also helps streamline the
performance review process with online facilitation of the review process.

Executive Dashboard. Our executive dashboard offers powerful workforce insight for executives
to access information on demand in a variety of report formats. Because we offer an all-in-one
solution in a single database, the comprehensive report data provides the workforce intelligence
needed to drive human capital decisions at an executive level.

Paycom Learning. Our learning management application formalizes and standardizes our clients’
training processes. Employers can create customized content utilizing videos, presentations,
quizzes and surveys. It provides our clients’ employees “anytime, anywhere” access to a central
knowledge base where the employee can access content, share expertise and measure his or her
professional development progress. Our clients can track the activity and success of their training
programs with pre-defined reports and an analytics dashboard.

HR Management

Document and Task Management. Our document and task management application manages
employee files, including the ability to have employees digitally sign and view company
documents. We securely store client records to meet retention requirements and protect documents
from unauthorized access and other disasters that can threaten businesses. In addition, clients can
assign checklists to employees for the completion of certain tasks associated with processes such
as on-boarding and off-boarding.

Government and Compliance. Our government and compliance application helps clients reduce
exposure to violations, audits and penalties with respect to the employment laws impacting their
business, such as the Family Medical Leave Act, Equal Employment Opportunity Commission
and other state and federal regulations. A single database keeps our clients’ employee data
consistent and enhances reporting capabilities by providing better accuracy and real-time insight.

Benefits Administration/Benefits to Carrier. Our benefits administration application allows clients
to customize benefit plan setup, deduction amounts, enrollment dates and new-hire waiting
periods. Employers are provided census and reconciliation reports to ensure they do not overpay
for benefits, can update deduction amounts for all employees or groups of employees at once and
automatically updates all insurance carriers for any changes. This application also provides
employees with online enrollment and helps educate them and drive informed enrollment
decisions for greater employee satisfaction.

COBRA Administration. Our COBRA administration application protects employers from
COBRA violations and their associated fines and penalties by automatically initiating compliance
measures with the entry of qualifying events into the application. This application also tracks
important dates, collects and remits premiums and reports on all COBRA activity.

Personnel Action Forms. Our personnel action forms application helps our clients reduce the
amount of time and paperwork required with employee changes such as pay rate, position and title
changes by allowing managers to complete and approve online personnel action forms.

Surveys. Our surveys application allows clients to create employee surveys to help identify and
resolve workplace matters that otherwise may remain undisclosed. Clients can analyze results by
the demographics of the workforce and compare how results change over time.
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ACA Dashboard. Our Affordable Care Act (“ACA”) dashboard application tracks employee
count, employee status, health care plan affordability and ACA periods all in one convenient
location and enables Paycom to file Forms 1094 and 1095 on behalf of clients. For those with
Paycom’s full ACA application suite that includes payroll, time and attendance, benefits
administration and document and task management, the dashboard populates automatically.

Our Clients

We serve a diverse client base in terms of size and industry. We have over 12,000 clients, or nearly 8,000
clients based on parent company grouping, none of which constituted more than one-half of one percent of our
revenues for the year ended December 31, 2014. We stored data for more than 1.6 million persons employed by
our clients during the year ended December 31, 2014.

Many of our clients that are small to mid-sized companies can typically make the decision to adopt our
solution more quickly than larger companies, which we believe results in a shorter sales cycle, which more
closely corresponds to our target sales cycle of 30 to 90 days. As a result of the nature and size of our clientele,
we maintain a diversified client base and very low revenue concentration among our clients. We believe,
however, that larger employers represent a substantial opportunity to increase the number of clients and to
increase our revenue per client with limited incremental cost.

Competition

The market for HCM solutions is rapidly evolving, highly competitive and subject to changing technology,
shifting client needs and frequent introduction of new products and services. Our competitors range from small,
regional firms to large, well-established international firms with multiple product offerings.

We compete with firms that provide HCM solutions by various means. Many providers continue to deliver
legacy enterprise software, but as demand for greater flexibility and access to information grows, we believe
there will be increased competition in the delivery of HCM cloud-based solutions by other SaaS providers. Our
competitors offer HCM solutions that may overlap with one, several or all categories of applications offered by
our solution. Our talent acquisition and talent management applications compete primarily with Cornerstone
OnDemand, Inc., Oracle Corporation, SAP AG and Workday, Inc. Our payroll applications, including payroll
processing, compete primarily with Automatic Data Processing, Inc. (“ADP”), Ceridian Corporation, Concur
Technologies, Inc., Intuit, Inc., Paychex, Inc., Paylocity Holding Corporation and The Ultimate Software Group,
Inc. Our HR management applications compete primarily with ADP, Ceridian Corporation, Oracle Corporation,
Paychex, Inc., SAP AG, and Workday, Inc. Our time and labor management applications compete primarily with
ADP, Ceridian Corporation, Paylocity Holding Corporation and The Ultimate Software Group, Inc. Our larger
competitors compete with us across multiple segments. In addition, our HCM solution continues to face
competition from in-house payroll and HR systems and departments as well as HR systems and software sold by
third-party vendors.

Competition in the HCM solutions market is primarily based on service responsiveness, product quality and
reputation, breadth of service and application offering and price. The importance of these factors depends on the
size of the business. Price tends to be the most important factor of competition for smaller businesses with fewer
employees while the scope of features and customization is more important to larger businesses. We believe that
our SaaS delivery model allows us to be most competitive in the HCM solutions market across this spectrum.

Sales and Marketing

We sell our solution exclusively through our sales force, substantially all of whom have a four-year college
degree. Our sales force is comprised of inside sales and field sales personnel who are organized geographically and
client relations representatives (“CRRs”), who sell additional applications to existing clients. We have 34 sales teams
located in 23 states and plan to open additional sales offices to further expand our presence in the U.S. market.

10



We provide our sales force with an intensive four-week training course that includes at least one week of
training at our headquarters in Oklahoma City. Our unique training program includes instruction in accounting,
business metrics, application features and tax matters relevant to our target market. Our training continues for our
sales force through weekly in-office strategy sessions and leadership development training. Executive sales
representatives are also required to attend in-person quarterly conferences to share best practices and receive
legal and business updates.

When a new client processes with us for an entire month, our sales representative receives a commission
based upon annualized new recurring revenue. This commission is only paid once per new customer. Executive
sales representatives receive a higher commission rate and base salary based upon both current year and life-to-
date realized sales, respectively.

We generate client leads, accelerate sales opportunities and build brand awareness through our marketing
programs that target finance and HR executives, technology professionals and senior business leaders of
companies that perform HCM functions in-house or outsource these functions to one of our competitors. Our
principal marketing programs include:

• Direct mail campaigns, email campaigns, personalized URLs, industry-specific print advertising and
tradeshow exhibiting;

• Search engine marketing methods that include site optimization and pay-per-click searches; and

• National radio advertising on Sirius/XM Radio and specifically on the Fox News, Fox Talk,
Bloomberg and MSNBC stations.

Our CRRs are focused on expanding the number of applications our clients purchase from us by introducing
them to additional applications. Our CRRs call upon select clients periodically and are paid a non-recurring
commission on any additional sales they generate.

Technology, Operations and Security

Technology

Our multi-tenant architecture enables us to deliver our solution across our client base with a single instance
of our solution, while securely partitioning access to our clients’ respective application data. Because a single
version of our solution is developed, supported and deployed across all of our clients, updates are delivered to all
of our clients at the same time, making it easier to scale our solution as the number of our clients and their
employee headcount increases.

We maintain diverse load-balanced Internet lines serviced by multiple networks to provide our clients
continuous access to our solution and their stored data. We back up our client data at regular intervals utilizing
live replication, snapshots and cold archive methods of backup and manually monitor backup success and failure
regularly. Our server cluster and database servers have redundant “hot swappable” disks to ensure continuous
service in the event of a disk failure.

Operations

We physically host our solution for our clients in two secure data center facilities located in Oklahoma and
Texas. All of our critical systems are fully redundant and backed-up in real-time to these facilities. Physical
security includes ID-oriented access control, alarm systems and manned 24 hour a day camera monitoring by our
security guards. Server facilities also have environmental monitoring and extensive environmental controls such
as heat and fire protection, moisture, temperature, and humidity sensors, backup power supply and exterior
reinforced concrete walls.
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Security

We maintain a formal and comprehensive security program designed to ensure the confidentiality, integrity
and availability of our clients’ data. During the regular course of business, we receive client data through our
online system that we in turn process, record and store following ISO/IEC 270001:2005 certified controls and
procedures. All communications with our servers that might contain sensitive information are encrypted before
they leave the network and our servers are configured to only allow high-grade encryption algorithms.

We strictly regulate and limit all access to servers and networks at each of our facilities. Local network
access is restricted by our authenticated server, using access control lists and remote network access is restricted
by a firewall, which provides no accessible route from external networks to systems within our local network.
We also employ network and host intrusion detection and prevention sensors throughout our infrastructure,
systems that monitor and alert on insecure installations of third-party applications, a full system for managing
and installing patches for those applications and highly restricted access to the Internet for anyone who has
access to client data. We retain a third-party penetration testing company to conduct penetration tests and
periodic audits to identify and remediate any issues.

Our applications are secured using multiple libraries and secure coding practices. We engage in regular
penetration testing performed by both our information security department as well as by a third party testing
companies. Our information technology infrastructure is secured and monitored using a number of best practices
and tools at multiple layers of the physical and logical network. This security is also continually monitored by
our information security department.

Software Development

Our application development team works closely with our clients to improve and enhance our application
offerings and develop new applications. Our application development process consists of a focused innovation
and development timeframe in order to deliver well-developed applications and enhancements desired by our
clients. A key element of our development process is the one-on-one personal interaction between clients and our
CRRs through which our clients suggest new applications and features.

We develop our solution from the “ground up” with our internal development and engineering teams. Our
development and engineering teams and our employees conceive of new applications and enhancements, review
requests, schedule development in order of priority and subsequently develop the applications or enhancements.
Our new applications and enhancements are independently reviewed by the quality assurance team, in
accordance with our software development process, before being fully implemented. Any enhancements to our
applications are released on a monthly scheduled release date to coordinate the communication and release to our
clients.

Capitalized development expenses, which include compensation for employees directly associated with
development projects, were $2.2 million, $1.2 million and $0.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2014,
2013 and 2012, respectively.

Client Service

We are committed to providing industry-leading, client-centered service. For this reason, we assign each
client a specialist within a dedicated team. This one-to-one service is a key part of our client service model and
helps to ensure that we are delivering an industry-leading solution and maintaining high client satisfaction. The
primary elements of our client service model include the following:

Streamlined Setup and Onboarding

After a client elects to deploy our solution, that client goes through our onboarding process with assistance
from a team of new client setup specialists and the sales professional responsible for obtaining the client’s
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business. This team works closely with the client until the client is capable of managing our solution
independently, in which case it is transferred to our dedicated services specialists.

Dedicated Service Specialists

After completing the onboarding process, each client is assigned to a specialist within a dedicated team that
provides primary support for the remainder of the client’s time with the Company. Clients can then contact their
dedicated services specialist or a team member if any issues or questions arise. These specialists provide
personalized service with actual knowledge of the clients’ business needs. When appropriate, client questions can
be elevated to the specialists with the appropriate application, regulatory or tax expertise. In addition, our CRRs
proactively contact our clients to ensure satisfaction with our solution and introduce additional applications.

Expert Level Service

Our client specialists are trained across all of our applications to ensure that they can provide
comprehensive, expert-level service. Our client service is ISO 9001:2008 certified on the basis of its quality
consistency and helps support a high client retention rate.

Regulatory and Certifications

We are subject to varying degrees of regulations in each of the jurisdictions in which we provide services.
Local laws and regulations, and their interpretation and enforcement, differ significantly among those
jurisdictions. These regulations and laws cover, among others, information disclosure.

Personal privacy has become a significant issue in the United States and in other countries. The regulatory
framework for privacy issues worldwide is rapidly evolving and is likely to remain uncertain for the foreseeable
future. Many federal, state and foreign government bodies and agencies have adopted or are considering adopting
laws and regulations affecting or regarding the collection, use and disclosure of personal information. In the
United States, these include, for example, rules and regulations promulgated under the authority of the Federal
Trade Commission, the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, the Family Medical Leave
Act of 1993, the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act and state breach notification laws.

We voluntarily obtain third party security examinations relating to security and data privacy in accordance
with Statement on Standards for Attestation Engagements (“SSAE”), No. 16, Reporting on Controls at a Service
Organization. Our SSAE examination is conducted every six months by an independent third party auditor, and
addresses, among other areas, our physical and environmental safeguards for production data centers, data
availability and integrity procedures, change management procedures and logical security procedures.

In January 2014, we renewed a certification based on ISO/IEC 27001:2005 criteria, a security standard for
Information Security Management Systems published by ISO covering our production, quality assurance and
implementation environments. This independent assessment of our conformity to the ISO 27001 standard
includes assessing security risks, designing and implementing comprehensive security controls and adopting an
information security management process to meet security needs on an ongoing basis. The certification is valid
until February 2017, with continuing assessments taking place annually.

In March 2014, we renewed a certification based on ISO/IEC 9001:2008 criteria, a standard for the
implementation of quality management processes published by ISO, covering our activities required to create and
deliver our solution. This independent assessment of our conformity to the ISO 9001 standard includes assessing
the design and implementation of quality objectives to meet delivery standards on an ongoing basis. The
certification is valid until April 2017, with continuing assessments taking place annually.
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Intellectual Property

We rely on a combination of copyrights, trademarks, service marks, trade secret laws and contractual
restrictions to establish and protect our intellectual property rights. We also have a number of registered and
unregistered trademarks and will continue to evaluate the registration of additional trademarks as appropriate.
We do not have any patents or patent applications pending.

Seasonality

Our revenues are seasonal in nature. Recurring revenues include revenues relating to the annual processing
of payroll forms such as Form W-2 and Form 1099 and revenues from processing unscheduled payroll runs (such
as bonuses) for our clients. Because these forms are typically processed in the first quarter of the year, first
quarter revenue and margins are generally higher than in subsequent quarters. In addition, we often experience
increased revenue during the fourth quarter due to unscheduled payroll runs for our clients that occur before the
end of the year. We believe this seasonality is driven by several factors, most notably the number of our clients
that use our payroll application, as compared to the other applications that we offer. As our clients use additional
applications in the future, we believe that the seasonality in revenues will gradually diminish.

Employees

Our ability to recruit and retain qualified employees is critical to our continued success. We invest heavily
in our training and leadership development programs to encourage the development and promotion of our
employees. As of December 31, 2014, we employed 1,021 people. None of our employees were covered by
collective bargaining agreements. We consider our relationship with our employees to be good.

Facilities

Our corporate headquarters is located in Oklahoma City, Oklahoma on a 170,000 square foot corporate
campus that includes a 2,271 square foot disaster recovery site located in Oklahoma City. We own over 30 acres
in Oklahoma City upon which our facilities are located. We also own and operate a 1,500 square foot fully
redundant data center located at our corporate headquarters in Oklahoma We also lease a 16,870 square foot
corporate campus in Dallas, Texas that includes an approximately 300 square foot fully redundant data center.

We also lease offices in Arizona, California, Colorado, Florida, Georgia, Illinois, Indiana, Maryland,
Massachusetts, Michigan, Minnesota, Missouri, New Jersey, New York, North Carolina, Ohio, Oklahoma,
Oregon, Pennsylvania, Tennessee, Texas, Virginia and Washington. We believe that these facilities are suitable
for our current operations and upon the expiration of the terms of the leases we believe we could renew these
leases or find suitable space elsewhere on acceptable terms.

Segment Information

We operate in a single operating segment and a single reporting segment. Operating segments are defined as
components of an enterprise about which separate financial information is regularly evaluated by the chief executive
officer in deciding how to allocate resources and assessing performance. Our chief executive officer allocates resources
and assesses performance based upon financial information at the consolidated level. Since we operate in one operating
segment, all required financial segment information is presented in the consolidated financial statements.

Available Information

Our internet address is www.paycom.com and our investor relations website is located at
investors.paycom.com. Our Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on
Form 8-K and amendments to those reports can be found on our Investor Relations website, free of charge. These
reports are also electronically filed with (or furnished to) the SEC. Information contained on our websites is not
incorporated by reference into this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The SEC maintains a public website,
www.sec.gov, which includes information about and the filings of issues that file electronically with the SEC.
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Additionally, the information that we file with the SEC may be read at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 100
F Street NE, Washington, DC 20549. Information about the SEC’s Public Reference Room may be obtained by
calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

The risk factors noted in this section and other factors noted throughout this Annual Report on Form 10-K,
including those risks identified in Part II, Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations,” describe examples of risks, uncertainties and events that may cause our
actual results to differ materially from those contained in any forward-looking statement. If one or more of these
risks or uncertainties materialize, or if underlying assumptions prove incorrect, actual outcomes may vary
materially from those included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Risks Related to Our Business and Industry

Our business depends substantially on our clients’ continued use of our applications, their purchases of
additional applications from us and our ability to add new clients. Any decline in our clients’ continued use of
our applications or purchases of additional applications could adversely affect our business, operating results
or financial condition.

In order for us to maintain or improve our operating results, it is important that our current clients continue
to use our applications and purchase additional applications from us, and that we add new clients. Our clients
have no obligation to continue to use our applications, and may choose not to continue to use our applications at
the same or higher level of service, if at all. In the past, some of our clients have elected not to continue to use
our applications. Moreover, our clients generally have the right to cancel their agreements with us for any or no
reason by providing 30 days prior written notice.

Our client retention rates may fluctuate as a result of a number of factors, including the level of client satisfaction
with our applications, pricing, the prices of competing products or services, mergers and acquisitions affecting our client
base, reduced hiring by our clients or reductions in our clients’ spending levels. If our clients do not continue to use our
applications, renew on less favorable terms, fail to purchase additional applications, or if we fail to add new clients, our
revenues may decline, and our business, operating results or financial condition could be adversely affected.

The market in which we participate is highly competitive, and if we do not compete effectively, our business,
operating results or financial condition could be adversely affected.

The market for HCM software is highly competitive, rapidly evolving and fragmented. We expect
competition to intensify in the future with the introduction of new technologies and market entrants. Many of our
current and potential competitors are larger and have greater brand name recognition, longer operating histories,
more established relationships in the industry and significantly greater financial, technical and marketing
resources than we do. As a result, some of these competitors may be able to:

• adapt more rapidly to new or emerging technologies and changes in client requirements;

• develop superior products or services, gain greater market acceptance and expand their product and
service offerings more efficiently or rapidly;

• bundle products and services that we may not offer or in a manner that provides our competitors with a
price advantage;

• take advantage of acquisition and other opportunities for expansion more readily;

• maintain a lower cost basis;

• adopt more aggressive pricing policies and devote greater resources to the promotion, marketing and
sales of their products and services; and
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• devote greater resources to the research and development of their products and services.

Some of our principal competitors offer their products or services at a lower price, which has resulted in
pricing pressures. Similarly, some competitors offer different billing terms, which has resulted in pressures on
our billing terms. If we are unable to maintain our pricing levels and our billing terms, our operating results
would be negatively impacted. In addition, pricing pressures and increased competition generally could result in
reduced sales, reduced margins, losses or the failure of our solution to achieve or maintain widespread market
acceptance, any of which could adversely affect our business, operating results or financial condition.

We compete with firms that provide HCM solutions by various means. Many providers continue to deliver
legacy enterprise software, but as demand for greater flexibility and access to information grows, we believe
there will be increased competition in the delivery of HCM cloud-based solutions by other SaaS providers. Our
competitors offer HCM solutions that overlap with one, several or all categories of applications offered by our
solution. Our talent acquisition and talent management applications compete primarily with Cornerstone
OnDemand, Inc., Oracle Corporation, SAP AG and Workday, Inc. Our payroll applications, including payroll
processing, compete primarily with ADP, Ceridian Corporation, Concur Technologies, Inc., Intuit, Inc., Paychex,
Inc., Paylocity Holding Corporation and The Ultimate Software Group, Inc. Our HR management applications
compete primarily with ADP, Ceridian Corporation, Oracle Corporation, Paychex, Inc., SAP AG, and Workday,
Inc. Our time and labor management applications compete primarily with ADP, Ceridian Corporation, Paylocity
Holding Corporation and The Ultimate Software Group, Inc. All of our larger competitors compete with us
across multiple application categories. In addition, our HCM solution continues to face competition from in-
house payroll and HR systems and departments as well as HR systems and software sold by third-party vendors.

Competition in the HCM solutions market is primarily based on service responsiveness, application quality
and reputation, breadth of service and product offering and price. Many of our competitors are able to devote
greater resources to the development, promotion and sale of their products and services. In addition, many of our
competitors have established marketing relationships, access to larger client bases and major distribution
agreements with consultants, software vendors and distributors. In addition, some competitors may offer software
that addresses one or a limited number of HCM functions at a lower price point or with greater depth than our
solution. As a result, our competitors may be able to respond more quickly and effectively than we can to new or
changing opportunities, technologies, standards or client requirements. Further, some potential clients,
particularly large enterprises, may elect to develop their own internal solutions. If we are unable to compete
effectively, our business, operating results or financial condition could be adversely affected.

We have historically derived a majority of our revenues from payroll processing and our efforts to increase the
use of our other HCM applications may not be successful and may reduce our revenue growth rate.

To date we have derived a majority of our revenues from payroll processing. Compared to payroll
processing, our participation in other HCM applications markets is relatively new, and it is uncertain whether our
revenue from other HCM applications will continue to grow. The relatively limited extent to which our other
HCM applications have been adopted by our clients, and the uncertainty regarding the adoption of any new
applications beyond our existing applications, may make it difficult to evaluate our business because the potential
market for such applications remains uncertain. Our HCM solution may not achieve and sustain the high level of
market acceptance that is critical for the success of our business. The failure to increase the use of our HCM
applications and any new applications developed by us may reduce our revenue growth rate, which could
adversely affect our business, operating results or financial condition.

If our security measures are breached, or unauthorized access to data of our clients or their employees is
otherwise obtained, our solution may not be perceived as being secure, clients may reduce the use of or stop
using our solution and we may incur significant liabilities.

Our solution involves the collection, storage and transmission of clients’ and their employees’ confidential
and proprietary information, including personal or identifying information, as well as financial and payroll data.
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Unauthorized access or security breaches could result in the loss of information, litigation, indemnity obligations
and other liability. While we have security measures in place to protect client and employee information and
prevent data loss and other security breaches, if these measures are breached as a result of third-party action,
employee error, malfeasance or otherwise and someone obtains unauthorized access to our clients’ data, our
reputation could be damaged, our business may suffer and we could incur significant liability. Because the
techniques used to obtain unauthorized access or to sabotage systems change frequently, we may not be able to
anticipate these techniques and implement adequate preventative or protective measures. Cyber liability
insurance may be inadequate or may not be available in the future on acceptable terms, or at all. In addition, our
cyber liability insurance policy may not cover all claims made against us, and defending a suit, regardless of its
merit, could be costly and divert management’s attention.

Any actual or perceived breach of our security could damage our reputation, cause existing clients to
discontinue the use of our solution, prevent us from attracting new clients, or subject us to third-party lawsuits,
regulatory fines or other actions or liabilities, which could adversely affect our business, operating results or
financial condition.

If the SaaS market develops more slowly than we expect or declines, our growth may slow or stall, and our
business could be adversely affected.

The SaaS market is not as mature as the market for on-premise enterprise software, and it is uncertain
whether SaaS will achieve and sustain high levels of demand and market acceptance. Our success will depend
not only on strong demand for HCM services in general, but also to a substantial extent on the widespread
adoption of SaaS. Many companies have invested substantial personnel and financial resources to integrate
traditional enterprise software into their businesses, and therefore may be reluctant or unwilling to migrate to
SaaS. It is difficult to predict client adoption rates and demand for our solution, the future growth rate and size of
the SaaS market or the entry of competitive products. The expansion of the SaaS market depends on a number of
factors, including the cost, performance and perceived value associated with SaaS, as well as the ability of SaaS
providers to address security and privacy concerns. If other SaaS providers experience security incidents, loss of
client data, disruptions in delivery or other problems, the market for SaaS applications as a whole, including our
solution, may be negatively affected. If SaaS does not achieve widespread adoption, or there is a reduction in
demand for SaaS caused by a lack of client acceptance, technological challenges, weakening economic
conditions, security or privacy concerns, competing technologies and products, decreases in corporate spending
or otherwise, our growth may slow or stall, and our business could be adversely affected.

Any interruption or failure of our data centers could impair our ability to effectively provide our solution and
adversely affect our business.

We serve all of our clients from our two data centers located in Oklahoma and Texas. These locations are
vulnerable to damage or interruption from severe weather, tornados, terrorist attacks, earthquakes, floods, fires,
power loss, telecommunications failures, computer viruses or cyber-attacks. They are also subject to break-ins,
sabotage, intentional acts of vandalism and other misconduct. Our solution depends on the continuing operation
of our data centers and any damage to or failure of our data centers could result in interruptions in our services.
Any interruption in our service could damage our reputation, cause our clients to terminate their use of our
solution and prevent us from gaining new or additional business from current clients, which could have an
adverse effect on our business, operating results or financial condition.

Any significant disruption in our SaaS network infrastructure could harm our reputation and expose us to
significant costs.

Our SaaS network infrastructure is a critical part of our business operations. Our clients access our solution
through standard web browsers, smart phones, tablets and other web-enabled devises, and depend on us for fast
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and reliable access to our solution. In the future, we may experience disruptions in our computing and
communications infrastructure. Factors that may cause such disruptions include:

• human error;

• security breaches;

• telecommunications failures or outages from third-party providers;

• computer viruses or cyber-attacks;

• acts of terrorism, sabotage or other intentional acts of vandalism;

• unforeseen interruption or damages;

• tornados, fires, earthquakes, floods and other natural disasters; and

• power loss.

If our SaaS network infrastructure or our clients’ ability to access to our solution is interrupted, client and
employee data from recent transactions may be permanently lost and we could be exposed to significant claims
by clients, particularly if the access interruption is associated with problems in the timely delivery of funds due to
employees. Any significant instances of system downtime could negatively affect our reputation and ability to
retain clients and sell our solution, which would adversely impact our revenues.

We have also experienced significant growth in the number of clients, transactions and client and employee
data that our network infrastructure supports. We seek to maintain sufficient excess capacity in our network
infrastructure to meet the needs of all of our clients and their employees and to facilitate the rapid provision of
new client deployments and the expansion of existing client deployments. Any changes in the service levels at
our data centers or any errors, defects, disruptions or other performance problems with our network infrastructure
could adversely affect our reputation and may result in lengthy interruptions in the availability of our solution.
Any interruptions in the availability of our solution might reduce our revenues, cause us to issue refunds to
clients or adversely affect our retention of existing clients.

If our solution fails to perform properly, our reputation could be adversely affected and our market share
could decline.

Our solution is inherently complex and may in the future contain, or develop, undetected defects or errors.
Any defects in our applications could adversely affect our reputation, impair our ability to sell our applications in
the future and result in significant costs to us. The costs incurred in correcting any application defects may be
substantial and could adversely affect our business, operating results or financial condition. Any defects in
functionality or that cause interruptions in the availability of our applications could result in:

• loss or delayed market acceptance and sales of our applications;

• termination of service agreements or loss of clients;

• credits or refunds to clients;

• breach of contract, breach of warranty or indemnification claims against us, which may result in
litigation;

• diversion of development and service resources; and

• injury to our reputation.

Because of the large amount of data that we collect and manage, it is possible that hardware failures or
errors in our systems could result in data loss or corruption, or cause the information that we collect to be
incomplete or contain inaccuracies that our clients regard as significant. Furthermore, the availability or
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performance of our solution could be adversely affected by a number of factors, including the failure of our
network system or solution or security breaches. We may be liable to our clients for damages they may incur
resulting from certain of these events. In addition to potential liability, if we experience interruptions in the
availability of our solution, our reputation could be adversely affected and we could lose clients.

Our clients might assert claims against us in the future alleging that they suffered damages due to a defect,
error, or other failure of our solution. Our errors and omissions insurance may be inadequate or may not be
available in the future on acceptable terms, or at all. In addition, our policy may not cover all claims made
against us, and defending a suit, regardless of its merit, could be costly and divert management’s attention.

If we do not effectively expand and train our sales force and our support teams, we may be unable to add new
clients and retain existing clients.

We need to continue to expand our sales force and support team members in order to grow our client base
and increase our revenues. Identifying and recruiting qualified personnel and training them in the use of our
applications requires significant time, expense and attention and it can take a substantial amount of time before
our sales representatives and support team members are fully-trained and productive. We may be unable to hire
or retain sufficient numbers of qualified individuals in the markets where we currently, or intend in the future to
do business, and our recent hires and planned hires may not achieve desired productivity levels in a reasonable
period of time or become as productive as we expect. If our expansion efforts are unsuccessful or do not generate
a corresponding increase in revenues, our business, operating results or financial condition could be adversely
affected.

If we are not able to develop enhancements and new applications, keep pace with technological developments
or respond to future disruptive technologies, we might not remain competitive and our business could be
adversely affected.

Our future success will depend on our ability to adapt and innovate. To attract new clients and increase
revenues from existing clients, we need to enhance, add new features to and improve our existing applications
and introduce new applications. The success of any enhancements or new features and applications depends on
several factors, including timely completion, introduction and market acceptance. We may expend significant
time and resources developing and pursuing sales of a particular application that may not result in revenues in the
anticipated time frame or at all, or may not result in revenue growth sufficient to offset increased expenses. If we
are unable to successfully develop enhancements, new features or new applications to meet client needs, our
business and operating results could be adversely affected.

In addition, because our applications are designed to operate on a variety of network, hardware and software
platforms using Internet tools and protocols, we will need to continuously modify and enhance our applications
to keep pace with changes in Internet-related hardware, software, communication, browser and database
technologies. If we are unable to respond in a timely and cost-effective manner to these rapid technological
developments, our current and future applications may become less marketable and less competitive or even
obsolete.

Our success is also subject to the risk of future disruptive technologies. If new technologies emerge that are
able to deliver HCM solutions at lower prices, more efficiently or more conveniently, such technologies could
adversely impact our ability to compete.

The market for our solution among large companies may be limited if these companies demand customized
features and functions that we do not offer.

Prospective clients, especially larger companies, may require customized features and functions unique to
their business processes that we do not offer. In order to ensure we meet these requirements, we may devote a
significant amount of support and services resources to larger prospective clients, increasing the cost and time
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required to complete sales with no guarantee that these clients will continue to use our solution. Further, we may
not be successful in implementing any customized features or functions. If prospective clients require customized
features or functions that we do not offer, or that would be difficult for them to deploy themselves, then the
market for our solution will be more limited and our business could be adversely affected.

Our business and operations are experiencing rapid growth and organizational change. If we fail to manage
such growth and change effectively, we may be unable to execute our business plan, maintain high levels of
service or adequately address competitive challenges.

We have experienced, and may continue to experience, rapid growth in our headcount and operations, which
has placed, and may continue to place, significant demands on our management, operational and financial
resources. For example, our headcount has grown from 523 employees as of December 31, 2011 to 1,021
employees as of December 31, 2014 and we have expanded from 18 offices as of December 31, 2011 to 29
offices as of December 31, 2014. We have also experienced significant growth in the number of clients,
transactions and client and employee data that our infrastructure supports. Finally, our organizational structure
and recording systems and procedures are becoming more complex as we improve our operational, financial and
management controls. Our success will depend in part on our ability to manage this growth and organizational
change effectively. To manage the expected growth of our headcount and operations, we will need to continue to
improve our operational, financial and management controls and our reporting systems and procedures. Our
ability to add additional offices may be constrained by the willingness and availability of qualified personnel to
help staff and manage any new offices. The failure to effectively manage growth could result in difficulties or
delays in obtaining clients, selling additional applications to our clients, declines in quality or client satisfaction
of our applications, increases in costs, and difficulties in introducing new applications or other operational
difficulties, any of which could adversely affect our ability to retain and attract clients or sell additional
applications to our existing clients.

Our business, operating results or financial condition could be adversely affected if our clients are not
satisfied with our deployment or technical support services.

Our business depends on our ability to satisfy our clients, both with respect to our applications and the
technical support provided to help clients use the applications that address the needs of their businesses. We use
our in-house deployment personnel to implement and configure our solution and provide support to our clients. If
a client is not satisfied with the quality of our solution or the applications delivered or the support provided, we
could be required to incur additional costs to address the situation, the profitability of our solution might be
negatively affected, and the client’s dissatisfaction with our deployment service could damage our ability to sell
additional applications to that client. In addition, our sales process is highly dependent on the reputation of our
solution and applications and on positive recommendations from our existing clients. Any failure to maintain
high-quality technical support, or a market perception that we do not maintain high-quality technical support,
could adversely affect our reputation, our ability to sell our applications to existing and prospective clients, and
our business, operating results or financial condition.

If we fail to retain key employees and recruit qualified technical and sales personnel, our business could be
adversely affected.

We believe that our success depends on the continued services of our senior management and other key
employees, including Chad Richison, Craig E. Boelte, Jeffrey D. York and William X. Kerber III. In addition,
because our future success is dependent on our ability to continue to enhance and introduce new applications, we
are heavily dependent on our ability to attract and retain qualified software developers and IT personnel with the
requisite education, background and industry experience. To continue to execute our growth strategy, we must
also attract and retain qualified sales, marketing and operational personnel capable of supporting a larger and
more diverse client base. The loss of the services of a significant number of our developers or sales professionals
could be disruptive to our development efforts or business relationships. In addition, if any of our key employees
joins a competitor or decides to otherwise compete with us, we may experience a material disruption of our
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operations and development plans, which may cause us to lose clients or increase operating expenses or divert
management’s attention to recruit replacements for the departed key employees.

Our financial results may fluctuate due to many factors, some of which may be beyond our control.

Our results of operations, including the levels of our revenues, costs of revenues, administrative expenses,
operating income, cash flow and deferred revenue, may vary significantly in the future and the results of any one
period should not be relied upon as an indication of future performance. Our financial results may fluctuate as a
result of a variety of factors, many of which are outside of our control, and as a result, may not fully reflect the
underlying performance of our business. Fluctuation in our financial results may negatively impact the value of
our common stock. Factors that may cause our financial results to fluctuate from period to period include,
without limitation:

• our ability to attract new clients or sell additional applications to our existing clients;

• the number of new clients and their employees, as compared to the number of existing clients and their
employees in a particular period;

• the mix of clients between small, mid-sized and large organizations;

• the extent to which we retain existing clients and the expansion or contraction of our relationship with
them;

• the mix of applications sold during a period;

• changes in our pricing policies or those of our competitors;

• seasonal factors affecting payroll processing, demand for our applications or potential clients’
purchasing decisions;

• the amount and timing of operating expenses, including those related to the maintenance and expansion
of our business, operations and infrastructure;

• the timing and success of new applications introduced by us and the timing of expenses related to the
development of new applications and technologies;

• the timing and success of current and new competitive products and services by our competitors;

• economic conditions affecting our clients, including their ability to outsource HCM solutions and hire
employees;

• other changes in the competitive dynamics of our industry, including consolidation among competitors
or clients;

• our ability to manage our existing business and future growth, including expenses related to our data
centers and the expansion of such data centers and the addition of new offices;

• the effects and expenses of acquisition of third-party technologies or businesses and any potential
future charges for impairment of goodwill resulting from those acquisitions;

• network outages or security breaches; and

• general economic, industry and market conditions.

Certain of our operating results and financial metrics are difficult to predict as a result of seasonality.

We have historically experienced seasonality in our revenues because a significant portion of our recurring
revenues relate to the annual processing of payroll forms such as Form W-2 and Form 1099. Because these forms
are typically processed in the first quarter of the year, first quarter revenues are generally higher than subsequent
quarters. We expect this seasonality to continue in the future, which may cause fluctuations in certain of our
operating results and financial metrics, and thus make such results and metrics difficult to predict.
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If we fail to adequately protect our proprietary rights, our competitive advantage could be impaired and we
may lose valuable assets, generate reduced revenue or incur costly litigation to protect our rights.

Our success is dependent in part upon our intellectual property. We rely on a combination of copyrights,
trademarks, service marks, trade secret laws and contractual restrictions to establish and to protect our
intellectual property rights. However, the steps we take to protect our intellectual property may be inadequate.
We will not be able to protect our intellectual property if we are unable to enforce our rights or if we do not
detect unauthorized use of our intellectual property. Despite our precautions, it may be possible for unauthorized
third parties to copy our applications and use information that we regard as proprietary to create products or
services that compete with ours.

We may be required to spend significant resources to monitor and protect our intellectual property. We have
been involved in litigation in the past and litigation may be necessary in the future to protect and enforce our
intellectual property rights and to protect our trade secrets. Such litigation could be costly, time-consuming and
distracting to management and could result in the impairment or loss of portions of our intellectual property.
Furthermore, our efforts to enforce our intellectual property rights may be met with defenses, counterclaims and
countersuits attacking the validity and enforceability of our intellectual property rights. We may not be able to
secure, protect and enforce our intellectual property rights or control access to, and the distribution of, our
solution and proprietary information.

We may be sued by third parties for alleged infringement of their proprietary rights.

Considerable intellectual property development activity exists in our industry, and we expect that software
developers will increasingly be subject to infringement claims as the number of applications and competitors
grows and the functionality of applications in different industry segments overlaps. Our competitors, as well as a
number of other entities and individuals, may own or claim to own intellectual property in technology areas
relating to our solution or applications. In addition, we may increasingly be subject to trademark infringement
claims as our presence grows in the marketplace. From time to time, third parties have asserted and may in the
future assert that we are infringing on their intellectual property rights, and we may be found to be infringing
upon such rights. A claim of infringement may also be made relating to technology that we acquire or license
from third parties. However, we may be unaware of the intellectual property rights of others that may cover, or
may be alleged to cover, some or all of our solution, applications or brands.

For example, on September 23, 2014, in anticipation of an alleged trademark infringement claim, we filed a
complaint against National Financial Partners Corp. in the United States District Court for the Western District of
Oklahoma (Civil Action No. 5:14-cv-01029-R) seeking a declaratory judgment that we have not engaged in any
trademark infringement or unfair competition in connection with the use of our logo. On September 23, 2014,
National Financial Partners Corp. filed a complaint against us in the United States District Court for the Northern
District of Illinois (Civil Action No. 1:14-cv-07424). The complaint alleges trademark infringement, unfair
competition, deceptive trade practices, consumer fraud and deceptive business practices related to the adoption
and use of our logo and seeks preliminary and permanent injunctions prohibiting us from continued infringement
as well as money damages, including an accounting for sales and profits, attorneys’ fees and disgorgement of
profits. On October 16, 2014, National Financial Partners Corp. filed a motion to dismiss the action pending in
the Western District of Oklahoma. On October 20, 2014, we filed a motion to transfer the action from the
Northern District of Illinois to the Western District of Oklahoma, and a memorandum in support of the motion to
transfer, in the Northern District of Illinois. On December 12, 2014, the United States District Court for the
Western District of Oklahoma granted National Financial Partners Corp.’s motion to dismiss. National Financial
Partners Corp. has moved for an order preliminarily enjoining us from using our logo in the Northern District of
Illinois. On January 5, 2015, we filed an answer, affirmative defenses and counterclaim in the Northern District
of Illinois denying the material allegations in National Financial Corp.’s complaint and seeking a declaratory
judgment that we have not engaged in any trademark infringement with respect to the use of our logo. On
February 15, 2015, the Northern District of Illinois denied our motion to transfer the venue and scheduled the
lawsuit for trial in the Northern District of Illinois in February 2016. The Northern District of Illinois has not yet
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ruled on National Financial Partners Corp.’s motion for a preliminary injunction. The Northern District of Illinois
will set a briefing schedule on the motion filed by NFP asking the Court to enter a preliminary injunction
prohibiting our use of our logo pending the outcome of the action. NFP’s motion for a preliminary injuction will
be heard in the Western District of Oklahoma. We intend to vigorously defend this litigation. In the event that a
court ultimately determines that we have infringed any of the asserted trademarks or grants National Financial
Partners Corp.’s motion for a preliminary injunction, we may be subject to damages, which may include treble
damages, be enjoined from using our current logo while the parties are litigating the merits of the claims or be
required to modify our logo and/or undergo a rebranding of our solution and applications. We cannot predict with
any degree of certainty the outcome of the litigation or determine the extent of any potential liability or damages.

The outcome of the foregoing litigation matter is inherently unpredictable, and therefore as a result of this
litigation matter or any future claim of infringement, a claim could (i) cause us to enter into an unfavorable
royalty or license agreement, pay ongoing royalties or require that we comply with other unfavorable terms,
(ii) require us to discontinue the sale of our solution or applications, (iii) require us to indemnify our clients or
third-party service providers or (iv) require us to expend additional development resources to redesign our
solution or applications. Any of these outcomes could harm our business. Even if we were to prevail, any
litigation regarding our intellectual property could be costly and time consuming and divert the attention of our
management and key personnel from our business and operations.

We employ third-party licensed software for use in our applications and the inability to maintain these licenses
or errors in the software we license could result in increased costs or reduced service levels, which could
adversely affect our business.

Our applications incorporate certain third-party software obtained under licenses from other companies. We
anticipate that we will continue to rely on such third-party software and development tools from third parties in
the future. Although we believe that there are commercially reasonable alternatives to the third-party software we
currently license, this may not always be the case, or it may be difficult or costly to replace. In addition,
integration of the software used in our applications with new third-party software may require significant work
and substantial investment of our time and resources. Also, to the extent that our applications depend upon the
successful operation of third-party software in conjunction with our software, any undetected errors or defects in
this third-party software could prevent the deployment or impair the functionality of our applications, delay new
application introductions, result in a failure of our applications and harm our reputation.

The use of open source software in our applications may expose us to additional risks and harm our
intellectual property rights.

Some of our applications use software covered by open source licenses. From time to time, there have been
claims challenging the ownership of open source software against companies that incorporate such software into
their products or applications. As a result, we could be subject to suits by parties claiming ownership of what we
believe to be open source software. Litigation could be costly for us to defend, have a negative effect on our
operating results and financial condition or require us to devote additional development resources to change our
applications. In addition, if we were to combine our applications with open source software in a certain manner,
we could, under certain of the open source licenses, be required to release the source code of our applications. If
we inappropriately use open source software, we may be required to redesign our applications, discontinue the
sale of our applications or take other remedial actions.

We may not receive significant revenues from our current research and development activities for several
years, if at all.

Developing SaaS-based applications is expensive and the investment in the development of these
applications often involves a long return on investment cycle. We have made and expect to continue to make
significant investments in research and development activities. Accelerated application introductions and short
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software life cycles require increased levels of research and development expenditures that could adversely affect
our operating results if not offset by increased revenues. We believe that we must continue to dedicate a
significant amount of resources to our research and development activities to maintain our competitive position.
We may not receive significant revenues from these investments however, for several years, if at all.

The failure to develop our brand cost-effectively could have an adverse effect on our business.

We believe that developing and maintaining widespread awareness of our brand in a cost-effective manner
is critical to achieving the widespread acceptance of our solution and is an important element in attracting new
clients and retaining existing clients. Successful promotion of our brand depends largely on the effectiveness of
our marketing efforts and on our ability to provide reliable and useful applications at competitive prices. Brand
promotion activities may not yield increased revenues, and even if they do, any increased revenues may not
offset the expenses incurred in building our brand. If we fail to successfully promote and maintain our brand, or
incur substantial expenses in an unsuccessful attempt to promote and maintain our brand, we may fail to attract
enough new clients or retain our existing clients to the extent necessary to realize a sufficient return on our
brand-building efforts, which could have an adverse effect on our business.

We might require additional capital to support business growth, and this capital might not be available on
acceptable terms, if at all.

We have funded our operations since inception through cash flows generated from operations, cash from the
sale of debt and equity securities and borrowings under consolidated loans. In the future, we may require
additional capital to support our growth and respond to operational challenges, including the need to develop new
features and applications or enhance our existing applications, improve our infrastructure or acquire
complementary businesses and technologies. Accordingly, we may need to engage in equity or debt financings to
secure additional funds. If we raise additional funds through issuances of equity or convertible debt securities,
our existing stockholders could suffer significant dilution, and any new equity securities we issue could have
rights, preferences and privileges superior to those of holders of our common stock. Any debt financing secured
by us in the future could involve restrictive covenants relating to our capital raising activities and other financial
and operational matters, which may make it more difficult for us to obtain additional capital and to pursue
business opportunities, including potential acquisitions. In addition, we may not be able to obtain additional
financing on terms favorable to us, if at all. If we are unable to obtain adequate financing or financing on terms
satisfactory to us, when we require it, our ability to continue to support our growth and respond to challenges
could be significantly limited.

Our outstanding indebtedness is subject to certain operating and financial covenants that may restrict our
business and financing activities and may adversely affect our cash flow and our ability to operate our
business.

As of December 31, 2014, we had a term note under the 2021 Consolidated Loan with an outstanding
principal amount of $27.0 million due to Kirkpatrick Bank that matures on May 30, 2021 (the “2021
Consolidated Loan”). The 2021 Consolidated Loan is secured by a mortgage covering our headquarters buildings
and certain personal property relating to our headquarters buildings. Pursuant to the terms of the 2021
Consolidated Loan, we may not, subject to certain exceptions, until amounts under the 2021 Consolidated Loan
are repaid:

• create any mortgages or liens;

• make any loans, advances or extensions of credit with any affiliate or enter into any other transaction
with any affiliate;

• lease any mortgaged property;

• make any distributions as long as an event of default exists;

24



• make any material change in methods of accounting;

• enter into any sale and leaseback arrangement;

• amend, modify, restate, cancel or terminate our organizational documents;

• sell, transfer or convey any mortgaged property;

• or incur funded outside debt.

In addition, under the 2021 Consolidated Loan we are required to maintain a debt coverage ratio of
EBITDA to indebtedness (defined as current maturities of long-term debt, interest expense and distributions) of
greater than 1.5 to 1.0. The operating and financial covenants in the 2021 Consolidated Loan, as well as any
future financing agreements that we may enter into, may restrict our ability to finance our operations, engage in
business activities or expand or fully pursue our business strategies. We may also be required to use a substantial
portion of our cash flows to pay principal and interest on our debt, which would reduce the amount of money we
have for operations, working capital, expansion, or other general corporate purposes.

Our ability to meet our expenses and debt obligations and comply with the operating and financial
covenants may be affected by financial, business, economic, regulatory and other factors beyond our control. We
may be unable to control many of these factors and comply with these covenants. A breach of any of the
covenants under the 2021 Consolidated Loan could result in an event of default, which could cause all of the
outstanding indebtedness under the 2021 Consolidated Loan to become immediately due and payable.

We may acquire other businesses, applications or technologies, which could divert our management’s
attention, result in additional dilution to our stockholders and otherwise disrupt our operations and harm our
operating results.

In the future, we may seek to acquire or invest in businesses, applications or technologies that we believe
complement or expand our applications, enhance our technical capabilities or otherwise offer growth
opportunities. The pursuit of potential acquisitions may divert the attention of management and cause us to incur
expenses in identifying, investigating and pursuing suitable acquisitions, whether or not they are ultimately
consummated.

We do not have any experience in acquiring other businesses. If we acquire additional businesses, we may
not be able to integrate the acquired personnel, operations and technologies successfully or to effectively manage
the combined business following the acquisition. We also may not achieve the anticipated benefits from the
acquired business due to a number of factors, including:

• the inability to integrate or benefit from acquired applications or services in a profitable manner;

• unanticipated costs or liabilities associated with the acquisition;

• the incurrence of acquisition-related costs;

• difficulty integrating the accounting systems, operations and personnel of the acquired business;

• difficulty and additional expenses associated with supporting legacy products and hosting
infrastructure of the acquired business;

• difficulty converting the clients of the acquired business onto our solution, including disparities in the
revenues, licensing, support or services of the acquired company;

• diversion of management’s attention from other business concerns;

• harm to our existing relationships with clients as a result of the acquisition;

• the potential loss of key employees;
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• the use of resources that are needed in other parts of our business; and

• the use of substantial portions of our available cash to consummate the acquisition.

In addition, a significant portion of the purchase price of any companies we acquire may be allocated to
acquired goodwill and other intangible assets, which must be assessed for impairment at least annually. In the
future, if our acquisitions do not yield expected returns, we may be required to take charges to our operating results
based on this impairment assessment process, which could harm our results of operations. Acquisitions could also
result in issuances of equity securities or the incurrence of debt, which would result in dilution to our stockholders.

Our growth depends in part on the success of our relationships with third parties.

We rely on third-party financial and accounting processing systems, as well as various financial institutions,
to perform financial services in connection with our applications, such as providing automated clearing house
(“ACH”), and wire transfers as part of our payroll and expense reimbursement services and to provide
technology and content support, manufacture time clocks and process background checks. We anticipate that we
will continue to depend on various third-party relationships in order to grow our business, provide technology
and content support, manufacture time clocks and process background checks. Identifying, negotiating and
documenting relationships with these third parties and integrating third-party content and technology requires
significant time and resources. Our agreements with third parties typically are non-exclusive and do not prohibit
them from working with our competitors. In addition, these third parties may not perform as expected under our
agreements, and we may have disagreements or disputes with such third parties, which could negatively affect
our brand and reputation. A global economic slowdown could also adversely affect the businesses of our third
party providers, particularly those financial institutions that process transactions through the ACH network, and it
is possible that they may not be able to devote the resources we expect to our relationship.

If we are unsuccessful in establishing or maintaining our relationships with these third parties, our ability to
compete in the marketplace or to grow our revenues could be impaired and our business, operating results or
financial condition could be adversely affected. Even if we are successful, these relationships may not result in
improved operating results.

Adverse economic conditions could adversely affect our business, operating results or financial condition.

Our business depends on the overall demand for HCM applications and on the economic health of our
current and prospective clients. If economic conditions in the United States remain uncertain or deteriorate,
clients may cease their operations or delay or reduce their HCM spending or the number of their employees. This
could result in reductions in sales of our applications, longer sales cycles, slower adoption of new technologies
and increased price competition, any of which could adversely affect our business, operating results or financial
condition. In addition, HCM spending levels may not increase following any recovery.

If our goodwill or other intangible assets become impaired, we may be required to record a significant charge
to earnings.

We are required to test goodwill for impairment at least annually or earlier if events or changes in
circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. As of December 31, 2014, we had recorded a
total of $51.9 million of goodwill and $5.1 million of other intangible assets. An adverse change in market
conditions, particularly if such change has the effect of changing one of our critical assumptions or estimates
made in connection with the impairment testing of goodwill or intangible assets, could result in a change to the
estimation of fair value that could result in an impairment charge to our goodwill or other intangible assets. Any
such material charges may have a negative impact our operating results.
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We typically pay employees and may pay taxing authorities amounts due for a payroll period before a client’s
electronic funds transfers are finally settled to our account. If client payments are rejected by banking
institutions or otherwise fail to clear into our accounts, we may require additional sources of short-term
liquidity and our operating results could be adversely affected.

Our payroll processing application moves significant funds from the account of a client to employees and
relevant taxing authorities. For larger funding amounts, we require clients to transfer the funds to us via fed wire.
For smaller funding amounts, we debit a client’s account prior to any disbursement on its behalf, and due to ACH
banking regulations, funds previously credited could be reversed under certain circumstances and time frames
after our payment of amounts due to employees and taxing and other regulatory authorities. There is therefore a
risk that the employer’s funds will be insufficient to cover the amounts we have already paid on its behalf. While
such shortage and accompanying financial exposure has only occurred in very limited circumstances in the past,
should clients default on their payment obligations in the future, we might be required to advance substantial
funds to cover such obligations. In such an event, we may be required to seek additional sources of short-term
liquidity, which may not be available on reasonable terms, if at all, and our operating results and our liquidity
could be adversely affected and our banking relationships could be harmed.

Because our long term success depends, in part, on our ability to expand the sales of our solution to clients
located outside of the United States, our business will be subject to risks associated with international
operations.

An element of our growth strategy is to expand our operations and client base. To date, we have not engaged
in any operations outside of the United States. If we decide to expand our operations into international markets, it
will require significant resources and management attention and will subject us to regulatory, economic and
political risks that are different from those in the United States. Because of our lack of experience with
international operations, we cannot assure you that our international expansion efforts will be successful.

Risks Related to Legislation or Regulation

Privacy concerns and laws or other domestic regulations may reduce the effectiveness of our applications.

Our applications require the storage and transmission of the proprietary and confidential information of our
clients and their employees, including personal or identifying information, as well as their financial and payroll
data. Our applications are subject to varying complex government laws and regulations on the federal, state and
local levels, including those governing personal privacy, which has become a significant issue in the United
States. The regulatory framework for privacy issues is rapidly evolving and is likely to remain uncertain for the
foreseeable future. Many federal, state and foreign government bodies and agencies have adopted or are
considering adopting laws and regulations regarding the collection, use and disclosure of personal information. In
the United States, these include rules and regulations promulgated under the authority of the Federal Trade
Commission, the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, the Family Medical Leave Act of
1993, the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act, federal and state labor and employment laws and state data
breach notification laws.

In addition to government regulation, privacy advocates and industry groups may propose new and different
self-regulatory standards. Because the interpretation and application of privacy and data protection laws are still
uncertain, it is possible that these laws may be interpreted and applied in a manner that is inconsistent with our
existing data management practices or the features of our solution. Any failure to comply with government
regulations that apply to our applications, including privacy and data protection laws, could subject us to liability.
In addition to the possibility of fines, lawsuits and other claims, we could be required to fundamentally change
our business activities and practices or modify our solution, which could have an adverse effect on our business,
operating results or financial condition. Any inability to adequately address privacy concerns, even if unfounded,
or comply with applicable privacy or data protection laws, regulations and policies, could result in additional cost
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and liability to us, damage our reputation, inhibit sales and adversely affect our business, operating results or
financial condition.

Furthermore, privacy concerns may cause our clients’ employees to resist providing the personal data
necessary to allow our clients or their employees to use our applications effectively. Even the perception of
privacy concerns, whether or not valid, may inhibit market adoption of our applications in certain industries. All
of these legislative and regulatory initiatives may adversely affect the ability of our clients to process, handle,
store, use and transmit demographic and personal information from their employees, which could reduce demand
for our applications.

Changes in laws and regulations related to the Internet or changes in the Internet infrastructure itself may
diminish the demand for our applications, and could have a negative impact on our business.

The future success of our business depends upon the continued use of the Internet as a primary medium for
commerce, communication and business. Federal, state and foreign government bodies or agencies have in the
past adopted, and may in the future adopt, laws or regulations affecting the use of the Internet as a commercial
medium. Changes in these laws or regulations could require us to modify our applications in order to comply
with these changes. In addition, government agencies or private organizations may impose taxes, fees or other
charges for accessing the Internet or commerce conducted via the Internet. These laws or charges could limit the
growth of Internet-related commerce or communications generally, or result in reductions in the demand for
Internet-based applications such as ours.

In addition, the use of the Internet as a means of conducting business could be adversely affected due to
delays in the development or adoption of new standards and protocols to handle increased demands of Internet
activity, security, reliability, cost, ease of use, accessibility, and quality of service. The performance of the
Internet has been adversely affected by “viruses,” “worms” and similar malicious programs and the Internet has
experienced a variety of outages and other delays as a result of damage to portions of its infrastructure. If the use
of the Internet is adversely affected by these issues, demand for our applications could suffer.

If we are unable to implement and maintain effective internal control over financial reporting in the future,
investors may lose confidence in the accuracy and completeness of our financial reports and the market price
of our common stock may be negatively affected.

We will be required pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, as amended, (the
“Sarbanes-Oxley Act”), to furnish a report by management on, among other things, the effectiveness of our
internal control over financial reporting for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2015 and in each year thereafter.
Our auditors will also need to attest to the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting in the
future to the extent we are no longer an emerging growth company, as defined by the Jumpstart Our Business
Startups Act (the “JOBS Act”), and are not a smaller reporting company.

If we have a material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting, we may not detect errors on
a timely basis and our financial statements may be materially misstated. We are in the process of designing and
implementing internal control over financial reporting to comply with this obligation, which process will be time
consuming, costly and complicated. If we identify material weaknesses in our internal control over financial
reporting, if we are unable to comply with the requirements of Section 404 in a timely manner, if we are unable
to assert that our internal control over financial reporting is effective, or if our independent registered public
accounting firm is unable to express an opinion as to the effectiveness of our internal control over financial
reporting, investors may lose confidence in the accuracy and completeness of our financial reports we could
become subject to investigations by the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”), the SEC, or other regulatory
authorities and the market price of our common stock could be negatively affected.
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We have incurred and will continue to incur increased costs and demands upon management as a result of
complying with the laws and regulations affecting public companies.

As a new public company, we have incurred since our initial public offering and expect to continue to incur
significant legal, accounting and other expenses that we did not incur as a private company, including costs
associated with public company reporting and corporate governance requirements. For example, we are subject
to the reporting requirements of the Exchange Act, and are required to comply with the applicable requirements
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, as well as rules and regulations subsequently implemented by the SEC and the
NYSE, including the establishment and maintenance of effective disclosure controls and procedures and internal
control over financial reporting and changes in corporate governance practices.

We expect that complying with these rules and regulations will increase our legal and financial compliance
costs and make some activities more time-consuming and costly. In particular, we have incurred and expect to
incur significant expenses and devote substantial management effort toward ensuring compliance with the
requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, which will increase to the extent we are no longer an
emerging growth company, as defined by the JOBS Act, and are not a smaller reporting company. We cannot
fully predict or estimate the amount or timing of future costs associated with being a public company, which
could adversely affect our operating results.

The increased costs associated with operating as a public company may decrease our net income or result in
a net loss and may require us to reduce costs in other areas of our business or increase the prices of our solution.
Additionally, if these requirements divert management’s attention from other business concerns, they could have
an adverse effect on our business, operating results or financial condition.

As a public company, we may be required to accept reduced policy limits and coverage for director and
officer liability insurance or incur substantially higher costs to obtain the same or similar coverage. As a result, it
may be more difficult for us to attract and retain qualified individuals to serve on our board of directors or as our
executive officers.

We are an emerging growth company and the reduced disclosure requirements applicable to emerging growth
companies may make our common stock less attractive to investors.

We are an emerging growth company. Under the JOBS Act, emerging growth companies can delay adopting
new or revised accounting standards until such time as those standards apply to private companies. We have
irrevocably elected not to avail ourselves of this exemption from new or revised accounting standards and,
therefore, we are subject to the same new or revised accounting standards as other public companies that are not
emerging growth companies. Pursuant to Section 102 of the JOBS Act, we have reduced executive compensation
disclosure and have omitted a Compensation Discussion and Analysis from this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

For as long as we continue to be an emerging growth company, we intend to take advantage of certain other
exemptions from various reporting requirements that are applicable to other public companies including reduced
disclosure obligations regarding executive compensation in our periodic reports and proxy statements,
exemptions from the requirements of holding a nonbinding advisory vote on executive compensation, the
frequency of the nonbinding advisory vote on executive compensation and stockholder approval of any golden
parachute payments not previously approved and the auditor attestation requirements of Section 404 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act. Investors may find our common stock less attractive because we will rely on these
exemptions. If some investors find our common stock less attractive as a result, there may be a less active trading
market for our common stock and our stock price may be more volatile.

We will remain an emerging growth company until the earliest of (i) the end of the fiscal year in which the market
value of our common stock that is held by non-affiliates exceeds $700 million as of June 30th, (ii) the end of the fiscal
year in which we have total annual gross revenues of $1 billion or more during such fiscal year, (iii) the date on which
we issue more than $1 billion in non-convertible debt in a three-year period and (iv) December 31, 2019.
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Adverse tax laws or regulations could be enacted or existing laws could be applied to us or our clients, which
could increase the costs of our solution and applications and could adversely affect our business, operating
results or financial condition.

The application of federal, state and local tax laws to services provided electronically is evolving. New
income, sales, use or other tax laws, statutes, rules, regulations or ordinances could be enacted at any time
(possibly with retroactive effect), and could be applied solely or disproportionately to services and applications
provided over the Internet. These enactments could adversely affect our sales activity, due to the inherent cost
increase the taxes would represent and ultimately could adversely affect our business, operating results or
financial condition.

In addition, existing tax laws, statutes, rules, regulations or ordinances could be interpreted, changed,
modified or applied adversely to us (possibly with retroactive effect), which could require us or our clients to pay
additional tax amounts, as well as require us or our clients to pay fines or penalties and interest for past amounts.
If we are unsuccessful in collecting such taxes from our clients, we could be held liable for such costs, thereby
adversely affecting our business, operating results or financial condition.

Risks Related to Ownership of our Common Stock

Our actual operating results may differ significantly from our guidance.

From time to time, we have released, and may continue to release, guidance in our earnings conference
calls, earnings releases, or otherwise, regarding our future performance that represents our estimates as of the
date of release. This guidance, which includes forward-looking statements, has been and will be based on
projections prepared by our management. These projections are not prepared with a view toward compliance
with published guidelines of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and neither our registered
public accountants nor any other independent expert or outside party compiles or examines the projections.
Accordingly, no such person expresses any opinion or any other form of assurance with respect to the
projections.

Projections are based upon a number of assumptions and estimates that, while presented with numerical
specificity, are inherently subject to significant business, economic, and competitive uncertainties and
contingencies, many of which are beyond our control and are based upon specific assumptions with respect to
future business decisions, some of which will change. The principal reason that we release guidance is to provide
a basis for our management to discuss our business outlook with analysts and investors. We do not accept any
responsibility for any projections or reports published by any such third parties.

Guidance is necessarily speculative in nature, and it can be expected that some or all of the assumptions
underlying the guidance furnished by us will vary significantly from actual results. Accordingly, our guidance is
only an estimate of what management believes is realizable as of the date of release. Actual results may vary
from our guidance and the variations may be material. In light of the foregoing, investors are urged not to rely
upon our guidance in making an investment decision regarding our common stock.

Any failure to successfully implement our operating strategy or the occurrence of any of the events or
circumstances set forth in this “Risk Factors” section in this Annual Report on Form 10-K could result in the
actual operating results being different from our guidance, and the differences may be adverse and material.

The price of our common stock has been and may continue to be volatile or may decline regardless of our
operating performance, and you may not be able to resell your shares at or above the current market price.

The market price of our common stock has been, and is likely to continue to be, volatile for the foreseeable
future. If an active trading market for our common stock is not sustained, you may have difficulty selling any
shares of our common stock that you purchased, and the value of such shares may be materially impaired. The
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market price of our common stock may fluctuate significantly in response to numerous factors, many of which
are beyond our control, including:

• our operating performance and the performance of other similar companies;

• the overall performance of the equity markets;

• announcements by us or our competitors of new applications or enhancements, acquisitions,
applications, services, strategic alliances, commercial relationships, joint ventures or capital
commitments;

• disruptions in our services due to hardware, software or network problems;

• recruitment or departure of key personnel;

• publication of unfavorable research reports about us or our industry or withdrawal of research coverage
by securities analysts;

• trading activity by a limited number of stockholders who together beneficially own a majority of our
outstanding common stock;

• the size of our public float;

• the economy as a whole, market conditions in our industry and the industries of our clients; and

• economic, legal and regulatory factors unrelated to our performance.

In addition, the stock markets have experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations that have affected
and continue to affect the market prices of equity securities of many technology companies. Stock prices of many
technology companies have fluctuated in a manner unrelated or disproportionate to the operating performance of
those companies. In the past, stockholders have filed securities class actions following periods of market
volatility. If we were to become involved in securities litigation, it could subject us to substantial costs, divert
resources and the attention of management from our business, and adversely affect our business, operating results
or financial condition.

Substantial blocks of our total outstanding shares may be sold into the market when the “lock-up” period for
our follow-on offering ends on April 14, 2015. If there are substantial sales of shares of our common stock,
the price of our common stock could decline.

The price of our common stock could decline if there are substantial sales of our common stock, particularly
sales by our directors, executive officers and significant stockholders. Shares held by directors, executive officers
and certain other affiliates will be eligible to be resold in the public market once the lock-up period for the
follow-on offering ends on April 14, 2015, subject to volume limitations under Rule 144 under the Securities Act
and restrictions under the terms of various restricted stock award agreements.

If securities or industry analysts do not publish research or publish misleading or unfavorable research about
our business, our stock price and trading volume could decline.

The trading market for our common stock depends in part on the research and reports that securities or
industry analysts publish about us or our business. If no or few securities or industry analysts cover our company,
the trading price for our common stock would be negatively impacted. If one or more of the analysts who covers
us downgrades our stock or publishes incorrect or unfavorable research about our business, our common stock
price would likely decline. If one or more of these analysts ceases coverage of our company or fails to publish
reports on us regularly, demand for our common stock could decrease, which could cause our common stock
price or trading volume to decline.
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Our principal stockholders hold a controlling interest in our common stock and may make business decisions
with which you disagree and which may adversely affect the value of an investment in the Company.

As of January 30, 2015, the parties to an Amended and Restated Stockholders Agreement (the
“Stockholders Agreement”), which include Chad Richison, Shannon Rowe, William X. Kerber, III, Jeffrey D.
York, Robert J. Levenson and the Estate of Richard Aiello and certain of their affiliates or related entities, and
Welsh, Carson, Anderson & Stowe X, L.P. (“WCAS X”), WCAS Capital Partners IV, L.P. (“WCAS Capital
IV”), and WCAS Management Corporation (collectively, the “Stockholders Agreement Parties”), beneficially
owned or controlled, directly or indirectly, 40,226,418 shares of common stock in the aggregate equal to
approximately 68.9% of our outstanding shares. As a result of this ownership and the provisions of the
Stockholders Agreement WCAS X, WCAS Capital IV and WCAS Management Corporation and certain of their
affiliated funds (collectively, “WCAS Funds” or “Welsh, Carson, Anderson & Stowe”) will have the ability to
control matters submitted to our stockholders for approval, including the election and removal of directors,
amendments to our certificate of incorporation and bylaws and the approval of any business combination. These
actions may be taken even if they are opposed by other stockholders. This concentration of ownership may also
have the effect of delaying or preventing a change of control of our company or discouraging others from making
tender offers for our shares, which could prevent our stockholders from receiving a premium for their shares.

Some of these persons or entities may have interests different than yours. For example, because many of
these stockholders purchased their shares at prices substantially below the current market price of our common
stock and have held their shares for a longer period, they may be more interested in selling the Company to an
acquirer than other investors or may want us to pursue strategies that deviate from the interests of other
stockholders.

We are deemed a “controlled company” and, as a result, will qualify for, and intend to rely on, exemptions
from certain corporate governance requirements.

The Stockholders Agreement Parties currently own more than a majority of our outstanding shares of
common stock. So long as such persons collectively own a majority of our outstanding shares of common stock,
we will be a “controlled company” within the meaning of corporate governance standards of the NYSE. Under
those standards, a company of which more than 50% of the voting power for the election of directors is held by
another company or group is a “controlled company” and need not comply with certain requirements, including
(1) the requirement that a majority of the board of directors consist of independent directors, (2) the requirement
that there be a nominating and corporate governance committee composed entirely of independent directors with
a written charter addressing the committee’s purpose and responsibilities, (3) the requirement that there be a
compensation committee composed entirely of independent directors with a written charter addressing the
committee’s purpose and responsibilities and (4) the requirement of an annual performance evaluation of the
nominating/corporate governance and compensation committees. We may rely on any of these exemptions for so
long as we are a “controlled company.” As a result, we will not have a majority of independent directors on our
board of directors, and our compensation committee does not consist entirely of independent directors. If we are
no longer eligible to rely on the controlled company exception, we intend to comply with all applicable corporate
governance requirements, but we will be able to rely on phase-in periods for certain of these requirements in
accordance with the NYSE’s rules. Accordingly, our stockholders may not have the same protections afforded to
stockholders of companies that are subject to all NYSE corporate governance requirements.

The issuance of additional stock in connection with acquisitions, our stock incentive plans, warrants or
otherwise will dilute all other stockholders.

Our certificate of incorporation authorizes us to issue up to one hundred million shares of common stock
and up to ten million shares of preferred stock with such rights and preferences as may be determined by our
board of directors. Subject to compliance with applicable rules and regulations, we may issue all of these shares
that are not already outstanding without any action or approval by our stockholders. We intend to continue to
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evaluate strategic acquisitions in the future. We may pay for such acquisitions, partly or in full, through the
issuance of additional equity securities.

Any issuance of shares in connection with an acquisition, the exercise of stock options or warrants, the
award of shares of restricted stock or otherwise would dilute the percentage ownership held by our existing
stockholders.

We do not intend to pay dividends for the foreseeable future.

We currently intend to retain any future earnings to finance the operation and expansion of our business, and
we do not expect to declare or pay any dividends in the foreseeable future. Consequently, stockholders must rely
on sales of their common stock after price appreciation, which may never occur, as the only way to realize any
future gains on their investment.

Anti-takeover provisions in our charter documents and Delaware law may delay or prevent an acquisition of
our company.

Our certificate of incorporation, bylaws and Delaware law contain provisions that may have the effect of
delaying or preventing a change in control of us or changes in our management. These provisions, alone or
together, could delay or prevent hostile takeovers and changes in control or changes in our management.

Any provision of our certificate of incorporation, bylaws or Delaware law that has the effect of delaying or
deterring a change in control could limit the opportunity for our stockholders to receive a premium for their
shares of our common stock, and could affect the price that some investors are willing to pay for our common
stock.

Our reported financial results may be adversely affected by changes in accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States.

Generally accepted accounting principles in the United States are subject to interpretation by the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”), the SEC and various bodies formed to promulgate and interpret
appropriate accounting principles. A change in these principles or interpretations could have a significant effect
on our reported financial results, and could affect the reporting of transactions completed before the
announcement of a change.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

Item 2. Properties

Our corporate headquarters is located in Oklahoma City, Oklahoma on a 170,000 square foot corporate
campus, we also lease a 2,271 square foot off-site disaster recovery facility located in downtown Oklahoma City.
We own over 30 acres in Oklahoma City upon which our facilities are located. We also own and operate a 1,500
square foot fully redundant data center located at our corporate headquarters in Oklahoma, and lease a 16,870
square foot corporate campus in Dallas, Texas that includes an approximately 300 square foot fully redundant
data center.

We also lease offices in Arizona, California, Colorado, Florida, Georgia, Illinois, Indiana, Maryland,
Massachusetts, Michigan, Minnesota, Missouri, New Jersey, New York, North Carolina, Ohio, Oklahoma,
Oregon, Pennsylvania, Texas, Tennessee, Virginia and Washington. We believe that these facilities are suitable
for our current operations and upon the expiration of the terms of the leases we believe we could renew these
leases or find suitable space elsewhere on acceptable terms.
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings

On September 23, 2014, in anticipation of an alleged trademark infringement claim, we filed a complaint
against National Financial Partners Corp. in the United States District Court for the Western District of
Oklahoma (Civil Action No. 5:14-cv-01029-R) seeking a declaratory judgment that we have not engaged in any
trademark infringement or unfair competition in connection with the use of our logo. On September 23, 2014,
National Financial Partners Corp. filed a complaint against us in the United States District Court for the Northern
District of Illinois (Civil Action No. 1:14-cv-07424). The complaint alleges trademark infringement, unfair
competition, deceptive trade practices, consumer fraud and deceptive business practices related to the adoption
and use of our logo and seeks preliminary and permanent injunctions prohibiting us from continued infringement
as well as money damages, including an accounting for sales and profits, attorneys’ fees and disgorgement of
profits. On October 16, 2014, National Financial Partners Corp. filed a motion to dismiss the action pending in
the Western District of Oklahoma. On October 20, 2014, we filed a motion to transfer the action from the
Northern District of Illinois to the Western District of Oklahoma, and a memorandum in support of the motion to
transfer, in the Northern District of Illinois. On December 12, 2014, the United States District Court for the
Western District of Oklahoma granted National Financial Partners Corp.’s motion to dismiss. National Financial
Partners Corp. has moved for an order preliminarily enjoining us from using our logo in the Northern District of
Illinois. On January 5, 2015, we filed an answer, affirmative defenses and counterclaim in the Northern District
of Illinois denying the material allegations in National Financial Corp.’s complaint and seeking a declaratory
judgment that we have not engaged in any trademark infringement with respect to the use of our logo. On
February 15, 2015, the Northern District of Illinois denied our motion to transfer the venue and scheduled the
lawsuit for trial in the Northern District of Illinois in February 2016. The Northern District of Illinois has not yet
ruled on National Financial Partners Corp.’s motion for a preliminary injunction. The Northern District of Illinois
will set a briefing schedule on the motion filed by NFP asking the Court to enter a preliminary injunction
prohibiting our use of our logo pending the outcome of the action. NFP’s motion for a preliminary injuction will
be heard in the Western District of Oklahoma. We intend to vigorously defend this litigation. In the event that a
court ultimately determines that we have infringed any of the asserted trademarks or grants National Financial
Partners Corp.’s motion for a preliminary injunction, we may be subject to damages, which may include treble
damages, be enjoined from using our current logo while the parties are litigating the merits of the claims or be
required to modify our logo and/or undergo a rebranding of our solution and applications. We cannot predict with
any degree of certainty the outcome of the litigation or determine the extent of any potential liability or damages.

We are involved in various other legal proceedings in the ordinary course of business. Although we cannot
predict the outcome of these proceedings, legal matters are subject to inherent uncertainties and there exists the
possibility that the ultimate resolution of these matters could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

None.
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PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrants Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issues

Price Range of Common Stock

Our common stock is traded on the NYSE under the symbol “PAYC.” Our initial public offering was priced
at $15.00 per share on April 14, 2014. The following table sets forth for the periods indicated the high and low
intra-day sale prices per share of our common stock as reported on the NYSE:

High Low

Fiscal Year 2014:
Second Quarter (from April 15, 2014) $17.92 $13.01
Third Quarter $19.24 $12.28
Fourth Quarter $29.42 $14.32

On January 30, 2015, the last reported sale price of our common stock on the NYSE was $26.17 per share.
As of January 30, 2015, we had 212 holders of record of our common stock. The actual number of stockholders
is greater than this number of record holders, and includes stockholders who are beneficial owners, but whose
shares are held in street name by brokers and other nominees. This number of holders of record also does not
include stockholders whose shares may be held in trust by other entities.

Dividends

We do not currently plan to pay a regular dividend on our common stock. The declaration, amount and
payment of any future dividends on shares of common stock will be at the sole discretion of our board of
directors and we may reduce or discontinue entirely the payment of such dividends at any time. Our board of
directors may take into account general and economic conditions, our financial condition and operating results,
our available cash and current and anticipated cash needs, capital requirements, contractual, legal, tax and
regulatory restrictions and implications of the payment of dividends by us to our stockholders or by our
subsidiaries to us, and such other factors as our board of directors may deem relevant. While there are no
restrictions that currently apply under the 2021 Consolidated Loan, the 2021 Consolidated Loan prohibits the
payment of dividends if an event of default exists under the loan. In addition, any future debt agreements that we
may enter into the future may prohibit the payment of dividends.

We are a holding company that has no material assets other than our ownership of all of the outstanding
Series B Preferred Units of Holdings and the outstanding capital stock of WCAS Holdings and WCAS CP IV
Blocker, Inc. (“CP IV Blocker”). In the event that we decide to pay dividends in the future, we intend to cause
Holdings to make distributions to us in an amount sufficient to cover cash dividends, if any, declared by us. Any
financing arrangements that we enter into in the future may include restrictive covenants that limit our or our
subsidiaries’ ability to pay dividends.

In April 2013 and December 2013, Holdings paid cash distributions of $1.8 million and $4.0 million,
respectively, to its common unit holders and Series A Preferred unit holders for the payment of taxes.

Equity Compensation Plan Table

The following table includes information as of December 31, 2014 for our equity compensation plans:

Plan Category

Number of securities
to be issued upon

exercise of
outstanding options,
warrants and rights

Weighted-average
exercise price of

outstanding options,
warrants and rights

Number of securities
remaining for future
issuance under equity
compensation plans

Equity compensation plans approved by security holders . . . . . — — 3,293,534(1)
Equity compensation plans not approved by security

holders . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — —

(1) Included in this amount are 3,293,534 shares that are available for future issuance under the 2014 Plan.
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Performance Graph

Notwithstanding any statement to the contrary in any of our filings with the SEC, the following performance
graph shall not be deemed “filed” with the SEC for purposes of Section 18 of the Exchange Act or “soliciting
material” under the Exchange Act and shall not be incorporated by reference into any such filings irrespective of
any general incorporation language contained in such filing.

The following graph compares the total cumulative stockholder return on our common stock with the total
cumulative return of the S&P 500 Index and the S&P 1500 Application Software Index during the period
commencing on April 15, 2014, the initial trading day of our common stock, and ending on December 31, 2014.
The graph assumes that $100 was invested at the beginning of the period in our common stock and in each of the
comparative indices, and the reinvestment of any dividends. Historical stock price performance should not be
relied upon as an indication of future stock price performance.
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Paycom Software, Inc. S&P 500 S&P 1500 Application Software

Company/Index

Base
Period

4/15/2014 6/30/2014 9/30/2014 12/31/2014

Paycom Software, Inc. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $100 $ 95.05 $107.88 $171.53
S&P 500 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $100 $105.23 $106.42 $111.67
S&P 1500 Application Software . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $100 $105.03 $105.22 $111.38
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

Our selected consolidated financial data set forth below should be read together with Part II, Item 7,
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and our consolidated
financial statements and the related notes thereto, which are included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form
10-K.

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012 2011

(amounts in thousands, expect per share data)
Consolidated statement of income data:
Revenues
Recurring $ 148,207 $ 105,560 $ 75,420 $ 56,382
Implementation and other 2,722 2,041 1,390 824

Total revenues 150,929 107,601 76,810 57,206

Cost of revenues (1)

Operating expenses 24,694 19,070 14,895 12,287
Depreciation 2,624 1,821 1,431 987

Total cost of revenues 27,318 20,891 16,326 13,274

Administrative expenses (1)

Sales and marketing 63,547 42,681 29,255 22,244
Research and development 4,325 2,146 1,632 1,225
General and administrative 35,501 28,729 19,372 14,650
Depreciation and amortization 4,538 3,682 4,092 4,300

Total administrative expenses 107,911 77,238 54,351 42,419

Total operating expenses 135,229 98,129 70,677 55,693

Operating income 15,700 9,472 6,133 1,513
Interest expense (3,421) (9,272) (6,977) (134)
Net loss on early repayment of debt (4,044) — — —
Other income, net 1,421 1,199 354 108

Income (loss) before income taxes 9,656 1,399 (490) 1,487

Provision (benefit) for income taxes 3,993 792 (84) 601

Net income (loss) 5,663 607 (406) 886
Net income (loss) attributable to the noncontrolling

interest — 6 (3) —

Net income (loss) attributable to the Company $ 5,663 $ 601 $ (403) $ 886

Unaudited pro forma additional income tax expense
(benefit) — (137) (14) 35

Unaudited pro forma net income (loss) $ 5,663 $ 738 $ (389) $ 851

Net income (loss) per share, basic 0.11 0.01 (0.01) 0.02
Net income (loss) per share, diluted 0.11 0.01 (0.01) 0.02
Unaudited pro forma net income (loss) per share, basic 0.11 0.02 (0.01) 0.02
Unaudited pro forma net income (loss) per share,

diluted 0.11 0.02 (0.01) 0.02
Weighted average shares outstanding:
Basic 49,784,154 45,476,895 44,771,559 44,560,053
Diluted 51,857,309 48,062,075 44,771,559 45,411,371
Unaudited pro forma weighted average shares

outstanding:
Basic 49,784,154 45,476,895 44,771,559 44,560,053
Diluted 51,857,309 48,062,075 44,771,559 45,411,371
Other financial data:
EBITDA(2) $ 20,239 $ 16,174 $ 12,010 $ 6,908

Adjusted EBITDA(2) $ 26,999 $ 19,855 $ 12,829 $ 7,073

Non-GAAP net income(2) $ 9,628 $ 2,689 $ 266 $ 945
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As of December 31,

2014 2013 2012

(in thousands)
Consolidated balance sheet data:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 25,144 $ 13,362 $ 13,435
Restricted cash 371 369 368
Working capital (deficit)(3) 16,785 (4,022) 9,283
Property, plant and equipment, net 47,919 38,671 25,139
Total assets 798,942 575,478 430,041
Deferred revenue 19,337 12,572 8,392
Long-term debt, less current portion 26,123 11,545 11,959
Long-term debt to related parties — 60,875 60,633
Additional paid in capital 67,937 33,978 23,577
Retained earnings (accumulated deficit) 5,663 (29,349) (14,249)
Total stockholders’ equity 74,138 5,083 9,776

(1) Stock-based compensation included in the consolidated statements of income data for the years ended
December 31, 2014, 2013, 2012 and 2011 as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012 2011

(in thousands)
Operating expenses $ 32 $222 $ 87 $ 36
Sales and marketing 166 114 83 57
Research and development 16 345 100 25
General and administrative 498 253 233 47

$712 $934 $503 $165

(2) We use EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA and non-GAAP net income, as supplemental measures to review and
assess our performance and for planning purposes. We define: (i) EBITDA as net income (loss), plus interest
expense, taxes and depreciation and amortization, (ii) Adjusted EBITDA as net income (loss), plus interest
expense, taxes, depreciation and amortization, stock-based compensation expense, net loss on early
extinguishment of debt and certain transaction expenses that are not core to our operations and (iii) non-GAAP
net income as pro forma net income (loss), plus tax adjusted stock-based compensation expense, tax adjusted
net loss on early extinguishment of debt and certain tax adjusted transaction expenses that are not core to our
operations. EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA and non-GAAP net income are metrics that we believe are useful to
investors in evaluating our performance and facilitating comparison with other peer companies, many of which
use similar non-GAAP financial measures to supplement results under accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”).

EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA and non-GAAP net income are not measures of financial performance under U.S.
GAAP, and should not be considered a substitute for net income (loss) or pro forma net income (loss), which
we consider to be the most directly comparable U.S. GAAP measures. EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA and non-
GAAP net income have limitations as analytical tools, and when assessing our operating performance, you
should not consider EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA or non-GAAP net income in isolation, or as a substitute for
net income (loss), pro forma net income (loss) or other condensed consolidated statements of income data
prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP. EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA and non-GAAP net income may not be
comparable to similar titled measures of other companies and other companies may not calculate such
measures in the same manner as we do.

(3) Working capital (deficit) is defined as current assets, excluding restricted cash, less current liabilities,
excluding current portion of deferred revenue
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

You should read the following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations in
conjunction with the audited and unaudited consolidated financial statements and related notes included
elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The following discussion contains forward-looking statements
that are subject to risks and uncertainties. See Part I “Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements” for
a discussion of the uncertainties, risks, and assumptions associated with those statements. Actual results could
differ materially from those discussed in or implied by forward- looking statements as a result of various factors,
including those discussed below and elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, particularly in the section
entitled “Risk Factors.” Unless we state otherwise or the context otherwise requires, the terms “we,” “us,”
“our” and the “Company” refer, prior to the 2014 Reorganization (as defined below), to Paycom Payroll
Holdings, LLC and its consolidated subsidiaries (“Holdings”) and WCAS Paycom Holdings, Inc. (“WCAS
Holdings”) collectively, and, after the 2014 Reorganization, to Paycom Software, Inc. (“Software”) and its
consolidated subsidiaries. All amounts presented, other than share and per share amounts, are presented in
thousands unless otherwise noted.

Overview

We are a leading provider of a comprehensive, cloud-based HCM software solution delivered as SaaS. We
provide functionality and data analytics that businesses need to manage the complete employment life cycle from
recruitment to retirement. Our solution requires virtually no customization and is based on a core system of
record maintained in a single database for all HCM functions, including talent acquisition, time and labor
management, payroll, talent management and HR management applications. Our user-friendly software allows
for easy adoption of our solution by employees, enabling self-management of their HCM activities in the cloud,
which reduces the administrative burden on employers and increases employee productivity.

We serve a diverse client base in terms of size and industry. We have over 12,000 clients, none of which
constituted more than one-half of one percent of our revenues for the year ended December 31, 2014. We stored
data for more than 1.6 million persons employed by our clients during the year ended December 31, 2014.

Our revenues are primarily generated through our sales force that solicits new clients and our client relations
representatives (“CRRs”), who sell new applications to existing clients. We have 34 sales teams located in 23
states and plan to open additional sales offices to further expand our presence in the U.S. market. In recent years,
we have opened approximately three to four new sales offices in new cities per year and believe that we can open
eight to twelve additional sales offices over the next two years. During the year ended December 31, 2014, we
opened five new sales offices, with one sales office located in each of Baltimore, Indianapolis, Philadelphia,
Portland and Silicon Valley. To date, during 2015, we opened five new sales offices, with one new sales office
located in each of Brooklyn, Cincinnati, Kansas City, Nashville and Pittsburgh.

Our continued growth depends on attracting new clients through geographic expansion, further penetration
of our existing markets and the introduction of new applications to our existing client base. We also expect a
portion of our growth to generally mirror improvements in the labor market. Our principal marketing programs
include telemarketing and email campaigns, search engine marketing methods and national radio advertising.

During the last three years, we have developed several new applications. Our ability to continue to develop
new applications and to improve existing applications will enable us to increase revenues in the future, and the
number of our new applications adopted by our clients has been a significant factor in our revenue growth over
the last three years.

Recent Developments

Follow-On Offering

On January 21, 2015, we closed our follow-on public offering, whereby 6,422,750 shares of our common
stock were sold to the public by certain selling stockholders at a public offering price of $22.50 per share.

39



Initial Public Offering

On April 21, 2014, we closed our initial public offering whereby an aggregate of 7,641,750 shares of our
common stock were sold to the public (including 4,606,882 shares of common stock issued and sold by us and
3,034,868 shares of common stock sold by certain selling stockholders) at a public offering price of $15.00 per
share. We did not receive any proceeds from the sale of shares by the selling stockholders. The total gross
proceeds we received from the offering were $69.1 million. After deducting underwriting discounts and
commissions and offering expenses payable by us, the aggregate net proceeds we received totaled approximately
$64.3 million. We used all of the net proceeds from the offering, together with approximately $3.3 million from
existing cash, for the repayment in full of the 10% Senior Note due 2022 (the “2022 Note”) issued by us to
WCAS Capital IV and the 14% Note due 2017 issued by WCAS Holdings (the “2017 Note”).

The 2014 Reorganization

Software and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Payroll Software Merger Sub, LLC (“Merger Sub”) were formed
as Delaware entities on October 31, 2013 and December 23, 2013, respectively, in anticipation of an initial public
offering (“IPO”) and were wholly-owned subsidiaries of Holdings prior to December 31, 2013.

On January 1, 2014, we consummated a reorganization pursuant to which: (i) affiliates of Welsh, Carson,
Anderson & Stowe, contributed WCAS Holdings and CP IV Blocker, which collectively owned all of the Series
A Preferred Units of Holdings, to Software in exchange for shares of common stock of Software, and (ii) the
owners of outstanding Series B Preferred Units of Holdings contributed their Series B Preferred Units of
Holdings to Software in exchange for shares of common stock of Software. Immediately after these
contributions, Merger Sub merged with and into Holdings with Holdings surviving the merger. Upon
consummation of the merger, the remaining holders of outstanding common and incentive units of Holdings
received shares of common stock of Software for their common and incentive units by operation of Delaware law
and Holdings’ ownership interest in Software was cancelled. Outstanding common units, Series B Preferred
Units and WCAS Holdings and CP IV Blocker were contributed to Software in exchange for, or converted into,
45,708,573 shares of common stock and 8,121,101 shares of restricted stock of Software. Prior to the
reorganization, WCAS Holdings held Series C Preferred Units of Holdings in the amount of $46.2 million and
WCAS Holdings had a note payable to a related party due April 3, 2017, in the amount of $46.2 million.
Following these transactions, all outstanding Series C Preferred Units of Holdings were eliminated in an
intercompany transaction between Holdings and WCAS Holdings, and we assumed the 2017 Note. Following the
reorganization, Software became a holding company with its principal assets being the Series B Preferred Units
of Holdings and the outstanding capital stock of WCAS Holdings and CP IV Blocker (collectively, the “2014
Reorganization”).

Software’s acquisition of WCAS Holdings and Holdings in the 2014 Reorganization represented
transactions under common control and were required to be retrospectively applied to the financial statements for
all prior periods when the financial statements were issued for a period that included the date the transactions
occurred. This includes a retrospective presentation for all equity related disclosures, including share, per share,
and restricted stock disclosures, which have been revised to reflect the effects of the 2014 Reorganization.
Therefore, our consolidated financial statements are presented as if WCAS Holdings and Holdings were our
wholly-owned subsidiaries in periods prior to the 2014 Reorganization. The acquisition of CP IV Blocker was
not deemed to be a reorganization under common control and therefore our historical consolidated financial
statements include the ownership of a minority equity interest in CP IV Blocker, which was eliminated upon the
acquisition of CP IV Blocker in the 2014 Reorganization on January 1, 2014.

Trends, Opportunities and Challenges

While we currently derive most of our revenues from payroll processing, we expect an increasing
percentage of our recurring revenues to come from our additional HCM applications over time. Our payroll
application is the foundation of our solution and all of our clients are required to utilize this application in order
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to access our other applications. As a result of our evolving revenue mix, coupled with the unique client benefits
that our solution provides (e.g., enabling our clients to scale the number of HCM applications that they use on an
as-needed basis), we are presented with a variety of opportunities, challenges and risks.

We generate revenues from (i) fixed amounts charged per billing period plus a fee per employee or
transaction processed or (ii) fixed amounts charged per billing period. We do not require clients to enter into
long-term contractual commitments with us. Our billing period varies by client based on when they pay their
employees, which is either weekly, bi-weekly, semi-monthly or monthly.

We do not have a traditional subscription-based revenue model and do not enter into long-term contractual
commitments with our clients. We believe that the traditional subscription model hinders the buying decision by
requiring clients to make significant commitments at inception, as well as at the end of each subscription term.
By allowing clients to discontinue the use of our solution with 30 days’ notice, our team of trained specialists
must focus on providing the best client service. In contrast, a long-term contract often forces a client to continue
using a product that may not entirely fit its needs or, in some cases, incur expensive termination fees. Because of
our sales model and personalized service, we have maintained high client satisfaction, as evidenced by an
average annual revenue retention rate of 91% from existing clients for the three years ended December 31, 2014.

For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, our gross margin was approximately 82%, 81%
and 79%, respectively. We expect changes in our revenue mix to gradually improve gross margin over time as
sales of applications other than payroll processing increase as a percentage of revenues, given that our current
gross margin for our other HCM applications is higher than our gross margin for payroll processing. We expect
that our total gross margin will gradually improve over time as (i) we add additional clients, (ii) our existing
clients deploy additional HCM applications and (iii) we reduce our costs of revenues and administrative expenses
as a percentage of total revenues.

Growing our business has also resulted in, and will continue to result in, substantial investment in sales
professionals, operating expenses, systems development and programming costs and general and administrative
expenses, which has and will continue to increase our expenses. We intend to obtain new clients by (i) continuing
to expand our presence in metropolitan areas where we currently have an existing sales office through adding
sales teams or offices and increasing the number of our sales professionals and (ii) opening sales offices in new
metropolitan areas. Our ability to increase revenues and improve operating results depends on our ability to add
new clients.

As we have organically grown our operations and increased the number of our applications, the average size
of our clients has also grown significantly. Based on our total revenues, we have grown at an approximately 38%
CAGR from January 1, 2009 through December 31, 2014. Because we charge our clients on a per employee basis
for certain services we provide, any increase or decrease in the number of employees that our clients have will
have a positive or negative impact on our results of operations. Our solution requires no adjustment to serve
larger clients. We believe larger employers represent a substantial opportunity to increase the number of potential
clients and to increase our revenue per client, with limited incremental cost to us.

Throughout our history, we have built strong relationships with our clients. As the HCM needs of our clients
evolve, we believe that we are well-positioned to gain additional share of the HCM spending of our clients, and
we believe this opportunity is significant. To be successful, we must continue to demonstrate the operational and
economic benefits of our solution, as well as effectively hire, train, motivate and retain qualified personnel and
executive officers.
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Key Metrics

In addition to the U.S. GAAP metrics that we regularly monitor, we also monitor the following metrics to
evaluate our business, measure our performance and identify trends affecting our business:

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

(dollars in thousands)

Key performance indicators:
Clients 12,775 10,792 9,233
Clients (based on parent company grouping) 7,945 6,788 5,904
Sales teams 31 26 23
Annualized New Recurring Revenue $59,629 $42,063 $27,686
Revenue retention rate 91% 91% 91%

• Clients. When we calculate the number of clients at period end, we treat client accounts with separate
taxpayer identification numbers as separate clients, which often separates client accounts that are affiliated
with the same parent organization. We track the number of our clients to provide an accurate gauge of the
size of our business. Unless we state otherwise or the context otherwise requires, references to clients
throughout this Annual Report on Form 10-K refer to this metric.

• Clients (based on parent company grouping). When we calculate the number of clients based on parent company
grouping at period end, we combine client accounts that have identified the same person(s) as their decision-
maker regardless of whether the client accounts have separate taxpayer identification numbers, which often
combines client accounts that are affiliated with the same parent organization. We track the number of our clients
based on parent company grouping to provide an alternate measure of the size of our business and clients.

• Sales Teams. We monitor our sales professionals by the number of sales teams at period end and each team
is comprised of approximately six to nine sales professionals. Certain larger metropolitan areas can support
more than one sales team. We believe that the number of sales teams is an indicator of potential revenues for
future periods.

• Annualized New Recurring Revenue. While we do not enter into long-term contractual commitments with
our clients, we monitor annualized new recurring revenue as we believe it is an indicator of potential
revenues for future periods. Annualized new recurring revenue is an estimate based on the annualized
amount of the first full month of revenues attributable to new clients that were added or existing clients that
purchased additional applications during the period presented. Annualized new recurring revenue only
includes revenues from these clients who have used our solution for at least one month during the period.
Since annualized new recurring revenue is only recorded after a client uses our solution for one month, it
includes revenue that has been recognized in historical periods.

• Revenue Retention Rate. Our average annual revenue retention rate tracks the percentage of revenue that
we retain from our existing clients. We monitor this metric because it is an indicator of client satisfaction
and revenues for future periods.

Components of Results of Operations

Sources of Revenues

Revenues are comprised of recurring revenues, and implementation and other revenues. Recurring revenues
are recognized in the period services are rendered. Implementation and other revenues includes implementation
revenues that are recorded as deferred revenues and recognized over the life of the client which is estimated to be
ten years and other revenues which are recognized upon shipment of time clocks. Implementation and other
revenue comprised approximately 1.8% of our total revenues for the year ended December 31, 2014. We expect
our revenues to increase as we introduce new applications, expand our client base and renew and expand
relationships with existing clients. As a percentage of total revenues, we expect our mix of recurring revenues,
and implementation and other revenues to remain relatively constant.
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Recurring. Recurring revenues include fees for our talent acquisition, time and labor management, payroll,
talent management and HR management applications as well as fees charged for delivery of client payroll checks
and reports. These revenues are derived from: (i) fixed amounts charged per billing period plus a fee per
employee or transaction processed or (ii) fixed amounts charged per billing period. Because recurring revenues
are based in part on fees for use of our applications and the delivery of checks and reports that are levied on a
per-employee basis, our recurring revenues increase as our clients hire more employees.

Implementation and Other. Implementation and other revenues are comprised of implementation fees for the
deployment of our solution and other revenue from sales of time clocks as part of our time and attendance
services. Non-refundable implementation fees which are charged to new clients are generated at inception for a
new client and upon the addition of certain incremental applications for existing clients. These fees range from
10% to 30% of the annualized value of the transaction.

Expenses

Cost of Revenues. Cost of revenues consists of expenses related to hosting and supporting our applications,
hardware costs, systems support and technology and depreciation of certain owned computer equipment. These
costs include employee-related expenses for client support personnel, bank charges for processing ACH
transactions, certain implementation expenses, along with delivery charges and paper costs. They also include
our cost for time clocks sold and ongoing technology and support costs related to our systems. Depreciation of
owned computer equipment is allocated based upon an estimate of assets used to host and support our
applications. We expect our cost of revenues to increase in absolute dollars as we continue to invest in new
applications and expand our client base, although we expect our overall cost of revenues to gradually decrease as
a percentage of total revenues over time.

Administrative Expenses. Administrative expenses consist of sales and marketing, research and
development, general and administrative and depreciation and amortization. Sales and marketing expenses
consist primarily of employee-related expenses for our direct sales and marketing staff, commissions, bonuses,
marketing expenses and other related costs. Research and development expenses consist primarily of employee-
related expenses for our development staff, net of capitalized software costs for internally developed software.
We expect to grow our research and development efforts as we continue to broaden our payroll and HR solution
offerings and extend our technological solutions by investing in the development of new applications and
introducing them to new and existing clients. General and administrative expenses include employee-related
expenses for finance and accounting, legal, human resources and management information systems personnel,
legal costs, professional fees and other corporate expenses. Depreciation and amortization expenses include
depreciation of owned computer equipment allocated based upon an estimate of assets used to support the
selling, general and administrative functions, as well as amortization of intangible assets. We expect our
administrative expenses to increase in absolute dollars due to additional costs associated with accounting,
compliance, investor relations, and other costs associated with being a public company, although our
administrative expenses may fluctuate as a percentage of total revenues.

Loss on Repayment of Debt

During 2014, we wrote off $4.1 million related to the discount associated with the repayment of certain
related party debt.

Interest Expense

Interest expense includes interest on our corporate headquarters and related party debt. The decrease in
interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2014, as compared to the year ended December 31, 2013 is
primarily due to our use of the net proceeds from our initial public offering and existing cash for the repayment
in full, of the 2022 Note and the 2017 Note in April 2014.

Other Income, net

Other income, net includes the gain or loss on the sale of fixed assets, interest on funds held for clients that
are earned primarily on funds that are collected in advance of either the applicable due date for payroll tax

43



submissions or the applicable disbursement date for employee payment services and change in fair value of the
derivative liability relating to the related party debt. We typically invest funds held for clients in money market
accounts and certificates of deposit until they are paid to the applicable tax or regulatory agencies or to client
employees. These collections from clients are typically disbursed from one to 30 days after receipt, with some
funds being held for up to 120 days. We expect that interest on funds held for clients in other income will
increase as we increase our cash and cash equivalents and increase our funds held from clients as we introduce
new applications, expand our client base and renew and expand relationships with existing clients.

Results of Operations

Years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012

The following tables set forth selected consolidated statement of income data and such data as a percentage
of total revenues for each of the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

(in thousands)

Consolidated statement of income data:
Revenues:

Recurring $148,207 $105,560 $75,420
Implementation and other 2,722 2,041 1,390

Total revenues 150,929 107,601 76,810
Expenses:
Cost of revenues:

Operating expenses 24,694 19,070 14,895
Depreciation 2,624 1,821 1,431

Total cost of revenues 27,318 20,891 16,326
Administrative expenses:

Sales and marketing 63,547 42,681 29,255
Research and development 4,325 2,146 1,632
General and administrative 35,501 28,729 19,372
Depreciation and amortization 4,538 3,682 4,092

Total administrative expenses 107,911 77,238 54,351

Operating income 15,700 9,472 6,133
Interest expense (3,421) (9,272) (6,977)
Net loss on early repayment of debt (4,044) — —
Other income, net 1,421 1,199 354

Income (loss) before income taxes 9,656 1,399 (490)
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 3,993 792 (84)

Net income (loss) $ 5,663 $ 607 $ (406)

44



Consolidated Statement of Income Data as a Percentage of Revenues

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

Consolidated statement of income data:
Revenues:

Recurring 98.2% 98.1% 98.2%
Implementation and other 1.8 1.9 1.8

Total revenues 100.0 100.0 100.0
Expenses:
Cost of revenues:

Operating expenses 16.4 17.7 19.4
Depreciation 1.7 1.7 1.9

Total cost of revenues 18.1 19.4 21.3
Administrative expenses:

Sales and marketing 42.1 39.7 38.1
Research and development 2.9 2.0 2.1
General and administrative 23.5 26.7 25.2
Depreciation and amortization 3.0 3.4 5.3

Total administrative expenses 71.5 71.8 70.7

Operating income 10.4 8.8 8.0
Interest expense (2.3) (8.6) (9.1)
Net loss on early repayment of debt (2.7) — —
Other income, net 1.0 1.1 0.5

Income (loss) before income taxes 6.4 1.3 (0.6)
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 2.6 0.7 (0.1)

Net income (loss) 3.8% 0.6% (0.5)%

Year ended December 31, 2014 compared to the year ended December 31, 2013 and the year ended
December 31, 2013 compared to the year ended December 31, 2012

Revenues

Year Ended December 31, % Change

2014 2013 2012 2014 v 2013 2013 v 2012

(in thousands)
Recurring $148,207 $105,560 $75,420 40% 40%
Implementation and other 2,722 2,041 1,390 33 47

Total revenues $150,929 $107,601 $76,810 40% 40%

Total revenues were $150.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2014, compared to $107.6 million for
the year ended December 31, 2013, an increase of $43.3 million, or 40%. The increase in revenues was due to a
combination of factors, including (i) the addition of clients in mature sales offices (those offices that have been
open for at least 24 months), (ii) the addition of new clients in more recently opened sales offices, (iii) the
introduction and sale of additional applications to our existing clients and (iv) the growth in the number of
employees of our clients.

Total revenues were $107.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2013, compared to $76.8 million for the
year ended December 31, 2012, an increase of $30.8 million, or 40%. The increase in revenues was due to a
combination of factors, including (i) the addition of clients in mature sales offices (those offices that have been open
for at least 24 months), (ii) the addition of new clients in more recently opened sales offices, (iii) the introduction and
sale of additional applications to our existing clients and (iv) the growth in the number of employees of our clients.
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Expenses

Cost of Revenues

Year Ended December 31, % Change

2014 2013 2012 2014 v 2013 2013 v 2012

(in thousands)

Operating expenses $24,694 $19,070 $14,895 29% 28%
Depreciation 2,624 1,821 1,431 44 27

Total cost of revenues $27,318 $20,891 $16,326 31% 28%

Cost of revenues was $27.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2014, compared to $20.9 million for
the year ended December 31, 2013, an increase of $6.4 million, or 31%. The increase of $6.4 million was due
primarily to increases of $3.8 million in employee costs related to additional operating personnel, $1.0 million in
shipping and paper costs related to increased client count, $0.1 million in increased bank fees related to increased
sales of applications, and $0.1 million of time clock costs, related to increased sales of time clocks. Depreciation
expense increased $0.8 million, primarily due to additional assets purchased.

Cost of revenues was $20.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2013, compared to $16.3 million for
the year ended December 31, 2012, an increase of $4.6 million, or 28%. The increase of $4.6 million was due
primarily to increases of $2.1 million in employee costs related to additional operating personnel, $0.6 million in
bank fees related to increased sales, $0.5 million in shipping and paper costs, $0.5 million in technology
expenses and time clock costs of $0.2 million, related to increased sales of time clocks. Depreciation expense
increased $0.4 million, primarily due to additional assets purchased.

Administrative Expenses

Year Ended December 31, % Change

2014 2013 2012 2014 v 2013 2013 v 2012

(in thousands)

Sales and marketing $ 63,547 $42,681 $29,255 49% 46%
Research and development 4,325 2,146 1,632 102 32
General and administrative 35,501 28,729 19,372 24 48
Depreciation and amortization 4,538 3,682 4,092 23 (10)

Total administrative expenses $107,911 $77,238 $54,351 40% 42%

Total administrative expenses were $107.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2014, compared to
$77.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2013, an increase of $30.7 million, or 40%. Sales and marketing
expenses increased $20.9 million primarily due to a $9.4 million increase in employee-related expenses, resulting
from a 31% increase in the number of personnel, a $6.7 million increase in commission and bonuses, resulting
from increased sales, a $1.7 million increase in rent and building expenses due to the opening of five new offices
and the increase in the number of personnel at existing offices, a $0.8 million increase in sales travel expense due
to the increase in personnel and an increase in marketing expense of $0.8 million primarily due to increased radio
and print advertising. Research and development expenses increased by $2.2 million primarily due to an increase
of 60% in the number of development personnel, along with bonus expense. General and administrative expenses
increased by $6.8 million primarily due to a $4.5 million increase in employee-related expenses, resulting from a
16% increase in the number of personnel and $2.0 million of expenses related to the initial public offering.
Depreciation and amortization increased by $0.9 million due primarily to the completion of our second building
at our corporate headquarters in Oklahoma City in June 2014 and purchases of additional assets.
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Total administrative expenses were $77.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2013, compared to $54.4
million for the year ended December 31, 2012, an increase of $22.8 million, or 42%. Sales and marketing
expenses increased primarily due to a $5.5 million increase in employee-related expenses, resulting from a 28.6%
increase in the number of personnel, a $4.6 million increase in commission and bonuses, resulting from increased
sales and an increase in marketing expense of $1.1 million primarily due to increased radio and print advertising.
Research and development expenses increased primarily due to an increase of 55.0% in the number of
development personnel, along with bonus expense. General and administrative expenses increased primarily due
to a $4.1 million increase in employee-related expenses, resulting from a 52.5% increase in the number of
personnel, along with $2.7 million of expenses related to our initial public offering.

Expenditures for software developed or obtained for internal use are capitalized and amortized over a three-
year period on a straight-line basis. The timing of the capitalized expenditures may affect the amount of
development costs expensed in any given period. The table below sets forth the amounts of capitalized and
expensed research and development expenses for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012.

Year Ended December 31, % Change

2014 2013 2012 2014 v 2013 2013 v 2012

(in thousands)

Capitalized portion of research and development $2,204 $1,238 $ 613 78% 102%
Expensed portion of research and development 4,325 2,146 1,632 102 32

Total research and development $6,529 $3,384 $2,245 93% 51%
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Quarterly Results of Operations

The following table sets forth selected unaudited quarterly condensed consolidated statements of income
data for each of the 12 quarters for the three years ended December 31, 2014. The information for each of these
quarters has been prepared on the same basis as the audited annual consolidated financial statements included
elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and, in the opinion of management, includes all adjustments,
which includes only normal recurring adjustments, necessary for the fair presentation of the results of operations
for these periods in accordance with U.S. GAAP. This data should be read in conjunction with our audited
consolidated financial statements and related notes included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
These quarterly operating results are not necessarily indicative of our operating results for a full year or any
future period (dollars in thousands).

Three Months Ended

Dec 31,
2014

Sep 30,
2014

Jun 30,
2014

Mar 31,
2014

Dec 31,
2013

Sep 30,
2013

Jun 30,
2013

Mar 31,
2013

Dec 31,
2012

Sep 30,
2012

Jun 30,
2012

Mar 31,
2012

Consolidated
statement of
income data:

Revenues
Recurring $43,177 $35,910 $32,666 $36,454 $29,752 $25,210 $23,394 $27,204 $20,836 $18,245 $16,817 $19,522
Implementation and

other 863 688 640 531 528 620 520 373 471 323 275 321

Total revenues 44,040 36,598 33,306 36,985 30,280 25,830 23,914 27,577 21,307 18,568 17,092 19,843

Cost of revenues
Operating expenses 6,847 5,798 5,757 6,292 5,437 4,846 4,353 4,434 3,966 3,746 3,366 3,817
Depreciation 748 638 608 630 501 494 415 411 390 367 342 332

Total cost of
revenues 7,595 6,436 6,365 6,922 5,938 5,340 4,768 4,845 4,356 4,113 3,708 4,149

Administrative
expenses

Sales and marketing 19,310 14,856 13,700 15,681 13,768 10,339 8,716 9,858 8,479 6,860 6,650 7,266
Research and

development 1,447 1,059 937 882 829 538 324 455 349 361 542 380
General and

administrative 9,685 8,410 8,138 9,268 9,878 6,815 6,040 5,996 5,456 4,778 4,803 4,335
Depreciation and

amortization 1,216 1,159 1,072 1,091 966 959 873 884 841 837 1,212 1,202

Total
administrative
expenses 31,658 25,484 23,847 26,922 25,441 18,651 15,953 17,193 15,125 12,836 13,207 13,183

Total
operating
expenses 39,253 31,920 30,212 33,844 31,379 23,991 20,721 22,038 19,481 16,949 16,915 17,332

Operating income
(loss) 4,787 4,678 3,094 3,141 (1,099) 1,839 3,193 5,539 1,826 1,619 177 2,511

Interest expense (342) (338) (674) (2,067) (2,343) (2,329) (2,326) (2,274) (2,327) (2,309) (2,205) (136)
Net loss on early

repayment of debt — — (4,044) — — — — — — — — —
Other income

(expense), net 26 39 587 769 1,059 (133) (338) 611 19 257 65 13

Income (loss) before
income taxes 4,471 4,379 (1,037) 1,843 (2,383) (623) 529 3,876 (482) (433) (1,963) 2,388

Provision (benefit) for
income taxes 1,965 1,689 (444) 783 (419) (199) 169 1,241 (80) (151) (676) 823

Net income (loss) $ 2,506 $ 2,690 $ (593) $ 1,060 $ (1,964) $ (424) $ 360 $ 2,635 $ (402) $ (282) $ (1,287)$ 1,565
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Quarterly Revenues Trends

Excluding changes in quarterly revenues due to seasonal factors, our quarterly revenues generally increased
sequentially for the periods presented due to a combination of factors, including the addition of clients in mature
sales offices (those offices that have been open for at least 24 months), the addition of new clients in more
recently opened sales offices, the introduction and sale of additional applications to our existing clients and the
growth in the number of employees of our clients. In addition, the annual processing of payroll forms were
subject to a one-time price increase in conjunction with increased access and review functionality associated with
these forms in 2012, which resulted in an increase of less than 1% of recurring revenues for the years ended
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012.

There are also seasonal factors that affect our revenues. Recurring revenues include revenues relating to the
annual processing of payroll forms such as Form W-2 and Form 1099, or payroll form revenues. Because these
forms are typically processed in the first quarter of the year, first quarter revenue and margins are generally
higher than subsequent quarters.

Quarterly Expenses Trends

Selling, general and administrative expenses are generally higher in the fourth and first quarters as sales
representatives achieve sales goals throughout the year, resulting in higher commission rates. These sales goals
reset annually on February 1.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents which totaled $25.1 million and $13.4
million as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Our cash and cash equivalents are comprised primarily
of deposit accounts and money market funds. We believe our existing cash and cash equivalents will be sufficient
to meet our working capital and capital expenditure needs over at least the next 12 months.

We have historically financed our operations from cash flows generated from operations, cash from the sale
of debt and equity securities and borrowings under our consolidated loans. Since inception, we have raised
$125.1 million of equity capital, $64.3 million of which was the net proceeds raised in our initial public offering
that closed in April 2014. We have also incurred indebtedness to finance the expansion of our corporate
headquarters, which was completed in June 2014, as well as other previously constructed facilities, and incurred
related party debt as part of a corporate reorganization that occurred in April 2012 (the “April 2012 Corporate
Reorganization”), and the 2014 Reorganization. We may be required to incur additional indebtedness within the
next twelve months to finance the further expansion of our corporate headquarters. As of December 31, 2014, our
only outstanding indebtedness consisted of the 2021 Consolidated Loan, which is discussed in more detail below.

2021 Consolidated Loan. As of December 31, 2014, we had a term note under the 2021 Consolidated Loan
with an outstanding principal amount of $27.0 million due to Kirkpatrick Bank that matures on May 30, 2021.
Under the 2021 Consolidated Loan, interest is payable monthly and accrues at a fixed rate of 4.75% per annum.
The 2021 Consolidated Loan is secured by a mortgage covering our headquarters buildings and certain personal
property relating to our headquarters buildings.

We are required to comply with certain financial and non-financial covenants under the 2021 Consolidated
Loan, including maintaining a debt coverage ratio of EBITDA to indebtedness (defined as current maturities of
long-term debt, interest expense and distributions) greater than 1.5 to 1.0. As of December 31, 2014, we were in
compliance with all of the covenants under the 2021 Consolidated Loan.

Pursuant to the terms of the 2021 Consolidated Loan, we may not, subject to certain exceptions, until
amounts under the 2021 Consolidated Loan are repaid: (i) create any mortgages or liens, (ii) make any loans,
advances or extensions of credit with any affiliate or enter into any other transaction with any affiliate, (iii) lease
any mortgaged property, (iv) make any distributions to members as long as an event of default exists, (v) make
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any material change in methods of accounting, (vi) enter into any sale and leaseback arrangement, (vii) amend,
modify, restate, cancel or terminate our organizational documents, (viii) sell, transfer or convey any mortgaged
property or (ix) incur funded outside debt.

An event of default under the 2021 Consolidated Loan includes, among other events, (i) failure to pay
principal or interest when due, (ii) breaches of certain covenants, (iii) any failure to meet the required financial
covenants and (iv) an institution of a bankruptcy, reorganization, liquidation or receivership.

Cash Flow Analysis

Our cash flows from operating activities have historically been significantly impacted by profitability,
implementation revenue received but deferred, and our investment in sales and marketing to drive growth. Our
ability to meet future liquidity needs will be driven by our operating performance and the extent of continued
investment in our operations. Failure to generate sufficient revenue and related cash flows or to raise additional
capital could have a material adverse effect on our ability to meet our liquidity needs and achieve our business
objectives.

As part of our payroll and payroll tax filing services, we collect funds for federal, state and local
employment taxes from our clients which we remit to the appropriate tax agencies. We invest these funds in
short-term certificates of deposit and money market funds from which we earn interest income during the period
between their receipt and disbursement.

As our business grows, we expect our capital expenditures and our investment activity to continue to increase.
Depending on certain growth opportunities, we may choose to accelerate investments in sales and marketing,
acquisitions, technology and services. Actual future capital requirements will depend on many factors, including our
future revenues, cash from operating activities and the level of expenditures in all areas of our business.

Year ended December 31, 2014 compared to the year ended December 31, 2013 and the year ended
December 31, 2013 compared to the year ended December 31, 2012

The following table summarizes the consolidated statement of cash flows for the years ended December 31,
2014, 2013 and 2012:

Year Ended December 31, % Change

2014 2013 2012 2014 v 2013 2013 v 2012

(in thousands)

Net cash provided by (used in):
Operating activities $ 22,337 $ 16,984 $ 10,974 32% 55%
Investing activities (219,050) (148,432) (76,983) (48) (93)
Financing activities 208,495 131,375 72,192 59 82

Change in cash and cash equivalents $ 11,782 $ (73) $ 6,183 16,240% (101)%

Operating Activities

For the year ended December 31, 2014, net cash provided by operating activities was $22.3 million. The net
cash provided by operating activities resulted primarily from net income of $5.7 million, an adjustment for
depreciation and amortization of $7.2 million, an increase in deferred revenue of $6.8 million related to increased
implementation fees, and the write off of the debt discount costs of $4.1 million.

For the year ended December 31, 2013, net cash provided by operating activities was $17.0 million. The net cash
provided by operating activities resulted primarily from net income of $0.6 million, an adjustment for depreciation and
amortization of $5.5 million, an increase in deferred revenue of $4.2 million related to increased implementation fees,
an increase in accounts payable of $2.7 million and an increase in accrued expenses and other liabilities of $2.4
million.
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Investing Activities

For the year ended December 31, 2014, net cash used in investing activities was $219.1 million. The net
cash used in investing activities resulted primarily from an increase in funds held for clients of $204.8 million
related to collection of client taxes and capital expenditures related to investments in real property, software and
development and facilities and equipment of $14.3 million.

For the year ended December 31, 2013, net cash used in investing activities was $148.4 million. The net
cash used in investing activities resulted primarily from an increase in funds held for clients of $131.5 million
related to collection of client taxes and capital expenditures related to investments in real property, software and
development and facilities and equipment of $17.2 million.

Financing Activities

For the year ended December 31, 2014, cash flows provided by financing activities was $208.5 million. The
cash flows provided by financing activities resulted primarily from an increase in client funds obligations of
$204.8 million related to the collection of client taxes, gross proceeds from our initial public offering of $62.8
million and proceeds from the issuance of debt of $6.5 million, which were partially offset by payments on long-
term debt of $65.7 million.

For the year ended December 31, 2013, cash flows provided by financing activities was $131.4 million. The
cash flows provided by financing activities resulted primarily from an increase in client funds obligations of
$131.5 million related to the collection of client taxes and advances received from long-term debt of $7.0 million,
which were partially offset by distributions paid to members of $5.4 million.

Contractual Obligations

Our principal commitments primarily consist of long-term debt and leases for office space. We disclose our
long-term debt to a related party in Note 5 and our commitments and contingencies in Note 11 to our audited
consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

As of December 31, 2014, the future non-cancelable minimum payments under these commitments were as
follows (dollars in thousands):

Payments Due by Period

Less More
than 1-3 3-5 than

Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years

Long-term debt obligations(1) $26,978 $ 855 $ 1,835 $2,024 $22,264
Interest on the 2021 Consolidated Loan 7,510 1,279 2,434 2,245 1,552
Operating lease obligations:

Facilities space 17,445 4,226 8,069 4,870 280

Total $51,993 $6,360 $12,338 $9,139 $24,096

(1) The amount represents principal of the 2021 Consolidated Loan due at maturity.

We may continue to lease additional office space to support our growth. In addition, many of our existing
lease agreements provide us with the option to renew. Our future operating lease obligations include payments
due during any renewal period provided for in the lease where the lease imposes a penalty for failure to renew.

The contractual commitment amounts in the table above are associated with agreements that are enforceable
and legally binding and that specify all significant terms, including fixed or minimum services to be used, fixed
minimum or variable price provisions, and the approximate timing of the transaction. Obligations under contracts
that we can cancel without a significant penalty are not included in the table above.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of December 31, 2014, we did not have any off-balance sheet arrangements.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our condensed consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes have been prepared in accordance
with U.S. GAAP. The preparation of these condensed consolidated financial statements requires us to make
estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, costs and
expenses, and related disclosures. On an ongoing basis, we continually evaluate our estimates and assumptions
believed to be reasonable under current facts and circumstances. Actual amounts and results may materially
differ from these estimates made by management under different assumptions and conditions.

Certain accounting policies that require significant management estimates, and are deemed critical to our
results of operations or financial position, are described below. Accordingly, these are the policies we believe are
the most critical to aid in fully understanding and evaluating our consolidated financial condition and results of
operations.

Revenue Recognition

Our total revenues are comprised of recurring revenues, and implementation and other revenues. We
recognize revenue in accordance with accounting standards for software and service companies when all of the
following criteria have been met:

• There is persuasive evidence of an arrangement;

• The service has been or is being provided to the customer;

• Collection of the fees is reasonably assured; and

• The amount of fees to be paid by the customer is fixed or determinable.

Recurring revenues are derived primarily from our talent acquisition, time and labor management, payroll,
talent management and HR management applications. These services are rendered during each client’s payroll
period with the agreed-upon fee being charged and collected as part of the client’s payroll. Revenues are
recognized at time of billing of each client’s payroll period. Collectability is reasonably assured as the fees are
collected through ACH as part of the client’s payroll cycle or through direct wire transfer, which minimizes the
default risk. Our implementation and other revenues represent non- refundable conversion fees which are charged
to new clients to offset the expense of new client set-up and revenues from sale of time clocks as part of our
employee time and attendance services. Because these conversion fees and sale of time clocks relate to our
recurring revenues, we have evaluated such arrangements under the accounting guidance that governs multiple
element arrangements.

For arrangements with multiple elements, we evaluate whether each element represents a separate unit of
accounting. In order to treat deliverables in a multiple element arrangement as separate units of accounting, the
deliverables must have standalone value upon delivery. If the deliverables have standalone value upon delivery,
we account for each deliverable separately and revenue is recognized for the respective deliverables as they are
delivered. If one or more of the deliverables does not have standalone value upon delivery, the deliverables that
do not have standalone value are generally combined with the final deliverable within the arrangement and
treated as a single unit of accounting.

For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, we determined that there was no standalone value
associated with the upfront conversion fees as they did not have value to our clients on a standalone basis nor
were they offered as an individual service; therefore, the conversion fees were deferred and are recognized
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ratably over the estimated life of our clients, based on our historical client attrition rate, which we estimate to be
ten years. Revenues from the sale of time clocks are recognized when they are delivered.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill is not amortized, but we are required to test the carrying value of goodwill for impairment at least
annually, or earlier if, at the reporting unit level, an indicator of impairment arises. The estimates and
assumptions about future results of operations and cash flows made in connection with the impairment testing
could differ from future actual results of operations and cash flows. If impairment exists, a write-down to fair
value (normally measured by discounting estimated future cash flows) is recorded. Our business is largely
homogeneous and, as a result, goodwill is associated with one reporting unit. We have selected June 30 as our
annual goodwill impairment testing date and determined there was no impairment as of June 30, 2014. For the
years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, there were no indicators of impairment. Intangible assets with
finite lives are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets, including intangible assets with finite lives, are reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of
assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to estimated
undiscounted future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds
its estimated future cash flows, an impairment charge is recognized for the amount by which the carrying amount
of the asset exceeds the estimated fair value of the asset. We have determined that there is no impairment of
long-lived assets for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012.

Restricted Stock and Incentive Units

Given the absence of a public trading market for our common stock and incentive units prior to our initial
public offering, and in accordance with the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “AICPA”),
Audit and Accounting Practice Aid Series: Valuation of Privately Held Company Equity Securities Issued as
Compensation (the “AICPA Practice Guide”), our board of directors exercised reasonable judgment and
considered numerous factors to determine the best estimate of the fair value of our restricted stock and incentive
units, including:

• Valuation analyses performed by an unrelated third party specialist (including the application of
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs);

• Characteristics and specific terms of the shares as noted in the equity grant agreements;

• Value of the shares as determined by the absence of a liquidation value on the date of grant, the ability to
participate in our future profits, growth and appreciation and the lack of an exercise price for the shares;

• Lack of marketability of our common stock;

• Our actual operating and financial performance;

• Our state of development;

• Revenue and expense projection;

• Likelihood of achieving a liquidating event;

• Market performance of comparable publicly traded companies; and

• Overall U.S. and global economic and capital market conditions.
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Our simulation model requires various subjective assumptions as inputs, including expected life, volatility,
risk-free interest rates, and the expected dividend yield. The assumptions used in the simulation model represent
our best estimates, which involve inherent uncertainties and the application of our judgment as follows:

• Risk-free interest rate — We base the risk-free interest rate used in the Monte Carlo simulation model
on the implied yield available on 5 year U.S. Treasury securities with a remaining term equivalent to
that of the restricted stock or incentive units as of the valuation date.

• Volatility — We determine the volatility factor based on the historical volatilities of comparable
guideline companies. To determine the comparable guideline companies, we consider cloud-based
application providers and select those that are similar to us in nature of services provided. We intend to
continue to consistently apply this process using the same or similar public companies until
information regarding the volatility of our own pricing changes, or unless circumstances change such
that the identified companies are no longer similar to us, in which case, more suitable companies whose
share prices are publicly available would be utilized in the calculation.

• Expected term —The expected term represents the period that our restricted stock or incentive units are
expected to be outstanding. We determined the expected term assumption based on the vesting terms
and contractual terms of the restricted stock.

• Expected dividend yield—We have not paid and do not expect to pay dividends in the future and
therefore an expected dividend yield of 0% was applied. Our directors will determine if and when
dividends will be declared and paid in the future based on our financial position at the relevant time.

The following table presents a summary of the grant-date fair values of restricted stock granted based on the
Monte Carlo simulation model and the related assumptions for the year ended December 31, 2014. We did not
issue any shares of restricted stock during the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012.

Year Ended
December 31,

2014

Grant-date fair value
2014 Restricted Stock $5.76 - $36.03

Risk-free interest rate 1.02%
Volatility factor 30.0%
Expected life (in years) 3.5

The following table presents a summary of the grant-date fair values of incentive units granted based on the
Monte Carlo simulation model and the related assumptions for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012:

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012

Grant-date fair value
2009 Incentive Units — $71.78
2012 Management Incentive Units $4.67 - $37.39 $8.03 - $14.29
2012 CEO Incentive Units — $6.78 - $9.35

Risk-free interest rate 0.71% - 1.41% 0.72%
Volatility factor 50.0% 60.0%
Expected life (in years) 5.0 5.0

In addition to assumptions used in the simulation model, we are required to estimate forfeitures and only
record compensation costs for those awards that are expected to vest. Our forfeiture estimate is based on an
analysis of our actual forfeitures. We will continue to evaluate the appropriateness of the forfeiture rate based on
actual forfeiture experience, analysis of employee turnover, and other factors.
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We granted the following Management Incentive Units (the “Management Incentive Units”), between
October 1, 2012 and the date of the 2014 Reorganization (in thousands, except per unit amounts):

Number of
incentive

units granted
Fair value

per unit (1)(2)

Grant Date
November 19, 2012 200 $11.16
January 7, 2013 610 $ 7.92
January 17, 2013 3,000 $ 8.08
March 28, 2013 700 $14.04
April 17, 2013 3,000 $14.13
October 14, 2013 18,493 $16.46
December 3, 2013 150 $17.08

(1) Because our Management Incentive Units did not have an exercise price, the intrinsic value of the unit
equaled the fair value.

(2) Represents the weighted average fair value per unit, incorporating both time-based and market-based
vesting conditions.

There were no other equity instruments granted during the period from October 1, 2012 to the date of the
2014 Reorganization. During 2012, Management Incentive Units were issued with a strike price that was based
on a $400.0 million company enterprise value. During 2013, Management Incentive Units were issued with a
strike price that was based on a $400.0 million and $550.0 million company enterprise value. We also issued
incentive units to our chief executive officer (the “CEO Incentive Units”), with a strike price that was based on a
$550.0 million company enterprise value during 2012. These strike prices are a vesting condition, by which the
underlying incentive units did not vest unless the value of our company met or exceeded the specified level. Our
incentive units did not have an exercise price.

We believe that there is no single event that caused the change in the fair value of our incentive units
between the grant dates, but rather a combination of factors described below for the significant difference noted
in between certain grants as follow:

• Increase in value between the value at the grant date and the value at the initial public offering as a
result of improved operating results; and

• Increase in the probability assumption of an initial public offering scenario as we approached the
estimated initial public offering date.

In connection with the 2014 Reorganization, the incentive units we issued as part of the 2009 Incentive
Units Plan (the “2009 Incentive Units”), were converted into shares of restricted stock. Upon the sale of common
stock in the initial public offering, approximately 217,378 shares of restricted common stock that were granted to
replace the 2009 Incentive Units automatically vested.

In connection with the 2014 Reorganization, incentive units in Holdings were converted into shares of
common stock and/or restricted stock. Vested incentive units were converted to shares of common stock and
restricted stock at various conversion ratios that ranged from approximately 1:0.2 to 1:24. Unvested incentive
units were converted to shares of restricted stock at various conversion ratios that ranged from 1:24 to 1:47. The
conversion to shares of common stock or restricted stock was determined based on the underlying conditions of
the pre-conversion incentive units and reflected any pre-existing vesting conditions. This conversion resulted in
the issuance of 1,148,520 and 8,121,101 shares of common stock and restricted stock, respectively, on January 1,
2014. The shares of restricted stock are subject to either time-based or performance-based vesting conditions.
The FASB Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”), Section 718-20-53-3 indicates that if the terms and
conditions of an existing equity incentive compensation plan are to be modified, then an entity should record
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additional compensation cost for any incremental value associated with the modification. The incremental
compensation cost is measured as the excess of the fair value of the modified awards over the fair value of the
original awards immediately before its terms are modified. Based on the terms of restricted stock, we concluded
that there was a modification of the existing equity incentive units. Based upon a valuation by an independent
third party, management determined there was no additional compensation cost created in the conversion, as the
value of the incentive units given up was less than the value of the restricted stock received. As such, there was
no additional compensation recorded.

Shares of restricted stock that were issued in connection with the 2014 Reorganization that were subject to time-
based vesting conditions retained substantially the same time-based vesting conditions as the respective tranche of
incentive units from which they were converted. For additional information concerning these vesting conditions, see
“Executive Compensation—Narrative Discussion Regarding Summary Compensation Table—Equity Incentive Units
and Restricted Stock Awards.” The following table shows the vesting periods for the outstanding shares of restricted
stock subject to time-based vesting conditions that were issued in connection with the 2014 Reorganization:

Year Ending December 31,
Number of Shares of

Restricted Stock to Vest

2015 575,288
2016 575,426
2017 575,288
2018 100,759

Total 1,826,761

Shares of restricted stock that were issued in connection with the 2014 Reorganization that were subject to
performance-based vesting conditions vested 50% upon the Company reaching a total enterprise value of $1.4
billion on December 1, 2014. The remaining 50% will vest upon the Company reaching a total enterprise value
of $1.8 billion, provided that the person is employed by us on that date. For additional information concerning
these vesting conditions, see “Executive Compensation—Narrative Discussion Regarding Summary
Compensation Table—Equity Incentive Units and Restricted Stock Awards.” If the Company’s stock price
remains at or near its current price, the Company believes that the shares of restricted stock that are subject to the
performance-based vesting condition of a total enterprise value of $1.8 billion will vest during the first quarter of
2015.

The following table shows the outstanding shares of restricted stock subject to the applicable performance-
based vesting conditions that were issued in connection with the 2014 Reorganization:

Total Enterprise Value

Number of Shares
of Restricted Stock

to Vest

$1,800,000,000 2,713,261
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Derivative Instruments

In April 2012, we entered into the 2022 Note with WCAS Capital IV, a related party. The note contained
certain prepayment features related to mandatory redemption upon a liquidation event. As of December 31, 2012,
we had identified the prepayment feature of the note as a derivative instrument which is required to be bifurcated
and separately accounted for at fair value with changes in fair value recorded in earnings. Refer to Note 7 of our
audited consolidated financial statements as of and for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 for further
discussion. The following are the significant inputs used to value the derivative instrument as of December 31,
2013 and 2012:

2013 2012

Probability of exit 90% 90%
Remaining term 0.8 year - 8.3 years 3.3 years - 9.3 years
Yield Volatility 21.4% - 31.1% 20.4% - 28.5%
Credit Spread 8.90% 11.94%
Risk-free rate 0.13% - 2.45% 0.36% - 1.78%

There were no derivative instruments outstanding as of December 31, 2014.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2013, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued authoritative guidance which
adds new disclosure requirements for items reclassified out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income
(“AOCI”). The update requires that an entity present either in a single note or parenthetically on the face of the
financial statements, the effect of significant amounts reclassified from each component of AOCI based on its
source and the income statement line items affected by the reclassification. The amendment is effective for fiscal
years and interim periods beginning on after December 15, 2012. We adopted this new guidance as of the year
ended December 31, 2013. This guidance has not had a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

In February 2013, the FASB issued authoritative guidance, which added new disclosure requirements to
measure obligations resulting from joint and several liability arrangement for which the total amount of the
obligation within the scope of this guidance is fixed at the reporting date and disclose the arrangements and the
total outstanding amount of obligation for all joint parties. These disclosures are in addition to existing related
party disclosure requirements. We adopted this new guidance as of the year ended December 31, 2013. This
guidance has not had a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

In July 2013, the FASB issued authoritative guidance which requires entities to present an unrecognized tax
benefit, or a portion of an unrecognized tax benefit, in the financial statements as a reduction to a deferred tax
asset for a net operating loss carryforward, a similar tax loss, or a tax credit carryforward. We adopted this new
guidance for the year ended December 31, 2013, which did not have a material impact on our consolidated
financial statements.

In May 2014, the FASB issued authoritative guidance which included a comprehensive new revenue
recognition model that requires revenue to be recognized in a manner to depict the transfer of goods or services
to a customer at an amount that reflects the consideration expected to be received in exchange for those goods or
services. The new guidance is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after
December 15, 2016, and early adoption is not permitted. Accordingly, the standard is effective for us on
January 1, 2017. We are currently evaluating the impact that the standard will have on our consolidated financial
statements.

In June 2014, the FASB issued authoritative guidance for share-based payments which requires that a
performance target that affects vesting, and that could be achieved after the requisite service period, be treated as
a performance condition. As such, the performance target should not be reflected in estimating the grant date fair
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value of the award. This update further clarifies that compensation cost should be recognized in the period in
which it becomes probable that the performance target will be achieved and should represent the compensation
cost attributable to the period(s) for which the requisite service has already been rendered. The new guidance is
effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2015.
Accordingly, the standard is effective for us on January 1, 2016. We do not anticipate that the adoption of this
standard will have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

We use EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA and non-GAAP net income, as supplemental measures to review and
assess our performance and planning purposes. We define: (i) EBITDA as net income (loss), plus interest
expense, taxes and depreciation and amortization, (ii) Adjusted EBITDA as net income (loss), plus interest
expense, taxes, depreciation and amortization, stock-based compensation expense, net loss on early
extinguishment of debt and certain transaction expenses that are not core to our operations and (iii) non-GAAP
net income as unaudited pro forma net income (loss) plus tax adjusted stock-based compensation expense, tax
adjusted net loss on early extinguishment of debt and certain tax adjusted transaction expenses that are not core
to our operations. EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA and non-GAAP net income are metrics that we believe are useful
to investors in evaluating our performance and facilitating comparison with other peer companies, many of which
use similar non-GAAP financial measures to supplement results under U.S. GAAP.

EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA and non-GAAP net income are not measures of financial performance under
U.S. GAAP, and should not be considered a substitute for net income (loss) or pro forma net income (loss), as
applicable, which we consider to be the most directly comparable U.S. GAAP measures. EBITDA, Adjusted
EBITDA and non-GAAP net income have limitations as analytical tools, and when assessing our operating
performance, you should not consider EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA or non-GAAP net income in isolation, or as a
substitute for net income, unaudited pro forma net income (loss) or other consolidated statements of income data
prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP. EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA and non-GAAP net income may not be
comparable to similar titled measures of other companies and other companies may not calculate such measures
in the same manner as we do.

The following tables reconcile net income (loss) to EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA and unaudited pro
forma net income (loss) to non-GAAP net income (loss) (in thousands except per share amounts):

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

(in thousands)

Consolidated statement of income data:
Net income (loss) $ 5,663 $ 607 $ (406)
Interest expense 3,421 9,272 6,977
Tax expense (benefit) 3,993 792 (84)
Depreciation and amortization expense 7,162 5,503 5,523

EBITDA 20,239 16,174 12,010
Stock-based compensation expense 712 934 503
Transaction expenses 2,004 2,747 316
Net loss on early extinguishment of debt 4,044 — —

Adjusted EBITDA $26,999 $19,855 $12,829
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Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

(in thousands)

Consolidated statement of income data:
Unaudited pro forma net income (loss) $ 5,663 $ 738 $ (389)
Tax adjusted stock-based compensation expense 418 495 402
Tax adjusted transaction expenses 1,175 1,456 253
Tax adjusted net loss on early extinguishment of debt 2,372 — —

Non-GAAP net income $ 9,628 $ 2,689 $ 266
Non-GAAP net income per share, basic $ 0.19 $ 0.06 $ 0.01
Non-GAAP net income per share, diluted $ 0.19 $ 0.06 $ 0.01
Unaudited pro forma weighted average shares

outstanding:
Basic 49,784,154 45,476,895 44,771,559
Diluted 51,857,309 48,062,075 44,771,559

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Interest rate sensitivity

We had cash and cash equivalents totaling $25.1 million as of December 31, 2014. We consider all highly
liquid debt instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less and money market mutual funds to be
cash equivalents. These amounts are invested primarily in deposit accounts and money market funds. The cash
and cash equivalents are held for working capital purposes. Our investments are made for capital preservation
purposes. We do not enter into investments for trading or speculative purposes.

Our cash equivalents are subject to market risk due to changes in interest rates. Fixed rate securities may
have their market value adversely affected due to a rise in interest rates, while floating rate securities may
produce less income than expected if interest rates fall. Due in part to these factors, our future investment income
may fall short of expectation due to changes in interest rates, or we may suffer losses in principal if we are forced
to sell securities that decline in market value due to changes in interest rates.

We do not believe that an increase or decrease in interest rates of 100-basis points would have a material
effect on our operating results or financial condition with respect to our cash equivalents.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Paycom Software, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Paycom Software, Inc. (a Delaware
corporation) and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the related consolidated
statements of income, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2014. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. We were not engaged to perform an audit of
the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal control
over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Paycom Software, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the results
of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2014 in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

/s/ GRANT THORNTON LLP

Oklahoma City, Oklahoma
February 26, 2015
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Paycom Software, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(in thousands, except share amounts)

December 31,
2014

December 31,
2013

Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 25,144 $ 13,362
Restricted cash 371 369
Accounts receivable 2,794 1,705
Prepaid expenses and initial public offering costs 1,952 2,133
Inventory 195 578
Income tax receivable 935 150
Deferred tax assets 1,445 3,672

Current assets before funds held for clients 32,836 21,969
Funds held for clients 660,557 455,779

Total current assets 693,393 477,748
Property, plant and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $17.1 million and

$11.5 million, respectively 47,919 38,671
Deposits and other assets 645 461
Goodwill 51,889 51,889
Intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization of $12.1 million and $10.5 million,

respectively 5,096 6,709

Total assets $798,942 $575,478

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 3,042 $ 5,020
Accrued commissions and bonuses 5,080 3,598
Accrued payroll and vacation 1,582 3,087
Deferred revenue 2,535 1,582
Current portion of long-term debt 855 9,545
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 5,121 4,372

Current liabilities before client funds obligation 18,215 27,204
Client funds obligation 660,557 455,779

Total current liabilities 678,772 482,983

Deferred tax liabilities 3,107 2,895
Long-term deferred revenue 16,802 10,990
Long-term debt, less current portion 26,123 11,545
Long-term debt to related parties — 60,875
Derivative liability — 1,107

Total long-term liabilities 46,032 87,412

Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ equity:

Common stock, $0.01 par value (100,000,000 shares authorized, 53,832,782 and
45,708,573 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2014 and 2013,
respectively) 538 457

Additional paid in capital 67,937 33,978
Retained earnings (accumulated deficit) 5,663 (29,349)

Total parent’s stockholders’ equity 74,138 5,086

Noncontrolling interest — (3)

Total stockholders’ equity 74,138 5,083

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $798,942 $575,478

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Paycom Software, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Income

(in thousands, except share amounts)

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

Revenues
Recurring $ 148,207 $ 105,560 $ 75,420
Implementation and other 2,722 2,041 1,390

Total revenues 150,929 107,601 76,810

Cost of revenues
Operating expenses 24,694 19,070 14,895
Depreciation 2,624 1,821 1,431

Total cost of revenues 27,318 20,891 16,326

Administrative expenses
Sales and marketing 63,547 42,681 29,255
Research and development 4,325 2,146 1,632
General and administrative 35,501 28,729 19,372
Depreciation and amortization 4,538 3,682 4,092

Total administrative expenses 107,911 77,238 54,351

Total operating expenses 135,229 98,129 70,677

Operating income 15,700 9,472 6,133
Interest expense (3,421) (9,272) (6,977)
Loss on early repayment of debt (4,044) — —
Other income, net 1,421 1,199 354

Income (loss) before income taxes 9,656 1,399 (490)
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 3,993 792 (84)

Net income (loss) 5,663 607 (406)
Net income (loss) attributable to the noncontrolling interest — 6 (3)

Net income (loss) attributable to the Company $ 5,663 $ 601 $ (403)

Unaudited pro forma additional income tax benefit — (137) (14)

Unaudited pro forma net income (loss) $ 5,663 $ 738 $ (389)

Net income (loss) per share, basic $ 0.11 $ 0.01 $ (0.01)
Net income (loss) per share, diluted $ 0.11 $ 0.01 $ (0.01)

Unaudited pro forma net income (loss) per share, basic $ 0.11 $ 0.02 $ (0.01)
Unaudited pro forma net income (loss) per share, diluted $ 0.11 $ 0.02 $ (0.01)

Weighted average shares outstanding:
Basic 49,784,154 45,476,895 44,771,559

Diluted 51,857,309 48,062,075 44,771,559

Unaudited pro forma weighted average shares outstanding:
Basic 49,784,154 45,476,895 44,771,559

Diluted 51,857,309 48,062,075 44,771,559

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Paycom Software, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

(in thousands, except share amounts)

Common Stock Additional
Paid in
Capital

Accumulated
Deficit

Noncontrolling
Interest

Total
Stockholders’

EquityShares Amount

Balances at December 31, 2011 44,245,381 $442 $ 80,796 $ (8,877) $— $ 72,361
Issuance of common stock 314,667 3 2,406 — — 2,409
Distributions to stockholders as return

of capital — — (18,807) — — (18,807)
Stock-based compensation — — 567 — — 567
Distributions to stockholders — — 4,808 (4,966) — (158)
Reclassification of Series C Preferred

Units to debt — — (46,193) — — (46,193)
Net loss — — — (406) 3 (403)

Balances at December 31, 2012 44,560,048 $445 $ 23,577 $(14,249) $ 3 $ 9,776

Common stock redeemed — $— $ (1,061) $ — $— $ (1,061)
Stock-based compensation — — 1,164 — — 1,164
Issuance of common stock 1,148,525 12 — — — 12
Distributions to stockholders — — 10,298 (15,707) — (5,409)
Net income — — — 607 (6) 601

Balances at December 31, 2013 45,708,573 $457 $ 33,978 $(29,349) $ (3) $ 5,083

Acquisition of CP IV Blocker under
the 2014 Reorganization — — — — 3 3

Reclass of accumulated deficit to
additional paid in capital under the
2014 Reorganization — — (29,349) 29,349 — —

Incentive units converted to common
and restricted stock 3,517,327 35 (35) — — —

Initial public offering, net 4,606,882 46 62,810 — — 62,856
Stock-based compensation — — 716 — — 716
Capital impact of reorganization — — (183) — — (183)
Net income — — — 5,663 — 5,663

Balances at December 31, 2014 53,832,782 $538 $ 67,937 $ 5,663 $— $ 74,138

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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Paycom Software, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

Operating activities
Net income (loss) $ 5,663 $ 607 $ (406)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 7,162 5,486 5,522
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment — (248) —
Amortization of debt discount and debt issuance costs 133 258 162
Write off of debt discount, net 4,051 — —
Stock-based compensation, net expense 712 934 503
Net change of derivative liability (1,107) (660) (333)

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (1,089) (1,083) (133)
Prepaid expenses (465) (800) (395)
Inventory 267 136 8
Income tax receivable (122) (150) —
Deposits and other assets (232) (44) (75)
Deferred tax assets 2,227 512 (323)
Deferred tax liabilities 32 5 159
Accounts payable (2,386) 2,667 1,157
Accrued commissions and bonuses 1,482 1,645 1,461
Accrued payroll and vacation (1,505) 1,162 351
Deferred revenue 6,765 4,163 2,778
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 749 2,394 538

Net cash provided by operating activities 22,337 16,984 10,974

Investing activities
Increase in funds held for clients (204,778) (131,513) (71,001)
Increase in restricted cash (2) (1) (117)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (14,270) (17,176) (5,971)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment — 258 106

Net cash used in investing activities (219,050) (148,432) (76,983)

Financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 6,538 6,979 1,750
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt to related party — — 16,398
Principal payments on long-term debt (65,650) — (401)
Increase in client funds obligation 204,778 131,513 71,001
Proceeds from initial public offering, net of offering costs 62,840 — —
Proceeds from issuance of common shares — — 2,409
Distributions paid to stockholders as return of capital — — (18,807)
Incentive units redeemed — (1,061) —
Payments of deferred offering costs — (647) —
Distributions paid to stockholders — (5,409) (158)
Payment of debt issuance costs (11) — —

Net cash provided by financing activities 208,495 131,375 72,192

Change in cash and cash equivalents 11,782 (73) 6,183
Cash and cash equivalents
Beginning of year 13,362 13,435 7,252

End of year $ 25,144 $ 13,362 $ 13,435

Supplemental cash flow disclosure
Cash paid for interest, net of amounts capitalized $ 3,482 $ 9,298 $ 6,834
Cash paid for income taxes 2,013 378 74

Noncash activity
Purchase of property, plant and equipment on account $ 408 $ 368 $ 167
Issuance of common stock as return of capital — — 46,193

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Paycom Software Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. ORGANIZATION AND DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

Description of Business

Paycom Software, Inc. (“Software”) is a leading provider of a comprehensive, cloud-based human capital
management (“HCM”) software solution delivered as Software-as-a-Service (“SaaS”). We provide functionality
and data analytics that businesses need to manage the complete employment life cycle from recruitment to
retirement. Our solution requires virtually no customization and is based on a core system of record maintained
in a single database for all HCM functions, including talent acquisition, time and labor management, payroll,
talent management and human resources (“HR”) management applications.

The Reorganization

Software and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Payroll Software Merger Sub, LLC (“Merger Sub”) were formed
as Delaware entities on October 31, 2013 and December 23, 2013, respectively, in anticipation of an initial public
offering (“IPO”) and were wholly-owned subsidiaries of Paycom Payroll Holdings, LLC (“Holdings”) prior to
December 31, 2013.

On January 1, 2014, we consummated a reorganization pursuant to which: (i) affiliates of Welsh, Carson,
Anderson & Stowe, L.P. contributed WCAS Paycom Holdings, Inc. (“WCAS Holdings”) and WCAS CP IV
Blocker, Inc. (“CP IV Blocker”), which collectively owned all of the Series A Preferred Units of Holdings, to
Software in exchange for shares of common stock of Software and (ii) the owners of outstanding Series B
Preferred Units of Holdings contributed their Series B Preferred Units of Holdings to Software in exchange for
shares of common stock of Software. Immediately after these contributions, Merger Sub merged with and into
Holdings with Holdings surviving the merger. Upon consummation of the merger, the remaining holders of
outstanding common and incentive units of Holdings received shares of common stock of Software for their
common and incentive units by operation of Delaware law and Holdings’ ownership interest in Software was
cancelled. Outstanding common units, Series B Preferred Units and WCAS Holdings and CP IV Blocker were
contributed to Software in exchange for, or converted into, 45,708,573 shares of common stock and 8,121,101
shares of restricted stock of Software. Prior to the reorganization, WCAS Holdings held Series C Preferred Units
of Holdings in the amount of $46.2 million and WCAS Holdings had a note payable to a related party due April
3, 2017, in the amount of $46.2 million. Following these transactions, all outstanding Series C Preferred Units
were eliminated in an intercompany transaction between Holdings and WCAS Holdings, and we assumed the
14% Note due 2017 issued by WCAS Holdings (the “2017 Note”). Following the reorganization, Software
became a holding company with its principal assets being the Series B Preferred Units of Holdings and the
outstanding capital stock of WCAS Holdings and CP IV Blocker (collectively, the “2014 Reorganization”).

Software’s acquisition of WCAS Holdings and Holdings in the 2014 Reorganization represented
transactions under common control and were required to be retrospectively applied to the financial statements for
all prior periods when the financial statements were issued for a period that included the date the transactions
occurred. This includes a retrospective presentation for all equity related disclosures, including share, per share,
and restricted stock disclosures, which have been revised to reflect the effects of the 2014 Reorganization.
Therefore, our consolidated financial statements are presented as if WCAS Holdings and Holdings were
Software’s wholly-owned subsidiaries in periods prior to the 2014 Reorganization. The acquisition of CP IV
Blocker was not deemed to be a reorganization under common control and therefore our historical consolidated
financial statements include the ownership of a minority equity interest in CP IV Blocker, which was eliminated
upon the acquisition of CP IV Blocker in the 2014 Reorganization on January 1, 2014.

Unless we state otherwise or the context otherwise requires, the terms “we,” “us,” “our” and the “Company”
refer, prior to the 2014 Reorganization, to Holdings, Holdings’ consolidated subsidiaries and WCAS Holdings
collectively. and, after the 2014 Reorganization, to Software and its consolidated subsidiaries.
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Initial Public offering

On April 21, 2014, the Company completed its IPO whereby an aggregate of 7,641,750 shares of our
common stock were sold to the public (including 4,606,882 shares of common stock issued and sold by us and
3,034,868 shares of common stock sold by certain selling stockholders) at a public offering price of $15.00 per
share. We did not receive any proceeds from the sale of shares by the selling stockholders. The total gross
proceeds we received from the offering were $69.1 million. After deducting underwriting discounts and
commissions and offering expenses payable by us, the aggregate net proceeds we received totaled approximately
$62.8 million. We used all of the net proceeds from the offering, together with approximately $3.3 million from
existing cash, for the repayment in full of 10% Senior Note due 2022 (the “2022 Note”) issued by us to the
WCAS Capital IV and the 2017 Note.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation and Principles of Consolidation

Our consolidated financial statements include the financial results of Software, Holdings, Paycom and their
wholly owned subsidiaries and have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America (“US GAAP”) and applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC”). Intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with US GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes.
Significant estimates include income taxes, loss contingencies, the useful life for long-lived and intangible assets,
the life of our client relationships, the fair market value of our equity incentive awards and the fair value of our
financial instruments. These estimates are based on historical experience where applicable and other assumptions
that management believes are reasonable under circumstances. As such, actual results could materially differ
from these estimates.

Segment Information

We operate in a single operating segment and a single reporting segment. Operating segments are defined as
components of an enterprise about which separate financial information is evaluated regularly by the chief
operating decision maker, who is also the chief executive officer in deciding how to allocate resources and
assessing performance. Our chief executive officer allocates resources and assesses performance based upon
financial information at the consolidated level. Since we operate in one operating segment, all required financial
segment information is presented in the consolidated financial statements.

Cash Equivalents

We consider all highly liquid debt instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less and money
market mutual funds to be cash equivalents. We maintain cash and cash equivalents in bank deposit accounts and
money market funds, which may not be federally insured. The fair value of our cash and cash equivalents
approximates carrying value. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, all amounts were held in deposit on demand.
We have not experienced any losses in such accounts and do not believe there is exposure to any significant
credit risk on such accounts.

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash in our consolidated balance sheets primarily consists of cash held in restricted accounts due
to requirements under an existing office building lease and our corporate building loan agreements. As of both
December 31, 2014 and 2013, we had restricted cash of $0.4 million.
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Accounts Receivable

We generally collect revenue from our clients through an automatic deduction from the clients’ bank
accounts at the time payroll processing occurs. Accounts receivable on our consolidated balance sheets consists
primarily of revenue fees related to the last day of the period, which are collected on the following business day.
As accounts receivable are collected via automatic deduction on the following business day, the Company has
not recorded an allowance for doubtful accounts.

Deferred offering costs

Deferred offering costs represent legal, accounting and other direct costs related to our efforts to raise
capital through an IPO. $2.1 million of costs related to IPO activities were deferred until the completion of our
IPO on April 21, 2014, at which time these costs were offset against the IPO proceeds. As of December 31, 2013,
we had capitalized $0.6 million associated with IPO activities and included such amount in prepaid expenses on
the consolidated balance sheets.

Inventory

Our inventory consists of five types of time clocks sold to clients as part of our time and attendance services
and are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined using the first-in first-out (“FIFO”) cost method.

Time clocks are purchased as finished goods from a third party and as such we do not have any inventory
classified as raw materials or work in process inventory. Rental clocks issued to clients under month-to-month
operating leases are classified as property, plant, and equipment. During 2014, we transferred $0.1 million of
rental clocks in inventory to property, plant and equipment. We retain inventory in certain lines primarily as
replacements for those clients who use the various clocks and have determined that no write-downs for obsolete
items was required based on inventory turnover and our historical experience during the years ended
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is determined
using the straight line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Office equipment and furniture & fixtures 5 years
Computer equipment and software 3 years
Buildings 30 years
Leasehold improvements 3 years
Rental clocks 5 years
Vehicles 3 years

Our leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of their estimated useful lives or the related
lease terms. Costs incurred during construction of long-lived assets are recorded as construction in progress and
are not depreciated until the asset is placed in service.

We capitalize interest incurred related to construction in progress. For the years ended December 31, 2014,
2013 and 2012, we incurred interest costs of $3.7 million, $9.0 million and $6.8 million, respectively. For the
years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, interest expense of $0.4 million, $0.1 million and less than $0.1
million, respectively, was capitalized.

Internal Use Software

Expenditures for major software purchases and software developed or obtained for internal use are
capitalized and amortized over a three-year period on a straight-line basis. Capitalized costs include external
direct costs of materials and services associated with developing or obtaining internal use computer software and
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certain payroll and payroll-related costs for employees who are directly associated with internal use computer
software projects. The amount of payroll costs that are capitalized with respect to these employees is limited to
the time directly spent on such projects. Costs associated with preliminary project stage activities, training,
maintenance and all other post-implementation stage activities are expensed as incurred. We also expense
internal costs related to minor upgrades and enhancements, as it is impractical to separate these costs from
normal maintenance activities.

The total capitalized payroll costs related to internal use computer software projects was $2.2 million and
$1.2 million as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, which have been included in property, plant and
equipment. Amortization expense related to capitalized software costs of $0.9 million, $0.6 million and $0.4
million was charged to expense for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill is not amortized, but is instead tested for impairment annually, or earlier if, at the reporting unit
level, an indicator of impairment arises. The estimates and assumptions about future results of operations and
cash flows made in connection with the impairment testing could differ from future actual results of operations
and cash flows. If impairment exists, a write-down to fair value (normally measured by discounting estimated
future cash flows) is recorded. Our business is largely homogeneous and, as a result, goodwill is associated with
one reporting unit. We have selected June 30 as our annual goodwill impairment testing date and determined
there was no impairment as of June 30, 2014. For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, there were
no indicators of impairment. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets, including intangible assets with finite lives, are reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of
assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to estimated
undiscounted future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds
its estimated future cash flows, an impairment charge is recognized for the amount by which the carrying amount
of the asset exceeds the estimated fair value of the asset. We have determined that there was no impairment of
long-lived assets including intangible assets with finite lives, for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and
2012.

Funds Held for Clients and Client Funds Obligation

As part of our payroll and tax filing application, we collect funds for federal, state and local employment
taxes from clients, handle applicable regulatory tax filings, correspondence and amendments, remit the funds to
appropriate tax agencies, and handle other employer-related services. Amounts collected by us from clients for
their federal, state and local employment taxes earn interest during the interval between receipt and
disbursement, as we invest these funds in money market funds and certificates of deposit. The interest earned
from these investments is included in the consolidated statements of income as other income, net. These
investments are shown in the consolidated balance sheets as funds held for clients, and the offsetting liability for
the tax filings is shown as client funds obligation.

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the funds held for clients were invested in demand deposits, short-term
certificates of deposit and money market funds.

Revenue Recognition

Our total revenue is comprised of recurring revenues and implementation and other revenues. We recognize
revenue in accordance with accounting standards for software and service companies when all of the following
criteria have been met:

• There is persuasive evidence of an arrangement;
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• The service has been or is being provided to the client;

• Collection of the fees is reasonably assured; and

• The amount of fees to be paid by the client is fixed or determinable.

Recurring

Recurring revenues are derived primarily from our talent acquisition, time and labor management, payroll,
talent management and human resources applications. Talent acquisition includes applicant tracking, candidate
tracker, background checks, on-boarding, e-verify and tax credit services. Time and labor management includes
time and attendance, scheduling/schedule exchange, time-off requests, labor allocation and labor management
reports/push reporting. Payroll includes payroll and tax management, Paycom pay, expense management and
garnishment management. Talent management includes employee self-service, compensation budgeting,
performance management, executive dashboard and Paycom learning. Human resources management includes
document and task management, government and compliance, benefits administration, COBRA administration,
personnel action forms, surveys and ACA dashboard.

The services related to recurring revenues are rendered during each client’s payroll period, with the agreed-
upon fee being charged and collected as part of our processing of the client’s payroll. Recurring revenues are
recognized at the conclusion of processing of each client’s payroll-period, when each respective payroll client is
billed. Collectability is reasonably assured as the fees are collected through an Automated Clearing House
(“ACH”) as part of the client’s payroll cycle or through direct wire transfer, which minimizes the default risk.

Implementation and other

Implementation and other revenues represent non-refundable conversion fees which are charged to new
clients to offset the expense of new client set-up and revenue from the sale of time clocks as part of our employee
time and attendance services. Because these conversion fees and sale of time clocks relate to our recurring
revenue, we have evaluated such arrangements under the accounting guidance that governs multiple element
arrangements.

For arrangements with multiple elements, we evaluate whether each element represents a separate unit of
accounting. In order to treat deliverables in a multiple element arrangement as separate units of accounting, the
deliverables must have standalone value upon delivery. If the deliverables have stand-alone value upon delivery,
we account for each deliverable separately and revenue is recognized for the respective deliverables as they are
delivered. If one or more of the deliverables does not have stand-alone value upon delivery, the deliverables that
do not have stand-alone value are generally combined with the final deliverable within the arrangement and
treated as a single unit of accounting.

When multiple deliverables included in an arrangement are separable into different units of accounting, the
arrangement consideration is allocated to the identified separate units of accounting based on their relative selling
price. Multiple deliverable arrangements accounting guidance provides a hierarchy to use when determining the
relative selling price for each unit of accounting. Vendor-specific objective evidence (“VSOE”) of selling price,
based on the price at which the item is regularly sold by the vendor on a stand-alone basis, should be used if it
exists. If VSOE of selling price is not available, third-party evidence (“TPE”) of selling price is used to establish
the selling price if it exists, and if not it would be based on our best estimate of selling price.

For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, we have determined that there is no stand-alone
value associated with the upfront conversion fees as they do not have value to our clients on a stand-alone basis
nor are they offered as an individual service; therefore, the conversion fees are deferred and recognized ratably
over the estimated life of our clients, which we have estimated to be ten years.
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For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012, we have determined that the revenues from the
employee time and attendance services, and the revenues from the sale of time clocks as part of our time and
attendance services, have VSOE of selling price as they are sold on a stand-alone basis. Revenue is therefore
recognized for the respective deliverables as they are delivered.

Cost of Revenues

Our costs and expenses applicable to total revenues represent total operating expenses and systems support
and technology costs, including labor and related expenses, bank fees, shipping fees and costs of paper stock,
envelopes, etc. In addition, costs included to derive gross margins are comprised of support labor and related
expenses, related hardware costs and applicable depreciation costs.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed the first time that advertising takes place. Advertising costs for the years
ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 were $4.2 million, $3.4 million and $2.3 million, respectively.

Sales Taxes

We collect and remit sales tax on sales of time and attendance clocks and on payroll services in certain
states. These taxes are shown on a net basis, and as such, excluded from revenue. For the years ended
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, sales taxes collected and remitted were $3.0 million, $2.2 million and $1.6
million, respectively.

Employee Stock-Based Compensation

Certain stock-based compensation awards to employees are recognized pro rata over the respective vesting
period as compensation costs in the consolidated statements of income based on their fair values measured as of
the date of grant, while a portion of the stock-based compensation cost of awards granted to employees that
develop internal use software is capitalized.

Income Taxes

Our consolidated financial statements include a provision for income taxes incurred for the anticipated tax
consequences of the reported results of operations using the asset and liability method. Under this method, we
recognize deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of temporary differences
between the financial reporting and tax basis of assets and liabilities, as well as for operating loss and tax credit
carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates that are expected to apply to
taxable income for the years in which those tax assets and liabilities are expected to be realized or settled. We
record a valuation allowance to reduce our deferred tax assets to the net amount that we believe is more likely
than not to be realized.

Prior to the 2014 Reorganization, we operated under Holdings as a limited liability company (“LLC”) that
was taxed as a partnership. Business income passed through the business to the LLC members, who reported
their share of profits or losses on their respective income tax returns. As a result of the 2014 Reorganization, we
are treated as a Subchapter C Corporation and, therefore, subject to both federal and state income taxes. Holdings
continues to be recognized as a wholly-owned partnership for income tax purposes. Accordingly, we recorded a
one-time non-cash charge to equity of $0.2 million during the year ended December 31, 2014, for the amount of
the deferred tax liability amount resulting from the exchange of common units, incentive units and Series B
Preferred Units of Holdings for stock of Software as part of the 2014 Reorganization.
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We incurred transaction costs related to the facilitation of our 2014 IPO, a portion of which were charged to
equity. We recorded a one-time non-cash charge to equity of $0.7 million during the year ended December 31,
2014, for the amount of tax benefit resulting from these transaction costs.

We file income tax returns in the U.S. and various state jurisdictions. We evaluate tax positions taken or
expected to be taken in the course of preparing our tax returns and disallow the recognition of tax positions not
deemed to meet a “more-likely-than-not” threshold of being sustained by the applicable tax authority. We do not
believe there are any tax positions taken within the consolidated financial statements that would not meet this
threshold. Our policy is to record interest and penalties, if any, related to uncertain tax positions as a component
of general and administrative expenses. We are not aware of any ongoing or potential examinations as of
December 31, 2014. However, the tax years 2010 through 2014 remain open to examination for federal income
tax purposes and by the other major taxing jurisdictions.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2013, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued authoritative guidance which
adds new disclosure requirements for items reclassified out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income
(“AOCI”). The update requires that an entity present either in a single note or parenthetically on the face of the
financial statements, the effect of significant amounts reclassified from each component of AOCI based on its
source and the income statement line items affected by the reclassification. The amendment is effective for fiscal
years and interim periods beginning on after December 15, 2012. We adopted this new guidance as of the year
ended December 31, 2013. This guidance has not had a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

In February 2013, the FASB issued authoritative guidance, which added new disclosure requirements to
measure obligations resulting from joint and several liability arrangement for which the total amount of the
obligation within the scope of this guidance is fixed at the reporting date and disclose the arrangements and the
total outstanding amount of obligation for all joint parties. These disclosures are in addition to existing related
party disclosure requirements. We adopted this new guidance as of the year ended December 31, 2013. This
guidance has not had a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

In July 2013, the FASB issued authoritative guidance which requires entities to present an unrecognized tax
benefit, or a portion of an unrecognized tax benefit, in the financial statements as a reduction to a deferred tax
asset for a net operating loss carryforward, a similar tax loss, or a tax credit carryforward. We adopted this new
guidance for the year ended December 31, 2013, which did not have a material impact on our consolidated
financial statements.

In May 2014, the FASB issued authoritative guidance which included a comprehensive new revenue
recognition model that requires revenue to be recognized in a manner to depict the transfer of goods or services
to a customer at an amount that reflects the consideration expected to be received in exchange for those goods or
services. The new guidance is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after
December 15, 2016, and early adoption is not permitted. Accordingly, the standard is effective for us on
January 1, 2017. We are currently evaluating the impact that the standard will have on our consolidated financial
statements.

In June 2014, the FASB issued authoritative guidance for share-based payments which requires that a
performance target that affects vesting, and that could be achieved after the requisite service period, be treated as
a performance condition. As such, the performance target should not be reflected in estimating the grant date fair
value of the award. This update further clarifies that compensation cost should be recognized in the period in
which it becomes probable that the performance target will be achieved and should represent the compensation
cost attributable to the period(s) for which the requisite service has already been rendered. The new guidance is
effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2015.
Accordingly, the standard is effective for us on January 1, 2016. We do not anticipate that the adoption of this
standard will have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.
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3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment and accumulated depreciation were as follows (dollars in thousands):

December 31,

2014 2013

Property, plant and equipment
Furniture, fixtures and equipment $ 4,361 $ 3,189
Computer equipment 7,638 4,832
Software and capitalized software costs 8,671 5,578
Rental clocks 6,596 4,865
Vehicles 421 421
Buildings 28,154 14,828
Leasehold improvements 174 135

56,015 33,848
Less: accumulated depreciation (17,089) (11,540)

38,926 22,308
Land 8,993 8,993
Construction in process — 7,370

Property, plant and equipment, net $ 47,919 $ 38,671

Rental clocks included in property, plant and equipment, net represent time clocks issued to clients under
month-to-month operating leases. As such, these items are transferred from inventory to property, plant and
equipment and depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

Depreciation expense for property, plant and equipment, net was $5.5 million, $3.9 million and $3.1 million
for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

In October 2012, we began the construction of a second building/processing center at our headquarters.
Completion of the building occurred in June 2014, and was financed with our funds, along with a construction
note convertible to long-term notes payable, upon completion of the construction.

In November 2013 and December 2012, we purchased approximately 18.3 acres and 17.6 acres of land,
respectively, from a related party for future expansion at our headquarters for total costs of $4.8 million and $2.3
million, respectively. For more information see Note 10—“Related Party Transactions.”

4. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS, NET

We had goodwill of $51.9 million as of December 31, 2014 and 2013. We performed the required
impairment tests of goodwill as of June 30 for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 including an
assessment of whether or not indicators of impairment were present and determined there was no impairment for
each of those years then ended.

All of the intangible assets other than goodwill are considered to have finite lives and, as such, are subject to
amortization. The components of intangible assets are as follows (dollars in thousands):

December 31, 2014

Weighted Avg.
Remaining
Useful Life Gross

Accumulated
Amortization Net

(Years)

Intangibles:
Customer relationships 2.5 $13,997 $(10,498) $3,499
Trade name 7.5 3,194 (1,597) 1,597

Total $17,191 $(12,095) $5,096
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December 31, 2013

Weighted
Avg.

Remaining
Useful
Life Gross

Accumulated
Amortization Net

(Years)

Intangibles:
Customer relationships 3.5 $13,997 $ (9,098) $4,899
Trade name 8.5 3,194 (1,384) 1,810

Total $17,191 $(10,482) $6,709

The weighted average remaining useful life of the intangible assets was 4.1 years as of December 31, 2014.
Amortization of intangible assets for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 totaled $1.6 million,
$1.6 million and $2.4 million, respectively.

Estimated amortization expense for our existing intangible assets for the next five years and thereafter is as
follows (dollars in thousands):

Year Ending December 31, Amortization

2015 $1,613
2016 1,613
2017 913
2018 213
2019 213
Thereafter 531

$5,096

5. LONG-TERM DEBT

Our long-term debt consisted of the following (dollars in thousands):

December 31, December 31,
2014 2013

Consolidated note to bank (1) — $ 9,127
Term note to bank due December 15, 2018 (2) — 11,963
Term not to bank due May 30, 2021 (3) 26,978 —
Note to related party due April 3, 2017 (4) — 46,193
Note to related party due April 3, 2022 (5) — 18,807
Less: Unamortized debt discounts — (4,125)

Total long-term debt (including current portion) 26,978 81,965
Less: Current portion (855) (9,545)

Total long-term debt, net $26,123 $72,420

(1) In March 2013, we entered into a construction loan agreement for the construction of a second building at
our corporate headquarters with Kirkpatrick Bank, which allowed for a maximum principal amount of
$12.3 million (the “2013 Construction Loan”). The 2013 Construction Loan was secured by a first mortgage
covering the second headquarters building and a first lien security interest in certain personal property
relating to the second headquarters building. Under the 2013 Construction Loan, interest accrued monthly at
the Wall Street Journal U.S. Prime Rate plus 0.5%, adjusted monthly, subject to a minimum interest rate of
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4% per annum. Interest on the 2013 Construction Loan was payable monthly on the first day of each month.

In November 2013, we entered into a loan agreement for the purchase of approximately 18.3 acres for future
expansion at our headquarters with Kirkpatrick Bank, which allowed for a maximum principal amount of
$3.0 million (“2013 Land Loan”). Under the 2013 Land Loan, interest accrued monthly at the Wall Street
Journal U.S. Prime Rate plus 0.5%, adjusted monthly, subject to a minimum interest rate of 4% per annum.

In December 2013, we consolidated the 2013 Construction Loan and the 2013 Land Loan (“2013
Consolidated Loan”) under a modification agreement that increased the combined maximum principal
amount of the 2013 Consolidated Loan to $14.6 million. The 2013 Consolidated Loan was secured by a first
mortgage covering all of the second headquarters building and a first lien security interest in certain
personal property relating to the second headquarters building. Under the 2013 Consolidated Loan, interest
accrued monthly at the Wall Street Journal U.S. Prime rate plus 0.5%, adjusted monthly, subject to a
minimum interest rate of 4% per annum. In the second quarter of 2014, the 2013 Consolidated Loan was
consolidated into the 2021 Consolidated Loan. See Note (3) below for the definition of, and more
information about, the 2021 Consolidated Loan.

(2) In December 2011, we consolidated pre-existing construction loans for the construction of a new corporate
headquarters, processing center and gymnasium into a term note (the “2011 Consolidated Loan”). Under the
2011 Consolidated Loan, principal and interest were payable monthly based on a 20 year amortization rate
of 5%. The 2011 Consolidated Loan was collateralized by a first mortgage covering our original corporate
headquarters building and was secured by a first lien security interest in certain personal property relating to
our original corporate headquarters building. In the second quarter of 2014, the 2011 Consolidated Loan was
consolidated into the 2021 Consolidated Loan. See Note (3) below for the definition of, and more
information about, the 2021 Consolidated Loan.

(3) At December 31, 2014, our outstanding indebtedness consisted of a term note under a Loan Agreement (the
“2021 Consolidated Loan”) with an outstanding principal balance of $27.0 million as of December 31,
2014. In June 2014, we consolidated outstanding amounts under the 2011 Consolidated Loan and 2013
Consolidated Loan into the 2021 Consolidated Loan under a modification agreement. The 2021
Consolidated Loan is due to Kirkpatrick Bank and matures on May 30, 2021. Under the 2021 Consolidated
Loan, interest is payable monthly and accrues at a fixed rate of 4.75% per annum. The 2021 Consolidated
Loan is secured by a mortgage covering our headquarters buildings and certain personal property relating to
our headquarters buildings.

The 2021 Consolidated Loan includes certain financial covenants, including maintaining a debt coverage
ratio of EBITDA to indebtedness (defined as current maturities of long-term debt, interest expense and
distributions), as defined in the applicable agreement, of greater than 1.5 to 1.0. We were in compliance
with the financial covenant related to the debt coverage ratio as of December 31, 2014.

(4) In April 2014, we paid off the balance of the 2017 Note that was issued by WCAS Holdings and was
payable to Welsh, Carson, Anderson & Stowe X, L.P., a related party (“WCAS X”) with proceeds from our
IPO. The 2017 Note accrued interest at a rate of 14% per annum. As of December 31, 2013, the outstanding
principal balance of the 2017 Note was $46.2 million.

(5) In April 2014, we paid off the balance of the 10% Senior Note due 2022 (the “2022 Note”) with WCAS
Capital Partners IV, L.P., a related party (“WCAS CP IV”) with proceeds from our IPO and from existing
cash. The 2022 Note accrued interest at a rate of 10% per annum. As of December 31, 2013, the outstanding
principal amount of the 2022 Note was $18.8 million. The 2022 Note was issued at a discount and the total
unamortized discount related to this note was $4.1 million which was written off with the repayment of this
note.

As of December 31, 2014, the carrying value of our total long-term debt, including current portion was
$27.0 million which approximates its fair value. As of December 31, 2013, the carrying value and fair value of
our total long-term debt, including current portion was $82.0 million and $84.9 million, respectively. The fair
value of variable rate long-term debt approximates market value because the cost of borrowing fluctuates based
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upon market conditions. The fair value of fixed rate long-term debt is estimated based on the borrowing rates
currently available to us for bank loans with similar terms and maturities. During 2014, with the payoff of the
2022 Note, we also wrote off the associated derivative liability and unamortized discount. The fair value of the
derivative liability was $0.5 million and the unamortized discount was $4.1 million at the time of the repayment.

Aggregate future maturities of long-term debt for the next five years and thereafter (including current
portion) as of December 31, 2014 are as follows (dollars in thousands):

Year Ending December 31,

2015 $ 855
2016 894
2017 941
2018 988
2019 1,036
Thereafter 22,264

$26,978

6. EMPLOYEE SAVINGS PLAN

Our employees that are over the age of 21 and have completed ninety (90) days of service are eligible to
participate in our 401(k) plan. We have made a Qualified Automatic Contribution Arrangement (“QACA”)
election, whereby we make a matching contribution equal to 100% of the first 1% of salary deferrals and 50% of
salary deferrals between 2% and 6%, up to a maximum matching contribution of 3.5% of salary each plan year
for our employees. We are allowed to make additional discretionary matching contributions and discretionary
profit sharing contributions. Employees are 100% vested in amounts attributable to salary deferrals and rollover
contributions. The QACA matching contributions will be 100% vested after two years of employment from the
date of hire. If an employee terminates service prior to completing two years of employment, the employee will
not be vested in these contributions. The discretionary contributions are vested over a six year period. Matching
contributions amounted to $1.7 million, $1.2 million and $1.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2014,
2013 and 2012, respectively.

7. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Our financial instruments consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts
payable, funds held for clients, client funds obligation, long-term debt and derivative liability. The carrying
amount of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, funds held for clients and client
fund obligations approximates fair value because of the short-term nature of the instruments.

We measure certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value at each reporting period. Fair value is a
market-based measurement that should be determined based on assumptions that market participants would use
in pricing an asset or liability. A financial instrument’s classification within the fair value hierarchy is based upon
the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Three levels of inputs may be used to
measure fair value are as follow:

Level 1—Unadjusted observable inputs that reflect quoted prices in active markets

Level 2—Input other than quoted prices in active markets that are directly or indirectly observable

Level 3—Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity

We use observable data, when available. During the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, we did
not have any transfers between level 1, 2 or 3 in the three-tier fair value hierarchy.
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The following table provides a summary of the fair value of financial instruments that are measured on a
recurring basis using the above input categories for the year ended December 31, 2013. We did not have any
financial instruments that are measured on a recurring basis at December 31, 2014, as the note payable to related
parties were paid in full during 2014 (dollars in thousands):

December 31, 2013

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Liabilities
Derivative liability $— $— $1,107 $1,107

$— $— $1,107 $1,107

The derivative liability related to long-term debt to related parties is classified as a Level 3 derivative due to
valuation based upon significant unobservable inputs.

The key inputs used to calculate the fair value of the embedded derivative are: probability of exit, remaining
term, yield volatility, credit spread, and risk-free rate. In general, increases in the probability of exit, credit
spread, and risk-free rate would increase the value of the embedded derivative. Conversely, increases in the
remaining term and yield volatility would decrease the value of the embedded derivative.

We did not have any financial instruments that are measured on a recurring basis for the year ended
December 31, 2014. Quantitative information regarding significant unobservable inputs used for recurring Level
3 fair value measurements of financial instruments as of December 31, 2013 were as follows:

December 31, 2013

Valuation Technique Key Inputs Range

Derivative Liability Lattice Model Probability of exit 90%
Remaining term 0.8 years - 8.3 years
Yield Volatility 21.4% - 31.1%
Credit Spread 8.90%
Risk-free rate 0.13% - 2.45%

The following table summarizes the change in fair value of our Level 3 financial instruments for the years
ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 (dollars in thousands).

2014 2013

Balance, beginning of year $
1,107 $1,767

Issuances — —
Change in fair value of derivative liability (635) (660)
Gain on the extinguishment of derivative liability (472) —

Balance, end of year $ — $1,107

Total change of the derivative liability recognized as other income, net in the consolidated statements of
income was $1.1 million, $0.7 million and $0.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012,
respectively.

8. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share (“EPS”) is based on the weighted average number of shares of common stock
outstanding for the period. Diluted EPS is computed in a similar manner to basic EPS after assuming the issuance
of shares of common stock for all potentially dilutive shares of restricted stock whether or not they are vested.

76



Under the 2014 Reorganization, all the outstanding common units, Series B Preferred Units and incentive
units of Holdings were exchanged for, or converted into, 45,708,573 shares of our common stock and 8,121,101
shares of our restricted stock as of January 1, 2014.

The following is a reconciliation of net income (loss) and the shares of common stock used in the
computation of basic and diluted net earnings per share (dollars in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

Numerator:
Net income (loss) $ 5,663 $ 607 $ (406)
Net income (loss) attributable to non-controlling interest — (6) 3

Net income (loss) attributable to the Company $ 5,663 $ 601 $ (403)

Denominator:
Weighted average shares outstanding 49,002,809 44,560,053 44,560,053
Adjustment for vested restricted stock 781,345 916,842 211,506

Shares for calculating basic EPS 49,784,154 45,476,895 44,771,559

Weighted average shares outstanding 49,002,809 44,560,053 44,560,053
Adjustment for vested restricted stock 781,345 916,842 211,506
Dilutive effect of unvested restricted stock 2,073,155 2,585,180 —

Shares for calculating diluted EPS 51,857,309 48,062,075 44,771,559

Net income per share:
Basic $ 0.11 $ 0.01 $ (0.01)
Diluted $ 0.11 $ 0.01 $ (0.01)

We excluded 2,683,822 shares of restricted stock from the diluted earnings per share calculation for the year
ended December 31, 2012 because they were anti-dilutive.

Pro forma net income per share (UNAUDITED)

In connection with the 2014 Reorganization, we became taxed as a Subchapter C Corporation, effective
January 1, 2014. The pro forma net income applied in computing the pro forma EPS for the years ended December 31,
2013 and 2012 was based on our historical net income as adjusted to reflect our conversion to a Subchapter C
Corporation as if it had occurred as of January 1, 2012 and the pro forma tax expense associated with CP IV Blocker.
The pro forma net income includes an adjustment to income tax expense, the amount of which was determined at an
effective tax rate of 47% and 20% which resulted in an incremental pro forma income tax (benefit) expense of ($0.1)
million and less than ($0.1) million for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. See Note 12 for
more information about pro forma income taxes.
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There was no pro forma tax expense (benefit) for the year ended December 31, 2014. The following is a
reconciliation of pro forma net income (loss) for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 and the shares of
stock used in the computation of pro forma basic and diluted net income (loss) per share (dollars in thousands).

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012

Unaudited Pro Forma EPS Table
Unaudited pro forma numerator:

Net income (loss) attributable to the Company $ 601 $ (403)
Unaudited pro forma additional income tax expense (benefit) (137) (14)

Unaudited pro forma net income (loss) attributable to the
Company $ 738 $ (389)

Unaudited pro forma denominator:
Unaudited pro forma weighted average shares outstanding 44,560,053 44,560,053
Adjustment for vested restricted stock 916,842 211,506

Pro forma shares for calculating basic EPS 45,476,895 44,771,559

Unaudited pro forma weighted average shares outstanding 44,560,053 44,560,053
Adjustment for vested restricted stock 916,842 211,506
Effect of dilutive restricted stock 2,585,180 —

Pro forma shares for calculating diluted EPS 48,062,075 44,771,559

Unaudited pro forma net income (loss) per share:
Basic $ 0.02 $ (0.01)
Diluted $ 0.02 $ (0.01)

9. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

Prior to the 2014 Reorganization, Holdings had four authorized classes of limited liability company interests
(each a “unit”). Series A Preferred Units were voting units with first priority of distribution, entitled to a
preferred yield (as defined within our limited liability company agreement) of 9% with regard to certain future
asset distributions and conversion features. Series B Preferred Units were non-voting units, entitled to receive
distributions only after certain conditions were met. Common units were voting units. Incentive units were non-
voting units reserved for issuance to our employees, officers, directors and other service providers. During the
year ended December 31, 2013, we redeemed some of our incentive units through total cash payments of $1.1
million, resulting in total incremental compensation cost of $0.8 million, of which $0.2 million has been
capitalized on the date of redemptions.

On January 1, 2014, we consummated the 2014 Reorganization, pursuant to which: (i) affiliates of Welsh,
Carson, Anderson & Stowe, L.P., contributed WCAS Holdings and CP IV Blocker, which collectively owned all
of the Series A Preferred Units of Holdings, to Software in exchange for shares of common stock of Software
and (ii) the owners of outstanding Series B Preferred Units of Holdings contributed their Series B Preferred Units
of Holdings to Software in exchange for shares of common stock of Software. Immediately after these
contributions, Merger Sub merged with and into Holdings with Holdings surviving the merger. Upon
consummation of the merger, the remaining holders of outstanding common and incentive units of Holdings
received shares of common stock of Software for their common and incentive units by operation of Delaware law
and Holdings’ ownership interest in Software was cancelled. Outstanding common units, Series B Preferred
Units and WCAS Holdings and CP IV Blocker were contributed to Software in exchange for, or converted into,
45,708,573 shares of common stock and 8,121,101 shares of restricted stock of Software.

The shares of restricted stock were issued subject to various vesting conditions. A portion of the restricted
stock is subject to time-based vesting conditions, while a portion is subject to market-based vesting conditions.
The market-based vesting conditions are based on our total enterprise value exceeding certain specified
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thresholds. Following these transactions, all outstanding Series C Preferred Units were eliminated in an
intercompany transaction between Holdings and WCAS Holdings, and we assumed the 2017 Note. As a result of
the 2014 Reorganization, we recorded a one-time reclassification of $29.3 million of historical accumulated
deficit to additional paid in capital on January 1, 2014. Following the 2014 Reorganization, Software became a
holding company with its principal asset being the Series A Preferred Units of Holdings.

The fair value of each share of restricted stock issued is estimated on the date of grant using a Monte Carlo
simulation model. This model considers a range of assumptions related to volatility, risk-free interest rate,
expected term, and expected dividend yield. Expected volatilities utilized in the model are based on historical

volatilities of comparable guideline companies until information regarding the volatility of our own pricing
becomes available. An expected dividend yield of 0% is applied given we have not paid and do not expect to pay
dividends in the future. The risk-free rate is derived from the implied yield available on 5 year U.S. Treasury
securities with a remaining term equivalent to that of the respective shares as of the valuation date. The expected
term represents the period that our restricted stock is expected to be outstanding. We determined the expected
term assumption based on the vesting terms and contractual terms of the restricted stock. We are required to
estimate forfeitures and only record compensation costs for those awards that are expected to vest.

In conjunction with the 2014 Reorganization, unvested incentive units were converted to shares of restricted
stock at various conversion ratios that ranged from 1:24 to 1:47. The conversion to restricted stock was
determined based on the underlying conditions of the pre-conversion incentive units. The conversion to the grant-
date fair values of restricted stock granted was determined by applying the applicable conversion ratio to the
respective original grant-date fair value of incentive units granted. The following table presents a summary of the
grant-date fair values of restricted stock granted and the related assumptions:

Years Ended December 31, 2014 2013 2012

Grant-date fair value
Restricted stock — $0.11 - $0.92 $0.18 - $1.88

Risk-free interest rates — 0.71% - 1.41% 0.72%
Estimated volatility — 50.0% 60.0%
Expected life (in years) — 5.0 5.0

There were no grants made during the year ended December 31, 2014.

The following table presents stock-based compensation expense resulting from employee incentive stock
arrangements and is presented in the following line items in the accompanying consolidated statements of
income for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 (amounts in thousands):

Years Ended December 31, 2014 2013 2012

Operating expense $ 32 $222 $ 87
Sales and marketing 166 114 83
Research and development 16 345 100
General and administrative 498 253 233

Total stock-based compensation expense $712 $934 $503

We do not receive any cash proceeds from the conversion of our restricted stock. The capitalized non-cash
stock-based compensation expense related to software developed for internal use of $4 thousand and $0.2 million
was included in software and capitalized software costs in property, plant and equipment, net in our consolidated
balance sheets as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Compensation expense for restricted stock awards with service only conditions are measured based on the
fair value of the award on the grant date and recognized over the requisite service period. Compensation expense
relating to the issuance of market-based restricted stock is measured based upon the fair value of the award on
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the grant date and recognized on a straight-line basis over the vesting period based upon the probability that the
market targets will be met. Under the market-based vesting conditions the restricted stock vested 50% upon
reaching a total enterprise value of $1.4 billion on December 1, 2014. The remaining 50% will vest upon
reaching a total enterprise value of $1.8 billion, provided that the person is employed by Software on that date.
2,720,657 shares of our restricted stock that were subject to market-based vesting conditions upon reaching a
total enterprise value of $1.4 billion, effective as of December 1, 2014. For the shares of market-based restricted
stock that vested effective as of December 1, 2014 the associated compensation expense was adjusted for actual
forfeitures at that date. The compensation expense recognized related to the vesting of this market-based
restricted stock totaled $0.3 million.

If the Company’s stock price remains at or near its current price, the Company believes that the shares of
restricted stock that are subject to the market-based vesting condition of a total enterprise value of $1.8 billion
will vest during the first quarter of 2015.

The following table presents a summary of the activity related to restricted stock for the year ended
December 31, 2014:

Year ended December 31, 2014
Number of

shares

Weighted
average

grant-date
fair value

(in
dollars)

Restricted stock outstanding at January 1, 2014 8,121,101 $0.25
Restricted stock granted — —
Restricted stock vested (3,517,327) 0.25
Restricted stock forfeited (63,754) 0.50

Restricted stock outstanding at December 31, 2014 4,540,020 0.24

The fair market value of the restricted stock awards shown in the preceding table are based on our estimated
enterprise value at the date of grant, with consideration given to rights and terms of such shares.

Our restricted stock does not have an exercise price and therefore the intrinsic value of the restricted stock
equals the fair value.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, there was one modification that affected two employees. The
modification amended the vesting period from the original 50% on the third and 50% on the fourth anniversaries,
to immediate vesting of 100% of the shares. This modification resulted in total incremental compensation costs
of $0.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2012. There were no modifications to restricted stock during the
years ended December 31, 2014 or 2013.

There was $0.7 million and $1.3 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested
restricted stock issued to employees as of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. The
unrecognized compensation cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 2.7 years at
December 31, 2014.

10. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During each of the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, we paid rent on our Dallas office space
in the amounts of $0.3 million. The Dallas office building is owned by 417 Oakbend, LP, a Texas limited
partnership. Our Chief Sales Officer owns a .01% general partnership interest and a 10.49% limited partnership
interest in 417 Oakbend, LP.
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In November 2013 and December 2012, we purchased approximately 18.3 acres and 17.6 acres of land,
respectively, for future expansion at our corporate headquarters. The land was purchased from Kilpatrick
Partners, L.L.C., for a total cost of $4.8 million and $2.3 million, respectively. The manager of Kilpatrick
Partners, L.L.C. is our President and Chief Executive Officer.

In connection with the April 2012 Corporate Reorganization, we entered into the 2022 Note with WCAS
Capital Partners IV, L.P., a related party as described in Note 5. The 2022 Note was due on April 3, 2022 and
interest was payable at an annual rate of 10%, payable semiannually in arrears on December 31 and June 30 of
each year. The balance of the note was repaid with proceeds from our IPO and existing cash.

In April 2014, we paid off the balance of the 2017 Note that was issued by WCAS Holdings and was
payable to WCAS X, a related party with proceeds from our IPO and from existing cash as described in Note 5.

At December 31, 2013, Holdings owed $0.1 million to Welsh, Carson, Anderson & Stowe, L.P. and certain
of their affiliates, representing tax distributions and travel expenses paid by Welsh, Carson, Anderson & Stowe,
L.P. and charged to Holdings. We did not have a payable to Welsh, Carson, Anderson & Stowe, L.P. and certain
of their affiliates as of December 31, 2014.

We entered into a Limited Liability Company Unit Redemption Agreement, effective as of January 26,
2013, pursuant to which we purchased 2,605 incentive units from John Kerber at a purchase price of $260.21 per
unit, which price was based on a third party appraisal and an internal appraisal. The incentive units were
purchased from John Kerber for an aggregate purchase price of approximately $0.7 million. John Kerber is one
of our former employees and the brother of William X. Kerber III, our Chief Information Officer.

11. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Employment Agreements

We have employment agreements with our executive officers. The agreements allow for annual
compensation, participation in executive benefit plans, and performance-based cash bonuses.

Funding Agreement

In March 2010, we entered into a funding agreement with the Oklahoma City Economic Development Trust
(the “Trust”) and the city of Oklahoma City. The Trust provided $2.0 million worth of certain public
infrastructure improvements related to our newly constructed principal executive offices in northwest Oklahoma
City. In exchange for the infrastructure improvements provided, we agreed to create at least 492 jobs over a five
year period, with an average first year salary in excess of $37 thousand and make a minimum capital investment
in the project of at least $15 million. We further agreed that we would be responsible for repayment of any
amount that was not offset by earned job creation payments. As of December 31, 2014, we had fulfilled our
obligation for the job creation payments.

Legal Proceedings

On September 23, 2014, in anticipation of an alleged trademark infringement claim, we filed a complaint
against National Financial Partners Corp. in the United States District Court for the Western District of
Oklahoma (Civil Action No. 5:14-cv-01029-R) seeking a declaratory judgment that we have not engaged in any
trademark infringement or unfair competition in connection with the use of our logo. On September 23, 2014,
National Financial Partners Corp. filed a complaint against us in the United States District Court for the Northern
District of Illinois (Civil Action No. 1:14-cv-07424). The complaint alleges trademark infringement, unfair
competition, deceptive trade practices, consumer fraud and deceptive business practices related to the adoption
and use of our logo and seeks preliminary and permanent injunctions prohibiting us from continued infringement
as well as money damages, including an accounting for sales and profits, attorneys’ fees and disgorgement of
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profits. On October 16, 2014, National Financial Partners Corp. filed a motion to dismiss the action pending in
the Western District of Oklahoma. On October 20, 2014, we filed a motion to transfer the action from the
Northern District of Illinois to the Western District of Oklahoma, and a memorandum in support of the motion to
transfer, in the Northern District of Illinois. On December 12, 2014, the United States District Court for the
Western District of Oklahoma granted National Financial Partners Corp.’s motion to dismiss. National Financial
Partners Corp. has moved for an order preliminarily enjoining us from using our logo in the Northern District of
Illinois. On January 5, 2015, we filed an answer, affirmative defenses and counterclaim in the Northern District
of Illinois denying the material allegations in National Financial Corp.’s complaint and seeking a declaratory
judgment that we have not engaged in any trademark infringement with respect to the use of our logo. On
February 15, 2015, the Northern District of Illinois denied our motion to transfer the venue and scheduled the
lawsuit for trial in the Northern District of Illinois in February 2016. The Northern District of Illinois has not yet
ruled on National Financial Partners Corp.’s motion for a preliminary injunction. The Northern District of Illinois
will set a briefing schedule on the motion filed by NFP asking the Court to enter a preliminary injunction
prohibiting our use of our logo pending the outcome of the action. NFP’s motion for a preliminary injuction will
be heard in the Western District of Oklahoma. We intend to vigorously defend this litigation. In the event that a
court ultimately determines that we have infringed any of the asserted trademarks or grants National Financial
Partners Corp.’s motion for a preliminary injunction, we may be subject to damages, which may include treble
damages, be enjoined from using our current logo while the parties are litigating the merits of the claims or be
required to modify our logo and/or undergo a rebranding of our solution and applications. We cannot predict with
any degree of certainty the outcome of the litigation or determine the extent of any potential liability or damages.

We are involved in various other legal proceedings in the ordinary course of business. Although we cannot
predict the outcome of these proceedings, legal matters are subject to inherent uncertainties and there exists the
possibility that the ultimate resolution of these matters could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

Operating Leases and Deferred Rent

We lease office space under several noncancellable operating leases with contractual terms expiring from
2015 to 2020. Minimum rent expenses are recognized over the lease term. The lease term is defined as the fixed
noncancellable term of the lease plus all periods, if any, for which failure to renew the lease imposes a penalty on
us in an amount that a renewal appears, at the inception of the lease, to be reasonably assured. When a lease
contains a predetermined fixed escalation of the minimum rent, we recognize the related rent expense on a
straight-line basis and record the difference between the recognized rent expense and the amount payable under
the lease as a liability. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, we had $0.8 million and $0.3 million, respectively,
recorded as a liability for deferred rent.

Future annual minimum lease payments under noncancellable operating leases with initial or remaining
terms of one year or more as of December 31, 2014 were as follows (dollars in thousands):

Year Ending December 31, Operating

2015 $ 4,226
2016 4,142
2017 3,927
2018 2,778
2019 2,092
Thereafter 280

Total minimum lease payments $17,445

Rent expense under operating leases for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 was $3.4
million, $2.0 million and $1.5 million, respectively.
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12. INCOME TAXES

The items comprising income tax expense are as follows (dollars in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

Provision for current income taxes
Federal $1,330 $— $ —
State 388 275 80

Total provision for current income taxes 1,718 275 80

Provision (benefit) for deferred income taxes, net
Federal 2,114 347 (51)
State 161 170 (113)

Total provision (benefit) for deferred income taxes, net 2,275 517 (164)

Total provision (benefit) for income taxes $3,993 $792 $ (84)

The following schedule reconciles the statutory Federal tax rate to the effective income tax rate:

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

Federal statutory tax rate 34% 34% 34%
Increase(decrease) resulting from:

Earnings excluded from Federal tax 0% (14%) (10%)
State income taxes, net of Federal income tax benefit 4% 29% 7%
Nondeductible expenses 4% 4% (13%)
Other (1%) 3% (1%)

Effective income tax rate 41% 56% 17%

Our net deferred tax assets and liabilities consist of the following (dollars in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013

Current deferred income tax assets, net
Net operating losses $1,381 $3,643
Federal tax credits 64 29

Current deferred income tax assets, net $1,445 $3,672

Non-current deferred income tax liabilities, net
Investment in Paycom Payroll Holdings, LLC 3,107 2,895

Non-current deferred income tax liabilities, net $3,107 $2,895

At December 31, 2014, we had net operating loss carryforwards for federal income tax purposes of
approximately $3.2 million and state income tax purposes of approximately $7.7 million which are available to
offset future federal and state taxable income through 2033.

At December 31, 2014 and 2013, we had no material unrecognized tax benefits related to uncertain tax
positions.

We file income tax returns with the United States federal government and various state jurisdictions. With
few exceptions, we are no longer subject to U.S federal tax examinations by tax authorities for years prior to
2011 or state and local examinations by tax authorities for years prior to 2010.

Pro Forma Income Tax Expense

In connection with the 2014 Reorganization, we became taxed as a Subchapter C Corporation, effective
January 1, 2014. As we were a Subchapter C Corporation during 2014, there is no pro forma income tax expense
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associated with the year ended December 31, 2014. The pro forma net income (loss) applied in computing the
pro forma EPS for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 is based on our historical net income (loss) as
adjusted to reflect our conversion to a Subchapter C Corporation as if it had occurred as of January 1, 2011 and
the pro forma tax associated with CP IV Blocker. The pro forma net income (loss) includes an adjustment to
income tax expense, the amount of which was determined at an effective income tax rate of 47% and 20% for the
years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. This resulted in an incremental pro forma income tax
benefit of $(0.1) million and less than $(0.1) million for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively.

13. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On January 21, 2015, the Company closed its follow-on public offering whereby 6,422,750 shares of our
common stock were sold to the public by certain selling stockholders at a public offering price of $22.50 per
share. The Company did not receive any proceeds from the sale of these shares.

If the Company’s stock price remains at or near its current price, the Company believes that the shares of
restricted stock that are subject to the market-based vesting condition of a total enterprise value of $1.8 billion
will vest during the first quarter of 2015.

14. SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (unaudited)

The following tables set forth selected quarterly statements of operations for each of the eight quarters
ended on December 31, 2014:

Quarter Ended

December 31, 2014 September 30, 2014 June 30, 2014 March 31, 2014

Revenues $ 44,040 $ 36,598 $ 33,306 $ 36,985
Operating income 4,787 4,678 3,094 3,141

Net income (loss) 2,506 2,690 (593) 1,060
Net income (loss) per share, basic $ 0.05 $ 0.05 $ (0.01) $ 0.02
Net income (loss) per share, diluted $ 0.05 $ 0.05 $ (0.01) $ 0.02
Unaudited pro forma net income (loss) 2,506 2,690 (593) 1,060
Unaudited pro forma net income (loss) per

share, basic $ 0.05 $ 0.05 $ (0.01) $ 0.02
Unaudited pro forma net income (loss) per

share, diluted $ 0.05 $ 0.05 $ (0.01) $ 0.02
Weighted average shares outstanding:

Basic 52,018,730 51,056,462 50,284,362 45,721,584
Diluted 53,855,629 52,978,051 50,284,362 48,371,169

Unaudited pro forma weighted average shares
outstanding:

Basic 52,018,730 51,056,462 50,284,362 45,721,584
Diluted 53,855,629 52,978,051 50,284,362 48,371,169
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Quarter Ended

December 31, 2013 September 30, 2013 June 30, 2013 March 31, 2013

Revenues $ 30,280 $ 25,830 $ 23,914 $ 27,577
Operating income (loss) (1,099) 1,839 3,193 5,539

Net income (loss) (1,964) (424) 360 2,635
Net income (loss) per share, basic $ (0.05) $ (0.01) $ 0.01 $ 0.06
Net income (loss) per share, diluted $ (0.04) $ (0.01) $ 0.01 $ 0.05
Unaudited pro forma net income (loss) (1,251) (328) 278 2,039
Unaudited pro forma net income (loss) per

share, basic $ (0.03) $ (0.01) $ 0.01 $ 0.05
Unaudited pro forma net income (loss) per

share, diluted $ (0.02) $ (0.01) $ 0.01 $ 0.04
Weighted average shares outstanding:

Basic 46,017,666 45,707,802 45,621,868 44,857,788
Diluted 46,017,666 45,707,802 47,998,224 47,918,011

Unaudited pro forma weighted average shares
outstanding:

Basic 46,017,666 45,707,802 45,621,868 44,857,788
Diluted 46,017,666 45,707,802 47,998,224 47,918,011

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Controls and Procedures

The term “disclosure controls and procedures,” as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the
Exchange Act, refers to controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be
disclosed by a company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms. Disclosure controls and
procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that such information is
accumulated and communicated to a company’s management, including its principal executive and principal
financial officers, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Our management, with the participation of our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, has
evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2014, the end of the
period covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Based upon such evaluation, our chief executive officer and
chief financial officer have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of such date.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and Attestation Report of the Registered
Public Accounting Firm

This Annual Report on Form 10-K does not include a report of management’s assessment regarding internal
control over financial reporting or an attestation report of our registered public accounting firm due to a transition
period established by rules of the SEC for newly public companies and our status as an “emerging growth
company” under the JOBS Act.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the quarter
ended December 31, 2014 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal
control over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information

None.
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Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Executive Officers and Directors

The following table provides information regarding our executive officers and directors as of January 30,
2015:

Name Age Position(s)

Chad Richison 44 President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
Craig E. Boelte 51 Chief Financial Officer
Jeffrey D. York 47 Chief Sales Officer
William X. Kerber III 39 Chief Information Officer
Jason D. Clark(1) 44 Director
Robert J. Levenson(1) 73 Director
Robert Minicucci(2)(3) 62 Chairman of the Board
Conner Mulvee 32 Director
Frederick C. Peters II(1) 65 Director
Sanjay Swani(2)(3) 48 Director

(1) Member of the Audit Committee.
(2) Member of the Compensation Committee.
(3) Member of the Nominating and Governance Committee.

Chad Richison has served as President and Chief Executive Officer since he founded Paycom in 1998.
Mr. Richison has also served as a Director since 1998. He began his career in sales with ADP, and then moved to
Payroll 1 prior to founding Paycom. Mr. Richison received his B.A. in Mass Communications—Journalism from
the University of Central Oklahoma. Mr. Richison was selected to serve on our board of directors because of the
leadership skills, strategic guidance and experience he brings as our President and Chief Executive Officer and
operational expertise from his prior experience in the industry.

Craig E. Boelte has served as our Chief Financial Officer since February 2006. Before joining Paycom,
Mr. Boelte owned an accounting practice serving over 600 clients including Paycom. Prior to that, Mr. Boelte
spent nine years at Deloitte & Touche where he served as Senior Tax Manager. Mr. Boelte has over 28 years of
experience in the workforce management and HR industry. Mr. Boelte is a member of the Oklahoma Society of
CPA’s and the American Institute of CPA’s. Mr. Boelte received his B.S. in Business Administration and
Mastered in Science in Accounting from Oklahoma State University.

Jeffrey D. York has served as our Chief Sales Officer since 2007. Mr. York opened our Dallas location in
2002 prior to joining our corporate executive team. Before joining Paycom, Mr. York was employed by ADP
from 1990 to 2002 where he held a variety of sales management positions including Vice President of Sales for
the Major Accounts Division. Mr. York earned his MBA from Baylor University and his Bachelors of Business
Administration from Texas Tech University.

William X. Kerber III has served as our Chief Information Officer since July 2007. Mr. Kerber joined us in
1999 while completing his B.S. in computer science. Mr. Kerber is a founding team member and has over
18 years of software development and network design experience. Prior to serving as Chief Information Officer,
Mr. Kerber served as a lead software developer and network architect. He attended the Oklahoma School of
Science and Math (OSSM) and graduated from the University of Oklahoma’s Engineering/Computer Science
program where he is currently a member of its board of advisors.

Jason D. Clark has served as a member of our board of directors since August 2014. Mr. Clark has served as
President and Chief Executive Officer of CompSource Mutual Insurance Company, since March 2009. Mr. Clark
is a member of the Board of Directors of the Oklahoma State Chamber of Commerce, a Vice President of the
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American Association of State Compensation Insurance Funds (AASCIF), a Member of the Workers’
Compensation Electronic Interchange Advisory Committee for the State of Oklahoma and has previously served
in leadership positions for multiple industry and trade associations. Mr. Clark has over 25 years of experience in
the insurance industry specializing in workers’ compensation insurance. Mr. Clark earned a Bachelor’s degree in
Business Administration from the University of Central Oklahoma. Mr. Clark was selected to serve on our board
of directors because of his industry experience.

Robert J. Levenson has served as a member of our board of directors since July 2007. Mr. Levenson is a
founder and Managing Member of Lenox Capital Group, LLC, a private venture capital investment company
formed in 2000 which focuses primarily on early stage software technology and service company investments.
From 1981 through 1990, Mr. Levenson held executive management positions with ADP, including Group
President—Employer Services, member of the Corporate Executive Committee and its Board of Directors. In late
1990, Mr. Levenson was named Chief Operating Officer, a member of Office of the President and was elected to
the Board of Directors of Medco Containment Services, Inc., which was acquired by Merck & Co., Inc.,
(“Merck”), and later spun out to Merck shareholders. From 1992 until 2003, Mr. Levenson served on the Board
of Directors of First Data Corporation (“FDC”), and from 1993 until his retirement in 2000, he served as
Executive Vice President of FDC. Thereafter, he served as a consultant to FDC and some of its joint venture
affiliates until 2006. Mr. Levenson has served on boards of directors of public and private companies as well as
civic and philanthropic organizations. These include: ADP, FDC, Medco, Central Data Systems, Inc., Comnet,
Inc., Polyvision, Broadway & Seymour, Superior TeleCom Inc., Vestcom International, Emisphere
Technologies, Inc., Ceridian Corp, and Elite Pharmaceuticals, Inc. He graduated from Kent State University with
a B.S. in Business Administration. Mr. Levenson also serves or has served on boards of several private
companies. Mr. Levenson was selected to serve on our board of directors because of his industry expertise and
experience as a member of the board of directors of other companies.

Robert Minicucci has served as a member of our board of directors since July 2007. He was elected
Chairman of the Board in December 2013. Mr. Minicucci joined Welsh, Carson, Anderson & Stowe in August
1993. He has served as a General Partner of Welsh, Carson, Anderson & Stowe and focused on the information/
business services industry during his entire tenure with the firm. He continues to serve as a General Partner for
certain funds affiliated with Welsh, Carson, Anderson & Stowe. Prior to joining Welsh, Carson, Anderson &
Stowe, Mr. Minicucci served as Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of First Data Corporation.
Before joining First Data Corporation, he served as Senior Vice President and Treasurer of the American Express
Company. He also spent 12 years at Lehman Brothers where he was a Managing Director. Mr. Minicucci
currently serves on the boards of directors of two public companies, Alliance Data Systems, Inc. and Amdocs
Limited, and previously served on the boards of directors of Retalix, Ltd. Over the course of his career
Mr. Minicucci has served on the board of directors for 15 publicly and privately held companies. Mr. Minicucci
received a B.A. from Amherst College in 1975 and received an M.B.A. from Harvard Business School in 1979.
Mr. Minicucci was selected to serve on our board of directors because of his financial and investment expertise
and his industry experience with other software technology companies.

Conner Mulvee has served as a member of our board of directors since February 2014. Mr. Mulvee has
served as a Vice President at Welsh, Carson, Anderson & Stowe since January 2011. Prior to that, Mr. Mulvee
served as an Associate at Welsh, Carson, Anderson & Stowe from August 2008 until January 2011. He focuses
on investments in the information/business services and healthcare industries. Prior to joining Welsh, Carson,
Anderson & Stowe, he spent two years in the investment banking division of Lehman Brothers. He earned an
undergraduate degree from Amherst College in 2005. Mr. Mulvee was selected to serve on our board of directors
because of his financial and investment expertise.

Frederick C. Peters II has served as a member of our board of directors since February 2014. He currently
serves as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Bluestone Financial Institutions Fund. Prior to joining
Bluestone Financial Institutions Fund, Mr. Peters served as the Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
of Bryn Mawr Bank Corporation (“BMTC”), a publicly traded company, and its principal subsidiary, The Bryn
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Mawr Trust Company. BMTC is listed on the Nasdaq Stock Market. Prior to joining BMTC in 2001, Mr. Peters
started two community banks: National Bank of the Main Line in 1985 and First Main Line Bank in 1995.
Mr. Peters began his banking career at Philadelphia National Bank in 1976 and held lending and executive
positions at Hamilton Bank and Industrial Valley Bank prior to starting his first community bank. Mr. Peters has
served on numerous non-profit boards including Main Line Health where he served first as Chairman of the
Audit Committee and later as Chairman of the Finance Committee. He currently serves on the board of directors
of the National Association of Corporate Directors – Philadelphia Chapter and The Bryn Mawr Film Institute. In
addition, Mr. Peters served on the Board of Directors of the Federal Reserve Bank of Philadelphia from 2009
through 2014. He served as the Chairman of the Federal Reserve Bank of Philadelphia’s Audit Committee from
January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2014, while also serving as a member of the Federal Reserve Bank’s
Committee of Audit Chairs in Washington, D.C. Mr. Peters graduated from Amherst College with a B.S. in
Political Science. Mr. Peters was selected to serve on our board of directors because of his financial and
investment expertise and his experience as a member of the board of directors of a public company.

Sanjay Swani has served as a member of our board of directors since April 2013. Mr. Swani is a member of
the management committee of Welsh, Carson, Anderson & Stowe, having joined Welsh, Carson, Anderson &
Stowe in 1999. He focuses on investments in the information/business services industry. Prior to joining Welsh,
Carson, Anderson & Stowe, he was a Director with Fox Paine & Company, a San Francisco-based private equity
firm. Mr. Swani also spent four years in the Mergers, Acquisitions & Restructuring Department and two years in
the Debt Capital Markets Department of Morgan Stanley Dean Witter & Co. Mr. Swani currently serves on the
board of directors of Mobile Mini, a publicly traded company listed on the Nasdaq Global Select Market, and
previously served on the board of directors of ITC Deltacom Inc. from 2002 until 2010, which was quoted on the
OTC Bulletin Board during such time. He earned an undergraduate degree from Princeton University in 1987 and
concurrent degrees from the Harvard Law School and the MIT Sloan School of Management in 1994. Mr. Swani
was selected to serve on our board of directors because of his financial and investment expertise.

Board of Directors Composition and Risk Oversight

Our board of directors consists of seven members, of whom only Messrs. Clark, Levenson and Peters qualify
as “independent” according to the New York Stock Exchange Listed Company Manual. Our directors hold office
until their successors have been elected and qualified or until the earlier of their resignation or removal.

Our certificate of incorporation and bylaws provide that our board of directors is divided into three classes
whose members serve three-year terms expiring in successive years. The terms of office of members of our board
of directors are divided into three classes:

• Class I directors, whose term will expire at the annual meeting of the stockholders to be held in 2017;

• Class II directors, whose term will expire at the annual meeting of the stockholders to be held in 2015;
and

• Class III directors, whose term will expire at the annual meeting of the stockholders to be held in 2016.

Our Class I directors are Messrs. Minicucci and Mulvee, our Class II directors are Messrs. Levenson and
Peters and our Class III directors are Messrs. Clark, Richison and Swani. At each annual meeting of stockholders,
the successors to the directors whose terms will then expire will be elected to serve from the time of election and
qualification until the third annual meeting following such election. Any vacancies in our classified board of
directors will be filled by the remaining directors and the elected person will serve the remainder of the term of
the class to which he or she is appointed. Any additional directorships resulting from an increase in the number
of directors will be distributed among the three classes so that, as nearly as possible, each class will consist of
one-third of the directors.
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In connection with the 2014 Reorganization, we and the Stockholders Agreement Parties entered into the
Stockholders Agreement. Among other things, the Stockholders Agreement provides that for so long as the
parties thereto continue to collectively hold 40% of our issued and outstanding shares of common stock, each
party will vote and take all other necessary and desirable action within such party’s control to (i) cause the
authorized number of directors of our board of directors to be established at seven and (ii) elect to our board of
directors:

• three representatives designated by the holders of a majority of the shares of common stock held by
WCAS X and any of its affiliates to which shares of common stock are transferred pursuant to the
Stockholders Agreement;

• one representative designated by the holders of a majority of the shares of common stock held by
WCAS Capital IV and any of its affiliates to which shares of common stock are transferred pursuant to
the Stockholders Agreement; and

• subject to certain conditions, one representative designated by the holders of a majority of the shares of
common stock held by Chad Richison, Shannon Rowe, William X. Kerber III, Jeffrey D. York,
Robert J. Levenson and the Estate of Richard Aiello and any of their affiliates, (“Minority Holders”)
who shall be Chad Richison for so long as he is employed by us.

As such, Welsh, Carson, Anderson & Stowe and its affiliates have effectively designated four
representatives to our board of directors. Messrs. Levenson, Swani and Minicucci were designated by WCAS X.
Mr. Mulvee was designated by WCAS Capital IV.

Under the Stockholders Agreement, each of the Stockholders Agreement Parties has also appointed WCAS
X as such person’s true and lawful proxy and attorney-in-fact to vote at any annual or special meeting of
stockholders or to take any action by written consent in lieu of such meeting for the election or removal of
directors and other related matters expressly covered by the Stockholders Agreement.

Our board of directors is responsible for, among other things, overseeing the conduct of our business;
reviewing and, where appropriate, approving our long-term strategic, financial and organizational goals and
plans; and reviewing the performance of our chief executive officer and other members of senior management.
Our board of directors, as a whole and through its committees, has responsibility for the oversight of risk
management. Our senior management is responsible for assessing and managing our risks on a day-to-day basis.
Our audit committee periodically discusses with management our policies with respect to risk assessment and
risk management and our significant financial risk exposures and the actions management has taken to limit,
monitor or control such exposures, and our compensation committee oversees risk related to compensation
policies. Both our audit and compensation committees report to the full board of directors with respect to these
matters, among others.

Because the Stockholders Agreement Parties hold more than 50% of the voting power for the election of our
directors, we have elected to be a “controlled company” under the New York Stock Exchange Listed Company
Manual. As a controlled company, exemptions under the New York Stock Exchange Listed Company Manual
exempt us from compliance with certain corporate governance requirements, including the requirements:

• that a majority of our board of directors consists of “independent directors,” as defined under the New
York Stock Exchange Listed Company Manual;

• that any compensation committee or nominating and corporate governance committee be composed
entirely of independent directors with a written charter addressing the committee’s purpose and
responsibilities; and

• that any compensation committee or nominating and corporate governance committee have an annual
performance evaluation.
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These exemptions do not modify the independence requirements for our audit committee, and we comply
with the requirements of Rule 10A-3 of the Exchange Act and the New York Stock Exchange Listed Company
Manual.

Committees

Our board of directors has established the following committees: an audit committee, a compensation
committee and a nominating and corporate governance committee. Each committee has the composition and
primary responsibilities described below. Members serve on these committees until their resignation or until
otherwise determined by our board of directors.

Audit Committee

Our audit committee oversees the accounting and financial reporting processes of the Company and the audit
of the Company’s financial statements. In that regard, our audit committee assists board oversight of: (i) the
integrity of the Company’s financial statements, (ii) the Company’s compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, (iii) the independent auditor’s qualifications and independence, and (iv) the performance of the
Company’s internal audit function and independent auditors. Among other matters, the audit committee is
responsible for the retention of our independent auditors; evaluating the qualifications, performance and
independence of our independent auditors; reviewing the Company’s annual and interim financial statements and
discussing press releases, financial information and earnings guidance provided to analysts and rating agencies;
discussing policies with respect to risk assessment and risk management; overseeing the Company’s internal audit
function; reviewing and ensuring the adequacy of the Company’s internal control systems; reviewing and approving
related party transactions; and annually reviewing the audit committee charter and the committee’s performance.

The current members of our audit committee are Messrs. Clark, Levenson, and Peters with Mr. Peters
serving as the chairman of the committee. All members of our audit committee meet the requirements for
financial literacy under the New York Stock Exchange Listed Company Manual and applicable SEC rules and
regulations. Our board of directors has determined that Mr. Peters is an audit committee financial expert as
defined under the applicable rules of the SEC and has the requisite financial management expertise as defined
under the New York Stock Exchange Listed Company Manual. Messrs. Clark, Levenson and Peters are
considered independent under applicable SEC rules and regulations and the New York Stock Exchange Listed
Company Manual. The audit committee operates under a written charter that satisfies the applicable SEC rules
and regulations and the New York Stock Exchange Listed Company Manual.

Compensation Committee

Our compensation committee reviews and approves, or recommends that our board of directors approves,
the compensation of our executive officers. Among other matters, the compensation committee reviews and
approves corporate goals and objectives relevant to the compensation of our chief executive officer and other
executive officers, evaluates the performance of these officers in light of those goals and objectives, and
approves all stock option grants and other equity-related awards to our executive officers. The compensation
committee also annually reviews the compensation committee charter and the committee’s performance.

The current members of our compensation committee are Messrs. Minicucci and Swani, with Mr. Minicucci
serving as the chairman of the committee. We qualify as a “controlled company” under the New York Stock Exchange
Listed Company Manual and are not required to have a compensation committee composed of independent directors.
Therefore, none of the members of our compensation committee are independent under the applicable SEC rules and
regulations and the New York Stock Exchange Listed Company Manual or meet the definition of outside directors
under Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”).
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Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee

Our nominating and corporate governance committee is responsible for identifying and recommending
candidates for membership on our board of directors, including nominees recommended by stockholders,
reviewing and recommending the composition of our committees, overseeing our code of business conduct and
ethics, corporate governance guidelines and reporting and making recommendations to our board of directors
concerning governance matters. The nominating and corporate governance committee also annually reviews the
nominating and corporate governance committee charter and the committee’s performance. The current members
of the nominating and corporate governance committee are Messrs. Minicucci and Swani, with Mr. Swani
serving as chairman of the committee. We qualify as a “controlled company” under the New York Stock
Exchange Listed Company Manual and are not required to have a nominating and corporate governance
committee composed of independent directors. Therefore, none of the members of our nominating and corporate
governance committee are independent under the New York Stock Exchange Listed Company Manual and
applicable SEC rules and regulations.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires our officers and directors, and persons who own more than 10%
of a registered class of our equity securities, to file reports of ownership and changes of ownership with the SEC.
Our officers, directors and 10% stockholders are required by SEC regulations to furnish us with copies of all
Section 16(a) reports so filed. Based solely on review of copies of such reports received, we believe that, during
the last fiscal year, all filing requirements under Section 16(a) applicable to our officers, directors and 10%
stockholders were timely met, except that (a) one Form 3 for Christopher Solomon was not filed on a timely
basis and (b) one Form 4 for Mr. Solomon, whereby two transactions were reported, was not filed on a timely
basis. Mr. Solomon is subject to the Section 16(a) reporting obligations by virtue of his position as managing
member of the respective sole general partners of WCAS X and WCAS Capital IV.

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

We have adopted a code of business conduct and ethics that applies to all of our employees, officers and
directors, including our chief executive officer, chief financial officer and other principal executive and senior
officers responsible for financial reporting. The code of business conduct and ethics is available on our website at
www.investors.paycom.com. Our code of business conduct and ethics is a “code of ethics,” as defined in
Item 406(b) of Regulation S-K. The information contained on, or accessible from, our website is not part of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K by reference or otherwise. We will make any legally required disclosures regarding
amendments to, or waivers of, provisions of our code of ethics on our website.

Director Compensation

For 2015, our non-employee directors will receive annual fees for their service in the amount of $75,000 per
year, payable one-third in shares of common stock and two-thirds in cash. The chairman of our board of directors
receives an additional annual cash fee of $25,000. Audit committee members (other than the chairman) receive
an additional annual cash fee $5,000 and the chairman of the audit committee receives an additional annual cash
fee of $10,000. All directors are entitled to reimbursement for their reasonable out-of-pocket expenditures
incurred in connection with their board or committee service.
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The following table provides information regarding director compensation during 2014. Mr. Richison
served as our president and chief executive officer and did not receive additional compensation for his service as
a director in 2014. See “Executive Compensation—Summary Compensation Table for Fiscal Years Ended
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012” below for additional information concerning the compensation paid to
Mr. Richison during 2014.

Name

Fees Earned
or Paid in

Cash(1)

($)

Stock
Awards(2)

($)
Total
($)

Jason D. Clark 38,750 — 38,750
Robert J. Levenson 60,000 — 60,000
Robert Minicucci 77,500 — 77,500
Conner Mulvee 56,250 — 56,250
Frederick C. Peters II 63,750 — 63,750
Sanjay Swani 56,250 — 56,250

(1) For 2014, all of our non-employee directors received their fees for their service on our board of directors in
cash.

(2) None of these directors owned any shares of restricted stock as of December 31, 2014.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

Overview of Executive Compensation

Our compensation committee makes the compensation decisions regarding our executive officers, including
(i) Chad Richison, our president and chief executive officer, (ii) Craig E. Boelte, our chief financial officer,
(iii) Jeffrey D. York, our chief sales officer and (iv) William X. Kerber III, our chief information officer
(collectively, the “named executive officers”).

We evaluate each executive officer’s performance for the prior year on an annual basis. Our chief executive
officer, Mr. Richison, with respect to each executive officer other than himself, prepares a written evaluation of
the executive officers with input from others within our company. The written evaluation focuses on the
achievement of stated corporate and individual goals and performance criteria and the amount of contributions
made to management and the leadership of our company. This process leads to a recommendation from the chief
executive officer to the compensation committee with respect to each executive officer’s salary level, cash bonus,
and whether or not equity incentive awards should be granted. The compensation committee (without input from
the chief executive officer) determines the salary level, cash bonus, and whether or not equity incentive awards
should be granted to our chief executive officer.
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Summary Compensation Table For Fiscal Years Ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012

The following table contains information regarding compensation that was paid to our named executive
officers for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012.

Name and Principal Position Year
Salary

($)
Bonus

($)

Stock/
Unit

Awards
($)(2)

Non-Equity
Incentive Plan
Compensation

($)

All Other
Compensation

($)(3)
Total
($)

Chad Richison(1) 2014 555,197 — 1,182,928(4) 804,951 116,564(5) 2,659,640
Director, President and Chief
Executive Officer

2013 534,788 — 49,594 682,961 47,723(5) 1,315,066
2012 495,051 17,000 1,040,179 516,921 47,592(5) 2,116,743

Craig E. Boelte 2014 291,600 — 169,814(4) 422,776 24,825(6) 909,015
Chief Financial Officer 2013 280,954 — 49,380 358,798 12,575 701,707

2012 260,020 — 89,972 203,623 12,575 566,190

Jeffrey D. York 2014 367,102 — 129,560(4) 399,182 25,662(6) 921,506
Chief Sales Officer 2013 343,363 — 42,390 315,710 12,925 714,388

2012 330,028 — 89,972 258,268 10,601 688,869

William X. Kerber III 2014 300,358 — 169,814(4) 326,605 13,100 809,877
Chief Information Officer 2013 280,963 — 49,380 269,107 12,575 612,025

2012 260,028 — 89,972 203,623 12,575 566,198

(1) All amounts shown reflect compensation paid to Mr. Richison for his service as our president and chief
executive officer. Mr. Richison did not receive additional compensation for his service as a director.

(2) Amounts shown do not reflect compensation actually received by the named executive officers. Rather, the
amounts represent the aggregate grant date fair value of restricted stock or incentive units granted to each
named executive officer in 2014, 2013 and 2012 computed in accordance with ASC 718, with the exception
that the amount shown assumes no forfeitures. A discussion of the assumptions used in the calculation of
these amounts is included in Note 9. “Stockholders’ Equity and Stock-Based Compensation” in Software’s
annual condensed consolidated financial statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

(3) Amounts shown consist of insurance premiums paid by the Company, retainers for a supplemental medical
plan and Company contributions to a 401(k) profit sharing plan for the benefit of the named executive
officer. The amounts shown in this column for Mr. Richison also reflect the aggregate incremental cost of
personal use of corporate aircraft by the named executive officer. Spouses and invited guests of executives
occasionally fly on the corporate aircraft as additional passengers on business flights. In those cases, the
aggregate incremental cost to us is a de minimis amount, and as a result, no amount is reflected in the table.

(4) In connection with the 2014 Reorganization, outstanding equity incentive units were converted into shares of
restricted stock for each of our named executive officers on January 1, 2014. Shares of restricted stock vest in
accordance with the terms described below. See “Executive Compensation—Narrative Discussion Regarding
Summary Compensation Table—Equity Incentive Units and Restricted Stock Awards” for more details.

(5) In addition to the items listed in Note (3) above, the amounts shown also include country club dues and
expenses and approximately $23,411 of lease payments for an automobile in each of 2014, 2013 and 2012.

(6) In addition to the items listed in Note (3) above, the amounts shown also include approximately $11,725 and
$12,062, of lease payments for an automobile for Mr. Boelte and Mr. York, respectively, and $500 for
Mr. York for the payment of an employee referral fee.

Narrative Discussion Regarding Summary Compensation Table

Executive Compensation Program Overview

The primary elements of our executive compensation program include:

• base salary;

• discretionary cash bonuses;
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• equity incentive units;

• performance-based cash bonuses;

• retirement and other benefits; and

• perquisites and personal benefits.

Our compensation committee, after reviewing compensation information it considers relevant, has
determined what it believes to be the appropriate level and mix of the various compensation components for our
named executive officers. Ultimately, the objective in allocating between long-term and short-term compensation
is to ensure adequate base compensation to attract and retain personnel, while providing incentives to maximize
long-term value for our company and our stockholders.

Base Salary

We provide base salaries to our named executive officers to compensate them for services rendered during
the fiscal year and to recognize their experience, skills, knowledge and responsibilities. Each of our named
executive officers is currently party to an employment agreement. No formulaic base salary increases are
provided to our named executive officers pursuant to the terms of their employment agreements. However, on an
annual basis, our compensation committee reviews and evaluates, with input from our chief executive officer, the
need for adjustment of the base salaries of our named executive officers. For additional information concerning
the employment agreements, see “Compensation Arrangements Adopted in Connection with our Initial Public
Offering—Employment Agreements.”

For 2012, Messrs. Richison, York, Boelte and Kerber received an annual base salary of $495,051, $330,028
$260,020 and $260,028, respectively. For 2013, Messrs. Richison, York, Boelte and Kerber received an annual
base salary of $534,788, $343,363, $280,954 and $280,963, respectively. For 2014, Messrs. Richison, York,
Boelte and Kerber received an annual base salary of $555,197, $367,102, $291,600 and $300,358, respectively,
which reflects the compensation committee’s six percent (6%) increase in the base salary of Messrs. York and
Kerber, effective as of July 1, 2014.

For 2015, Mr. Richison receives an annual base salary of $555,197, Mr. York receives an annual base salary
of $377,795, Mr. Kerber receives an annual base salary of $309,107 and Mr. Boelte receives an annual base
salary of $291,600.

Discretionary Cash Bonuses

We generally only award performance-based cash bonuses to our named executive officers. However, in 2012,
we awarded cash bonuses on a discretionary basis to certain of our executive officers, including certain of our
named executive officers. For the named executive officers other than the Company’s chief executive officer, the
compensation committee, in consultation with the Company’s chief executive officer, recommended cash bonuses
for the board’s approval. The compensation committee reviewed the performance of the Company’s chief executive
officer and recommended the bonus for the Company’s chief executive officer to the board of directors. For 2012,
the compensation committee awarded Mr. Richison a discretionary cash bonus in an amount equal to $17,000, or
3% of his base salary. None of the other named executive officers received a cash bonus for 2012. For 2013 and
2014, the compensation committee did not award cash bonuses to any of our named executive officers.

Equity Incentive Units and Restricted Stock Awards

Prior to 2014, our award of equity incentive units was the primary vehicle for offering long-term incentives
to our executive officers, including our named executive officers. While we do not have any equity ownership
guidelines for our named executive officers, we believe that equity incentive unit grants and restricted stock
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awards provide our named executive officers with a strong link to our long-term performance, create an incentive
to achieve long-range performance goals and objectives and help to align the interests of our named executive
officers and our stockholders. In 2012 and 2013, we issued equity incentive units to each of our named executive
officers. In 2014, we issued shares of common stock and restricted stock to our named executive officers to
replace previously granted awards of equity incentive units.

Material Terms of Equity Incentive Unit Grants

We have historically granted awards of equity incentive units to our named executive officers with a portion
of the units being subject to time-based vesting conditions and a portion being subject to performance-based
vesting conditions. Prior to the vesting of equity incentive units, the holder has no rights as a stockholder with
respect to the shares subject to such unit, including voting rights or the right to receive dividends, dividend
equivalents or distributions.

Number of Equity Incentive Unit Awards

The following table sets forth the number of equity incentive units granted to our named executive officers
during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012, each of which was granted on April 30, 2012:

Name

Number of
Management

Incentive Units

Number
of CEO

Incentive Units

Chad Richison 9,359 126,067
Craig E. Boelte 8,062 —
Jeffrey D. York 8,062 —
William X. Kerber III 8,062 —

The following table sets forth the number of equity incentive units granted to our named executive officers
during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013, each of which were granted on October 14, 2013 (except for the
units granted to Mr. York, which was granted on April 17, 2013):

Name

Management
Incentive

Units

CEO
Incentive

Units

Chad Richison 3,013 —
Craig E. Boelte 3,000 —
Jeffrey D. York 3,000 —
William X. Kerber III 3,000 —

Vesting of Equity Incentive Unit Awards

During 2012 and 2013, we granted Management Incentive Units to each of our named executive officers
and we granted CEO Incentive Units only to our chief executive officer only during 2012. 50% of the
Management Incentive Units awarded to each of our named executive officers were subject to time-based vesting
conditions and 50% of the units were subject to performance-based vesting conditions. The Management
Incentive Units that were subject to time-based vesting conditions were scheduled to vest 20% on each of the
first five anniversaries of the date of grant or 100% upon the earlier sale of the Company. A sale of the Company
included (i) a transaction or series of transactions (including by way of merger, consolidation, or sale of equity)
the result of which is that the holders of units of the Company immediately prior to such transaction, do not, after
giving effect to such transaction, own, directly or indirectly, through one or more intermediaries, at least 50% of
the units of the Company, or (ii) a sale, transfer, conveyance or other disposition, in one or a series of related
transactions, of all or substantially all of the Company’s assets determined on a consolidated basis to a person
that is not affiliated with WCAS Holdings.
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The Management Incentive Units that were subject to performance-based vesting conditions were scheduled
to vest when the amount of cash, including cash dividends, distributions and proceeds, but excluding
management fees, transaction-related fees and expense reimbursements with respect to, or in exchange for equity
securities, (“the Inflows”), received by WCAS Holdings exceeded $280.4 million, as adjusted for payments made
by WCAS Holdings with respect to or in exchange for securities after April 30, 2012 through the determination
date, (“Outflows”), as follows: 33% on the date for which the Inflows equaled at least 2.0 times the Outflows and
100% on the date for which the Inflows equaled at least 3.5 times the Outflows; provided the named executive
officer was employed by us on such date. For any date on which the Inflows equaled more than 2.0 times and less
than 3.5 times the Outflows, the number of Management Incentive Units that vested would be determined by
straight-line interpolation.

25% of the CEO Incentive Units were subject to time-based vesting conditions and 75% of the units were
subject to performance-based vesting conditions. The CEO Incentive Units that were subject to time-based
vesting conditions were scheduled to vest 20% on each of the first five anniversaries of the date of grant or upon
the earlier sale of the Company. The CEO Incentive Units that were subject to performance-based vesting
conditions were scheduled to vest when the amount of the Inflows received by WCAS Holdings exceeded $386.3
million, as adjusted for payments made by WCAS Holdings with respect to or in exchange for securities after
April 30, 2012 through the determination date, (“CEO Award Outflows”), as follows: 33% on the date for which
the Inflows equal at least 1.5 times the CEO Award Outflows and 100% on the date on which either the Inflows
equaled at least (i) 2.0 times the CEO Award Outflows for a date on or prior to the second anniversary of the
grant date or (ii) 2.5 times the CEO Award Outflows for a date following the second anniversary of the grant
date; provided the chief executive officer continued to remain employed by us on such date. For any date on
which the Inflows equaled more than (i) 1.5 times and less than 2.0 times the CEO Award Outflows on or prior to
the second anniversary of the grant date or (ii) 1.5 times and less than 2.5 times the CEO Award Outflows
following the second anniversary of the grant date, the number of CEO Incentive Units that vested would be
determined by straight-line interpolation.

Material Terms of Restricted Stock Awards

Effective January 1, 2014, our outstanding equity incentive units (Management Incentive Units and CEO
Incentive Units) were converted into shares of our common and restricted stock as described in Part II, Item 7,
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations – Recent
Developments – The 2014 Reorganization.” The portion of the outstanding equity incentive units that had
previously vested were converted into shares of our common stock and the remaining portion of unvested
outstanding equity incentive units were converted into shares of restricted stock. As a result, we granted shares of
our common stock and restricted stock to our named executive officers in connection with the 2014
Reorganization. A portion of the shares of restricted stock is subject to time-based vesting conditions and a
portion is subject to performance-based vesting conditions. Prior to the vesting of restricted stock, the holder has
certain rights as a stockholder with respect to the shares of restricted stock, including voting rights and the right
to receive dividends, dividend equivalents or distributions; provided that the holder does not have the right to
cash dividends and stock dividends are subject to the same restrictions as the restricted stock and shall vest as the
restricted stock vests.
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Number of Restricted Stock Awards

The following table sets forth the number of shares of our common and restricted stock that were granted to
our named executive officers in connection with the 2014 Reorganization to replace the Management Incentive
Units and CEO Incentive Units which were granted to our named executive officers on April 30, 2012:

Management
Incentive Units CEO Incentive Units

Name

Number of
Shares of
Common

Stock

Number of
Shares of
Restricted

Stock

Number of
Shares of
Common

Stock

Number of
Shares of
Restricted

Stock

Chad Richison 39,701 357,309 254,987 4,844,765
Craig E. Boelte 34,199 307,792 — —
Jeffrey D. York 34,199 307,792 — —
William X. Kerber III 34,199 307,792 — —

The following table sets forth the number of shares of our common and restricted stock that were granted to
our named executive officers in connection with the 2014 Reorganization to replace the Management Incentive
Units that were granted to our named executive officers on October 14, 2013 (except for the units granted to
Mr. York, which were granted on April 17, 2013):

Name
Number of Shares
of Common Stock

Number of Shares
of Restricted Stock

Chad Richison — 121,833
Craig E. Boelte — 121,307
Jeffrey D. York — 127,192
William X. Kerber III — 121,307

Vesting of Restricted Stock Awards

With the exception of the shares of restricted stock granted to our chief executive officer, approximately
50% of the shares awarded to each of our named executive officers are subject to time-based vesting conditions
and approximately 50% of the shares are subject to performance-based vesting conditions. The shares of
restricted stock that are subject to time-based vesting conditions either vest: (i) 25% on each of April 3,
2014, April 3, 2015, April 2, 2016 and April 2, 2017 (for the shares of restricted stock granted to replace the
equity incentive units awarded on April 30, 2012), provided that the person is employed by us on that date,
(ii) 20% on each of the first five anniversaries of the date of grant of the Management Incentive Units (for the
shares of restricted stock granted to replace the Management Incentive Units awarded on October 14, 2013 or
April 17, 2013), provided that the person is employed by us on that date, or (iii) 100% upon a change in control.
For purposes of our restricted stock award agreements, a “change in control” means: (i) a transaction or series of
transactions in which any person becomes the beneficial owner of securities representing 30% or more of the
combined voting power of our outstanding securities or 30% or more of our outstanding shares of our common
stock, (ii) any merger or consolidation, or series of related transactions, which results in our voting securities
outstanding immediately prior thereto failing to continue to represent at least 50% of the voting power of our
voting securities, (iii) the sale or disposition of all or substantially all of our assets (or consummation of any
transaction, or series of related transactions having a similar effect), (iv) during any consecutive twelve month
period, the individuals who on the date of the award constitute the board of directors cease for any reason to
constitute a majority of our board of directors, subject to certain exceptions, (v) our dissolution or liquidation or
(vi) any transaction or series of related transactions having the substantial effect of any one or more of the
foregoing. In the event of a change in control, all unvested shares of restricted stock not assumed by the
surviving entity shall become fully vested immediately prior to the effective date of a change of control.

During 2014, our named executive officers had the following shares of restricted stock vest that were
subject to time based vesting conditions: (i) on April 3, 2014, Messrs. Richison, Boelte, York and Kerber had
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294,688, 34,200, 34,200 and 34,200 shares of restricted stock vest, respectively; (ii) on April 17, 2014, Mr. York
had 12,720 shares of restricted stock vest; and (iii) on October 17, 2014, Messrs. Richison, Boelte and Kerber
had 12,184, 12,131 and 12,131 shares of restricted stock vest, respectively.

Shares of restricted stock subject to performance-based vesting conditions vest 50% upon the Company
reaching a total enterprise value of $1.4 billion and 50% upon the Company reaching a total enterprise value of
$1.8 billion, provided that the person is employed by us on that date. For purposes of our restricted stock award
agreements, “total enterprise value” is defined as the sum of: (i) the product of (A) the arithmetic average of the
volume weighted average price of a share of common stock not subject to vesting or other restrictions on each of
the twenty (20) consecutive trading days immediately preceding such date multiplied by (B) the number of
outstanding shares of common stock, (ii) for each other class or series of equity securities of the Company, if
any, the product of (A) the arithmetic average of the volume weighted average price per share for such class or
series of such equity securities of the Company on each of the twenty (20) consecutive trading days immediately
preceding such date multiplied by (B) the number of shares of such class or series of such equity securities of the
Company, and (iii) the principal amount of our outstanding funded indebtedness less the aggregate amount of
cash and cash equivalents of the Company (exclusive of funds held on behalf of clients). The Company’s total
enterprise value includes outstanding shares of restricted stock and calculates the value of such shares as if there
were no vesting or other restrictions.

During 2014, the Company reached a total enterprise value of $1.4 billion and 50% of the shares of
restricted stock that were subject to performance-based vesting conditions vested effective as of December 1,
2014. Our named executive officers had the following number of shares vest that were subject to performance
based vesting conditions as calculated pursuant to the terms of the applicable restricted stock award agreements:
effective as of December 1, 2014, Messrs. Richison, Boelte, York and Kerber had 2,042,120, 115,824, 117,294,
and 115,824 shares of restricted stock vest, respectively.

If the Company’s stock price remains at or near its current price, the Company believes that the shares of
restricted stock that are subject to the performance-based vesting condition of a total enterprise value of $1.8
billion will vest during the first quarter of 2015.

All unvested shares of restricted stock also become fully vested in the event of the named executive
officer’s death while performing his duties and responsibilities for the Company. In the event of a termination of
service of the named executive officer due to disability, by the named executive officer for good reason (as
defined in the named executive officer’s employment agreement), by the Company without cause (as defined in
the named executive officer’s employment agreement), or death (other than while performing his duties and
responsibilities for the Company), the board of directors may, in its sole discretion, accelerate vesting of all or
any portion of the unvested shares of restricted stock. Further, if the chief executive officer’s employment is
terminated by the Company without cause (as defined in his employment agreement), all unvested shares of
restricted stock subject to time-based vesting conditions will remain outstanding and eligible for vesting for one
year following such termination of employment, and the board of directors may accelerate the vesting of the
other remaining unvested shares of restricted stock, in its discretion. Other than as provided above, all unvested
shares of restricted stock shall be forfeited upon the named executive officer’s termination of service or upon
engaging in certain forfeiture activities involving violations of noncompetition, noninterference, non-solicitation
provisions of his employment agreement.

Performance-Based Cash Bonuses

We award annual performance-based cash bonuses to certain members of our management, including our
named executive officers, to emphasize pay-for-performance and to reward them for the achievement of
specified corporate performance criteria. Each named executive officer is eligible to receive an annual
performance-based cash bonus, which we refer to as an annual cash bonus, in an amount up to a fixed percentage
of his base salary, or bonus percentage. Under their respective employment agreements, our named executive
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officers are eligible to receive a performance-based cash bonus equal to either 100% of their base salary (for
Messrs. Richison and Boelte) or 75% of their base salary (for Messrs. York and Kerber).

Each of our compensation committee and our board of directors has authority, in its sole discretion, to adjust
the bonus percentage and performance criteria each year in connection with its review of the executive’s
performance and has authority to allow an executive to receive a bonus payment in excess of his or her annual
cash bonus for exceptional performance. Further, our board of directors reviews the assessment of each
executive’s performance conducted by the compensation committee with respect to the annual cash bonus and
retains the authority, in its sole discretion, to modify the amount of the annual cash bonus above or below the
amount recommended by the compensation committee.

Target Bonuses

For 2012, our chief executive officer was eligible for a bonus payout of up to 100% of his base salary, and
our chief financial officer, chief sales officer and chief information officer were each eligible for a bonus payout
of up to 75% of their respective base salaries. For 2013, our chief executive officer and chief financial officer
were each eligible for a bonus payout of up to 100% of their respective base salaries, and our chief sales officer
and chief information officer were each eligible for a bonus payout of up to 75% of their respective base salaries,
each as adjusted by the compensation committee based on achievement of our corporate performance criteria, in
the event of exceptional individual or functional performance. For 2014, our chief executive officer and chief
financial officer were each eligible for a bonus payout of up to 100 % of their respective base salaries, and our
chief sales officer and chief information officer were each eligible for a bonus payout of up to 75% of their
respective base salaries, each as adjusted by the compensation committee based on achievement of our corporate
performance criteria, in the event of exceptional individual or functional performance. The following table shows
the 2012, 2013 and 2014 target bonus amounts as a percentage of base salary for each of our named executive
officers.

Name

2012 Target Bonus
Amount

(as a percentage of
base salary)

2013 Target Bonus
Amount

(as a percentage of
base salary)

2014 Target Bonus
Amount

(as a percentage of
base salary)

Chad Richison 100% 100% 100%
Craig E. Boelte 75% 100% 100%
Jeffrey D. York 75% 75% 75%
William X. Kerber III 75% 75% 75%

Corporate Performance Criteria

The corporate performance criteria that was used in determining the amount of performance bonuses for our
named executive officers for 2012, 2013 and 2014 was GAAP revenue budget growth, with the exception of
Mr. York, whose corporate performance criteria was booked sales budget for 2012 and 2013. For 2012, 2013 and
2014, the performance target for GAAP revenue budget growth was 31.4%, 31.4% and 32.9%, respectively. For
2012 and 2013, the performance target for booked sales budget was $28.7 million and $37.2 million,
respectively.

For 2012 and 2013, our named executive officers were not eligible to be awarded performance-based cash
bonuses if less than 80% of the performance target was achieved, but were awarded performance-based cash
bonuses equal to the amount of the performance target achievement when 80% or more of the performance target
was achieved. For example, if 110% of the performance target was achieved, the named executive officer
received 110% of the cash bonus target.

For 2014, our named executive officers were not eligible to be awarded performance-based cash bonuses if
less than 64% of the performance target was achieved, but were awarded performance-based cash bonuses equal
to the amount of the performance target achievement when more than 64% and less than 112% of the
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performance target was achieved. In cases where the performance target achievement was equal to or more than
112% of the performance target, named executed officers were eligible to receive 100% of the cash bonus target
plus a percentage of the cash bonus target equal to (i) the amount of the performance target above 100%
multiplied by (ii) two, up to a maximum amount of 200% of the cash bonus target. For example, if 112% of the
performance target was achieved, the named executive officer would receive 124% of the cash bonus target (i.e.,
100% + (112-100)*2).

Actual Bonuses

For 2012, the compensation committee determined that the actual performance achieved for GAAP revenue
budget growth was 34.1% and for booked sales budget was $30.0 million. Based on these results, the
compensation committee determined that the amount of the performance target achievement for the GAAP
revenue budget growth was 108.6% and for booked sales budget was 104.4%. The target bonuses and actual
bonuses paid by the compensation committee for 2012 were as follows.

Name
Target

2012 Bonuses
Actual

2012 Bonuses

Chad Richison $475,992 $516,921
Craig E. Boelte $187,500 $203,623
Jeffrey D. York $247,500 $258,268
William X. Kerber III $187,500 $203,623

For 2013, the compensation committee determined that the actual performance achieved for GAAP revenue
budget growth was 40.1% and for booked sales budget was $45.6 million. Based on these results, the
compensation committee determined that the amount of the performance target achievement for the GAAP
revenue budget growth was 127.7% and for booked sales budget was 122.6%. The target bonuses and actual
bonuses paid by the compensation committee for 2013 were as follows.

Name
Target

2013 Bonuses
Actual

2013 Bonuses

Chad Richison $534,788 $682,961
Craig E. Boelte $280,954 $358,798
Jeffrey D. York $257,522 $315,710
William X. Kerber III $210,722 $269,107

For 2014, the performance target for GAAP revenue budget growth was 32.9% and the compensation
committee determined that the actual performance achieved for GAAP revenue budget growth was 40.3%. Based
on these results, the compensation committee determined that the amount of the performance target achievement
for the GAAP revenue budget growth was 122.49%. Because the performance target achievement was greater
than 112% of the performance target, the named executive officers were eligible to receive 100% of the cash
bonus target plus a percentage of the cash bonus target equal to (i) the amount of the performance target achieved
above 100% multiplied by (ii) two.

As a result, the compensation committee approved the payment of performance-based cash bonuses to each
of the Company’s named executive officers equal to approximately 144.98% of their respective cash bonus target
(i.e., 100% + (122.49-100)*2)). The target bonuses determined and actual bonuses paid by the compensation
committee for 2014 were as follows.

Name
Target

2014 Bonuses
Actual

2014 Bonuses

Chad Richison $555,197 $804,951
Craig E. Boelte $291,600 $422,776
Jeffrey D. York $275,327 $399,182
William X. Kerber III $225,269 $326,605
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Retirement and Other Benefits

We believe that establishing competitive benefit packages for our employees is an important factor in attracting
and retaining highly qualified personnel. We maintain broad-based benefits that are provided to all employees,
including medical, dental, group life insurance, accidental death and dismemberment insurance, long and short term
disability insurance, and a 401(k) plan. Our named executive officers are eligible to participate in all of our employee
benefit plans, in each case on the same basis as other employees. The compensation committee in its discretion may
revise, amend or add to the named executive officer’s benefits and perquisites if it deems it advisable.

401(k) Plan

We maintain a 401(k) profit sharing plan for our employees. Our 401(k) plan is intended to qualify as a tax-
qualified plan under Section 401 of the Code so that contributions to our 401(k) plan, and income earned on such
contributions, are not taxable to participants until withdrawn or distributed from the 401(k) plan. Our 401(k) plan
provides that each participant may contribute up to 100% of his or her pre-tax compensation, up to a statutory limit,
which was $17,000 for 2012 and $17,500 for both 2013 and 2014. Participants who are at least 50 years old can also
make “catch-up” contributions, which in 2012, 2013 and 2014 was limited to an additional $5,500 above the statutory
limit. Under our 401(k) plan, each employee is fully vested in his or her deferred salary contributions. Employee
contributions are held and invested by the plan’s trustee, subject to participants’ ability to give investment directions by
following certain procedures. We provide matching contributions under our 401(k) plan equal to 100% of the first 1%
of employees’ salary deferrals and 50% of employees’ salary deferrals between 2% and 6%, up to a maximum
matching contribution of 3.5% of the salary deferrals for our employees. Our 401(k) plan also permits us to make
discretionary contributions, and all of our contributions are subject to established limits and a vesting schedule.

We do not maintain any defined benefit pension plans or any nonqualified deferred compensation plans.

Perquisites and Other Personal Benefits

We provided our named executive officers with perquisites and other personal benefits in 2012, 2013 and 2014
that the compensation committee believed were reasonable and consistent with our overall compensation program.
The perquisites and personal benefits that we provide to our named executive officers include matching 401(k)
contributions, a supplemental medical plan that provides for visits and benefits with a private physician, key man
insurance premium payments, country club dues and car lease payments. On limited occasions, we also allow
named executive officers that are authorized to use chartered aircraft for business travel to, if space allows, bring
family members or guests along on the trip. Because we reimburse for use of the aircraft only for business travel
and we pay for the aircraft based on the flight hours regardless of the passenger load, the aggregate incremental cost
to us for the additional passengers is a de minimis amount. The compensation committee periodically reviews the
levels of perquisites and other personal benefits provided to our named executive officers.

Attributed costs, if any, of the personal benefits described above for the named executive officers for the
years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 are included in the summary compensation table under the
heading “All Other Compensation.”

Fiscal Year 2014 Grants of Plan-Based Awards Table

The following table lists each grant of plan-based awards under the 2014 Plan to each of the Company’s
named executive officers during the year ended December 31, 2014. The table also includes the grant date fair
value of the stock awards on the date of grant:

Name Grant Date(1)

All Other Stock
Awards: Number of

Shares
of Restricted Stock(1)

Grant Date Fair
Value of Stock
Awards($)(2)

Chad Richison 1/1/2014 5,323,907 $1,182,928
Craig E. Boelte 1/1/2014 429,099 $ 169,814
Jeffrey D. York 1/1/2014 434,984 $ 129,560
William X. Kerber III 1/1/2014 429,099 $ 169,814
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(1) In connection with the 2014 Reorganization, outstanding equity incentive units were converted into the number of shares
of restricted stock set forth above for each of our named executive officers on January 1, 2014. Shares of restricted stock
vest in accordance with the terms described above. See “Executive Compensation—Narrative Discussion Regarding
Summary Compensation Table—Equity Incentive Units and Restricted Stock Awards” for more details.

(2) Amounts represent the aggregate grant date fair value of restricted stock granted to each named executive officer in 2014
computed in accordance with ASC 718, with the exception that the amount shown assumes no forfeitures. A discussion of
the assumptions used in the calculation of these amounts is included in Note 9. “Stockholders’ Equity and Stock-Based
Compensation” in Software’s annual consolidated financial statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

2014 Fiscal Year Outstanding Equity Awards At Fiscal Year-End Table

The following table lists all of the outstanding stock awards held by each of the Company’s named
executive officers on December 31, 2014. The table also includes the value of the stock awards based on the fair
market value of our common stock as of December 31, 2014:

Stock Awards

Name Grant Date

Number of
Shares of

Stock That
Have Not
Vested(1)

Market
Value of
Shares of

Stock That
Have Not

Vested ($)(2)

Chad Richison 1/1/2014 2,974,915 $78,329,512
Craig E. Boelte 1/1/2014 266,944 $ 7,028,636
Jeffrey D. York 1/1/2014 270,770 $ 7,129,374
William X. Kerber III 1/1/2014 266,944 $ 7,028,636

(1) Shares of restricted stock vest in accordance with the terms described above. See “—Narrative Discussion
Regarding Summary Compensation Table—Equity Incentive Units—Material Terms of Equity Incentive
Units and Restricted Stock Awards” for more details.

(2) Amounts shown reflect the value of our restricted stock calculated by multiplying the number of unvested
shares of restricted stock by the closing price of our common stock on the NYSE on December 31, 2014,
which was $26.33 per share.

Fiscal Year 2014 Option Exercises and Stock Vested Table

The following table lists the vesting of restricted stock awards for each of the Company’s named executive
officers during the year ended December 31, 2014.

Stock Awards

Name

Number of Shares
Acquired on

Vesting(1)
Value Realized on

Vesting ($)(2)

Chad Richison 2,348,992 $62,558,933
Craig E. Boelte 162,155 $ 3,982,535
Jeffrey D. York 164,214 $ 4,032,604
William X. Kerber III 162,155 $ 3,982,535

(1) Shares of restricted stock vested in accordance with the terms described above. See “—Narrative Discussion
Regarding Summary Compensation Table—Equity Incentive Units—Material Terms of Equity Incentive
Units and Restricted Stock Awards” for more details.

(2) Amounts shown reflect the value of our restricted stock calculated by multiplying the number of vested
shares of restricted stock by the closing price of our common stock on the NYSE on the date of vesting or,
in the case of shares vesting prior to our initial public offering, the price to the public of our common stock
on the date of our initial public offering.
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Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

The current members of our compensation committee are Messrs. Minicucci and Swani. None of the
members of our compensation committee is or has at any time during the past year been an officer or employee
of ours. None of our executive officers currently serves or in the past year has served as a member of the board of
directors or compensation or similar committee of any entity that has one or more executive officers serving on
our board of directors or compensation committee.

Compensation Arrangements Adopted in Connection with our Initial Public Offering

Long-Term Incentive Plan

We adopted the Paycom Software, Inc. 2014 Long-Term Incentive Plan (the “2014 Plan”), effective
January 1, 2014, which permits us to grant an array of equity-based incentive awards to our named executive
officers and other key employees, key contractors and outside directors of the Company. The following is a
summary of the material terms of the 2014 Plan.

Purpose. The purpose of the 2014 Plan is to:

• increase the interests of recipients of awards under the 2014 Plan in the Company’s welfare;

• advance the Company’s interests by attracting and retaining qualified employees, outside directors and
other persons providing services to the Company and/or its related companies; and

• provide a means through which the Company may attract able persons as employees, contractors and
outside directors.

Administration. The 2014 Plan is generally administered by the compensation committee of the board of
directors. The compensation committee determines the recipients of awards, the types of awards to be granted
and the applicable terms, provisions, limitations and performance requirements of such awards. The
compensation committee also has the authority to conclusively interpret the 2014 Plan and any award agreements
under the plan. The compensation committee may delegate certain duties to one or more officers of the Company
as provided in the 2014 Plan.

Types of Awards. The 2014 Plan provides for grants of incentive stock options (“ISOs”), nonqualified stock
options (“NQSOs”), stock appreciation rights (“SARs”), restricted stock, restricted stock units, (“RSUs”),
performance awards, dividend equivalent rights, and other awards.

• Stock Options. A stock option is a contractual right to purchase shares at a future date at a specified
exercise price. The per share exercise price of a stock option is determined by our compensation
committee and many not be less than the fair market value of a share of our common stock on the grant
date (or higher for certain employees receiving ISOs). The compensation committee determines the
date after which each stock option may be exercised and the expiration date of each option, which may
not exceed ten years from the grant date. The compensation committee may grant either ISOs
qualifying under Section 422 of the Code or NQSOs, provided that only employees of the Company
and its subsidiaries (excluding subsidiaries that are not corporations) are eligible to receive ISOs.

• SARs. SARs represent a contractual right to receive, in cash or shares, an amount equal to the
appreciation of one share of our common stock from the grant date. The grant price of a SAR cannot be
less than the fair market value of a share of our common stock on the grant date. The compensation
committee determines the date after which each SAR may be exercised and the expiration date of each
SAR, which may not exceed ten years from the grant date.

• Restricted Stock. Restricted stock is an award of shares of our common stock that are subject to
restrictions on transfer and a substantial risk of forfeiture because of termination of service or failure to
achieve certain performance conditions. Shares of restricted stock may be subject to restrictions which
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do not permit the holder to sell, transfer, pledge or assign his shares. The compensation committee
determines the vesting and forfeiture conditions for each grant of restricted stock.

• RSUs. RSUs represent a contractual right to receive the value of a share of our common stock at a
future date, subject to specified vesting and other restrictions determined by the compensation
committee. The compensation committee determines the vesting conditions, payment dates, and
forfeiture conditions for each grant of RSUs.

• Performance Awards. Performance awards, which may be denominated in cash or shares, are earned on
the satisfaction of performance conditions specified by our compensation committee at the end of a
specified performance period. The compensation committee determines the length of the performance
period, the maximum payment value of an award, and the minimum performance goals required before
payment will be made, so long as such provisions are not inconsistent with the terms of the 2014 Plan,
and to the extent an award is subject to Section 409A of the Code, are in compliance with the
applicable requirements of Section 409A of the Code and any applicable regulations or guidance. To
the extent the Company determines that Section 162(m) of the Code shall apply to a performance
award granted under the 2014 Plan, it is the intent of the Company that performance awards constitute
“performance-based compensation” within the meaning of Section 162(m) of the Code and the
regulations thereunder. Further, if complying with Section 162(m) of the Code, no participant may
receive performance awards in any calendar year which have an aggregate value of more than
$74,128,902, and if such awards involve the issuance of common stock, the aggregate value shall be
based on the fair market value of such shares on the time of grant of such awards. In certain
circumstances, the compensation committee may, in its discretion, determine that the amount payable
with respect to certain performance awards will be reduced from the amount of any potential awards.
However, the compensation committee may not, in any event, increase the amount of compensation
payable to an individual upon the attainment of a performance goal intended to satisfy the requirements
of Section 162(m) of the Code. With respect to a performance award that is not intended to satisfy the
requirements of Section 162(m) of the Code, if the compensation committee determines in its sole
discretion that the established performance measures or objectives are no longer suitable because of a
change in the Company’s business, operations, corporate structure, or for other reasons that the
compensation committee deems satisfactory, it may modify the performance measures or objectives
and/or the performance period.

• Dividend Equivalent Rights. Dividend equivalent rights represent the right of the participant to receive
cash or stock equal in value to the dividends that would have been paid on the shares of common stock
specified in the award if such shares were held by the participant.

• Other Awards. Our compensation committee is authorized to grant other forms of awards, based upon,
payable in, or otherwise related to, in whole or in part, shares of common stock if the compensation
committee determines that such other form of award is consistent with the purpose and restrictions of
the 2014 Plan.

Performance Measures. Awards of restricted stock, RSUs, performance awards and other awards under the
2014 Plan may be made subject to the attainment of performance goals relating to one or more business criteria
used to measure the performance of the Company as a whole or any business unit of the Company, which, where
applicable, shall be within the meaning of Section 162(m) of the Code and consist of one or more or any
combination of the following criteria: cash flow; cost; revenues; sales; ratio of debt to debt plus equity; net
borrowing, credit quality or debt ratings; profit before tax; economic profit; earnings before interest and taxes;
earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization; gross margin; earnings per share (whether on a
pre-tax, after-tax, operational or other basis); operating earnings; capital expenditures; expenses or expense
levels; economic value added; ratio of operating earnings to capital spending or any other operating ratios; free
cash flow; net profit; net sales; net asset value per share; the accomplishment of mergers, acquisitions,
dispositions, public offerings or similar extraordinary business transactions; sales growth; price of the
Company’s common stock; return on assets, equity or stockholders’ equity; market share; inventory levels,
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inventory turn or shrinkage; or total return to stockholders (the “Performance Criteria”). Any Performance
Criteria may be used to measure the performance of the Company as a whole or any business unit of the
Company and may be measured relative to a peer group or index. Any Performance Criteria may include or
exclude (i) extraordinary, unusual and/or non-recurring items of gain or loss, (ii) gains or losses on the
disposition of a business, (iii) changes in tax or accounting regulations or laws, (iv) the effect of a merger or
acquisition, as identified in the Company’s quarterly and annual earnings releases, or other similar occurrences.
In all other respects, Performance Criteria shall be calculated in accordance with the Company’s financial
statements, under generally accepted accounting principles, or under a methodology established by the
compensation committee prior to the issuance of an award which is consistently applied and identified in the
audited financial statements, including footnotes, or the Compensation Discussion and Analysis section of the
Company’s annual report or proxy statement. However, to the extent Section 162(m) of the Code is applicable,
the compensation committee may not in any event increase the amount of compensation payable to an individual
upon the attainment of a performance goal.

Authorized Shares. We have reserved 11,350,881 of our shares of common stock for issuance pursuant to
the 2014 Plan, of which 100% may be delivered pursuant to ISOs. In addition, the maximum number of shares of
common stock with respect to which stock options or SARs may be granted to an officer of the Company subject
to Section 16 of the Exchange Act, or a “covered employee” as defined in Section 162(m)(3) of the Code during
any calendar year is limited to 5,323,907 shares of common stock. To the extent any award under the 2014 Plan
is forfeited, expired or cancelled, then the number of shares of common stock covered by the award or stock
option so forfeited, expired or canceled will again be available for awards under the 2014 Plan.

Capital Adjustments. In the event that any extraordinary dividend or other extraordinary distribution,
recapitalization, stock split, reverse stock split, rights offering, reorganization, merger, consolidation, split-up,
spin-off, split-off, combination, subdivision, repurchase, or exchange of common stock or other securities of the
Company, issuance of warrants or other rights to purchase common stock or other securities of the Company, or
other similar corporate transaction or event affects the fair value of an award, the compensation committee shall
adjust any or all of the following so that the fair value of the award immediately after the transaction or event is
equal to the fair value of the award immediately prior to the transaction or event:

• the number of shares and type of common stock (or the securities or property) which thereafter may be
made the subject of awards;

• the number of shares and type of common stock (or other securities or property) subject to outstanding
awards;

• the number of shares and type of Common Stock (or other securities or property) specified as the
annual per-participant limitation specified in the 2014 Plan;

• the option price of each outstanding award;

• the amount, if any, the Company pays for forfeited shares of common stock; and

• the number of or SAR price of shares of common stock then subject to outstanding SARs previously
granted and unexercised under the plan, to the end that the same proportion of the Company’s issued
and outstanding shares of common stock in each instance shall remain subject to exercise at the same
aggregate SAR price, provided that, the number of shares of common stock (or other securities or
property) subject to any award shall always be a whole number.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, no adjustment shall be made or authorized to the extent that such adjustment
would cause the 2014 Plan or any award to violate Section 422 of the Code or Section 409A of the Code. All
such adjustments must be made in accordance with the rules of any securities exchange, stock market, or stock
quotation system to which the Company is subject.
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Eligibility. Any employees, contractors and outside directors whose judgment, initiative and efforts
contributed or may be expected to contribute to the successful performance of the Company are eligible to
receive awards under the 2014 Plan.

Vesting; Termination of Service. The compensation committee, in its sole discretion, may determine that an
award will be immediately vested in whole or in part, or that all or any portion may not be vested until a date, or
dates, subsequent to its grant date, or until the occurrence of one or more specified events, subject in any case to
the terms of the 2014 Plan. If the compensation committee imposes conditions upon vesting, then, except as
otherwise provided below, subsequent to the grant date the compensation committee may, in its sole discretion,
accelerate the date on which all or any portion of the award may be vested. “Full Value Awards” (i.e., restricted
stock or RSUs) that constitute performance awards must vest no earlier than one year after the date of grant, and
Full Value Awards that are payable upon the completion of future services must vest no earlier than over the
three year period commencing on the date of grant.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the compensation committee may, in its sole discretion, accelerate the
vesting or waive any applicable restriction period for such Full Value Awards, provided that the shares of
common stock subject to such awards shall be “Exempt Shares” (as defined in the 2014 Plan), unless such
acceleration or waiver occurs by reason of the participant’s death, disability, retirement, or occurrence of a
change in control. The number of Exempt Shares is limited to 10% of the number of shares available for issuance
under the 2014 Plan, plus the total number of shares subject to awards that are received in exchange for incentive
units in Holdings. The compensation committee may impose on any award, at the time of grant or thereafter,
such additional terms and conditions as the compensation committee determines, including terms requiring
forfeiture of awards in the event of a participant’s termination of service. The compensation committee will
specify the circumstances under which performance awards may be forfeited in the event of a termination of
service by a participant prior to the end of a performance period or settlement of awards. Except as otherwise
determined by the compensation committee, restricted stock will be forfeited upon a participant’s termination of
service during the applicable restriction period.

Change in Control. Upon the effective date of any change in control (as defined in the 2014 Plan), merger,
consolidation or share exchange, or any issuance of bonds, debentures, preferred or preference stocks ranking
prior to or otherwise affecting the common stock or the rights thereof (or any rights, options, or warrants to
purchase same), or any proposed sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company, or of any dissolution
or liquidation of the Company, all awards granted under the 2014 Plan may be cancelled by the Company upon
(i) notice and a ten (10) day period during which the participant is permitted to purchase such shares of common
stock subject to such awards or (ii) payment to the holder of an amount equal to a reasonable estimate of the
difference between the fair market value of a share of stock underlying such award and the price per share of
such award to be paid by the participant, multiplied by the number of shares subject to the award.

Transferability. Awards under the plan generally may not be transferred, assigned, pledged, hypothecated or
otherwise conveyed or encumbered other than by will or the laws of descent and distribution; provided, however,
that the compensation committee may permit transfers to or for the benefit of the participant’s family.

Effective Date and Expiration; Termination and Amendment. The 2014 Plan became effective on January 1,
2014, and will terminate on January 1, 2024, unless it is terminated earlier by our board of directors. No awards
may be made under the 2014 Plan after its expiration date, but awards made prior thereto may extend beyond that
date. Our board of directors may at any time and from time to time, without the consent of the participants, alter,
amend, revise, suspend, or discontinue the 2014 Plan in whole or in part. Our board of directors does not need
stockholder approval to amend our 2014 Plan unless required by any securities exchange or inter-dealer quotation
system on which the common stock is listed or by applicable law. Unless required by law, no action by our board
of directors regarding amendment or discontinuance of the 2014 Plan may adversely affect any rights of any
participants or obligations of the Company to any participants with respect to any outstanding award under the
2014 Plan without the consent of the affected participant.
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Employment Agreements

On December 30, 2013, we entered into employment agreements with each of our named executive officers,
each of which were effective on, and not effective until, January 1, 2014. With the exception of the annual
compensation (base salary and annual bonus potential), the material terms of the employment agreements of all
four of our named executive officers are substantially the same. The summary of the employment agreements
below does not contain complete descriptions of all provisions of the employment agreements of our named
executive officers, copies of which will be included as exhibits to this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Under the employment agreements, Mr. Richison is entitled to receive an annual base salary of no less than
$555,197, Mr. Boelte is entitled to receive an annual base salary of no less than $291,600, Mr. York is entitled to
receive an annual base salary of no less than $356,400 and Mr. Kerber is entitled to receive an annual base salary
of no less than $291,600. Each named executive officer is eligible to receive an annual bonus equal to 100% of
his base salary (for Messrs. Richison and Boelte) or 75% of his base salary (for Messrs. York and Kerber), with
the amount of such bonus to be determined by our compensation committee in accordance with the plans,
policies and procedures adopted by the compensation committee from time to time.

The employment agreements also provide that each named executive officer is eligible to participate in, or
receive benefits under, the Company’s executive benefit plan and any plan or arrangement made available to our
employees, including any health, dental, vision, disability, life insurance, 401(k), or other retirement programs in
accordance with the terms and conditions of such plans or arrangements. Each named executive officer is also
entitled to vacation time, Company automobile and reimbursement of business expenses. In addition, we have
agreed to provide Mr. Richison the use of a private aircraft, home security while he travels on Company business
and a country club membership.

In connection with the employment agreements, each named executive officer agreed to confidentiality,
noncompetition, noninterference and intellectual property protection provisions.

The employment agreements have initial terms of three (3) years following the consummation of our initial
public offering and automatically renew for successive one (1) year periods, unless earlier terminated by the
Company or the named executive officer. Each named executive officer’s employment terminates upon death,
disability, termination by the Company with or without “cause,” or termination by the named executive officer
with or without “good reason.” In each case, the named executive officer is entitled to (i) payment of any earned
but unpaid salary and accrued but unused vacation time and (ii) payment of any business expenses incurred but
not reimbursed. In addition, if the named executive officer’s employment is terminated by the Company without
cause or by the named executive officer with good reason, subject to the execution and return of a release of
claims, the named executive officer is entitled to (i) continuation of his base salary for the length of the
remaining “Restricted Period” following his termination, (ii) continuation of health insurance benefits for the
length of the remaining Restricted Period, and (iii) a pro rata amount of the bonus the named executive officer
would have earned as determined by the compensation committee for the year in which the termination occurred.
For purposes of the employment agreements, the “Restricted Period” will elapse upon the later of thirty-six
(36) months following the consummation of our initial public offering or twelve (12) months following the
named executive officer’s date of termination of employment.

Each of the employment agreements define “cause” generally as (i) the repeated failure to perform such
duties as are lawfully requested by the board of directors, (ii) the failure by named executive officer to observe
material policies of the Company and its subsidiaries, (iii) gross negligence or willful misconduct in the
performance of his duties, (iv) the material breach of employment or any non-competition, non-solicitation or
similar restrictive agreement with the Company, (v) fraud, embezzlement, disloyalty or dishonesty with respect
to the Company, (vi) use of illegal drugs or repetitive abuse of other drugs or alcohol which interferes with the
performance of his duties, or (vii) the commission of any felony or of a misdemeanor involving dishonesty,
disloyalty or moral turpitude. Each of the employment agreements define “good reason” as (i) any material
reduction by the Company in the named executive officer’s base salary without prior consent, (ii) following a
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change in control, any change in the named executive officer’s status, reporting, duties or position that represents
a demotion or diminution from such named executive officer’s prior status, or (iii) any material breach by the
Company of the employment agreement between the Company and the named executive officer; provided that
the named executive officer shall not be deemed to have been terminated for “good reason” unless he delivers to
the Company written notice specifying the alleged “good reason” within thirty (30) days after he learns of the
circumstances giving rise to “good reason,” within thirty (30) days following delivery of such notice, the
Company has failed to cure such circumstances and the named executive officer resigns within fifteen (15) days
after the end of the cure period.

In connection with the employment agreements, we issued shares of restricted stock under our 2014 Plan to
each of our named executive officers on January 1, 2014 to replace unvested management incentive units held by
our named executive officers prior to the 2014 Reorganization. These grants are designed to provide our named
executive officers with shares of restricted stock equivalent in value to the equity incentive units they held prior
to the 2014 Reorganization and are subject to the terms of the respective restricted stock award agreements with
each officer. Our named executive officers were issued shares of restricted stock in the following amounts:

Name

Number of Shares of
Restricted Stock

Subject to Time Vesting
Awards(1)

Number of Shares of
Restricted Stock Subject
to Performance Vesting

Awards(1)

Chad Richison 1,239,670 4,084,237
Craig E. Boelte 197,451 231,648
Jeffrey D. York 200,396 234,588
William X. Kerber III 197,451 231,648

(1) For additional information concerning the vesting conditions of the restricted stock, see “Executive
Compensation—Narrative Discussion Regarding Summary Compensation Table—Equity Incentive Units
and Restricted Stock Awards.”

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters

The following table sets forth certain information with respect to the beneficial ownership of our common
stock as of January 30, 2015, for:

• each person, or group of affiliated persons, known by us to be the beneficial owner of more than 5% of
our voting securities;

• each of our directors;

• each of our named executive officers; and

• all of our directors and executive officers as a group.

We have determined beneficial ownership in accordance with the rules of the SEC . Under such rules, a person
is generally deemed to beneficially own a security if such person has sole or shared voting or investment power with
respect to that security, including with respect to options and warrants that are currently exercisable or exercisable
within 60 days. Except as indicated by the footnotes below, we believe, based on the information furnished to us,
that the persons and entities named in the table below have sole voting and investment power with respect to all
shares of common stock that they beneficially own, subject to community property laws where applicable.

Applicable percentage ownership is based on 53,848,094 shares of common stock outstanding at
January 30, 2015. Unless otherwise indicated below, the number of shares of common stock outstanding
excludes 4,524,708 shares of unvested restricted stock that were subject to time-based or performance-based
vesting conditions as of January 30, 2015. In computing the number of shares of common stock beneficially
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owned by a person and the percentage ownership of that person, we consider shares of unvested restricted stock
held by that person to be outstanding only with respect to such person because he or she has the right to vote such
stock under the 2014 Plan.

Shares Beneficially Owned

Name of Beneficial Owner(1) Number %

5% Stockholders:
Welsh, Carson, Anderson & Stowe X, L.P.(2)(3) 21,926,454 40.7
WCAS Capital Partners IV, L.P.(2)(3) 232,998 *
WCAS Management Corporation(2)(3) 117,710 *
Ernest Group, Inc.(4) 7,170,999 13.3
Non-Employee Directors:
Jason D. Clark 400 *
Robert J. Levenson(3)(5) 313,559 *
Rob Minicucci — *
Conner Mulvee — *
Frederick C. Peters II 15,500 *
Sanjay Swani — *
Named Executive Officers:
Chad Richison(3)(6) 13,071,329 23.0
Craig E. Boelte(7) 551,769 1.0
Jeffrey D. York(3)(8) 1,370,391 2.5
William X. Kerber III(3)(9) 1,348,175 2.5
All directors and current executive officers as a group (10 persons) 16,671,123 28.9

* Less than one percent of common stock outstanding.
(1) Unless otherwise indicated, the address of each beneficial owner in the table above is c/o Paycom Software,

Inc., 7501 W. Memorial Road, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73142.
(2) The stockholders are WCAS X, WCAS Capital IV and WCAS Management Corporation. WCAS X

Associates LLC (“X Associates”), is the general partner of WCAS X. The managing members of X
Associates are Patrick Welsh, Bruce Anderson, Russ Carson, Tony de Nicola, Paul Queally, Jon Rather,
Sanjay Swani, Chris Solomon, Scott Mackesy, Sean Traynor, Eric Lee, Mike Donovan, Brian Regan, Tom
Scully and Tony Ecock. As a result, and by virtue of the relationships described above, each of the
managing members of X Associates may be deemed to share beneficial ownership of the shares owned by
WCAS X. The general partner of WCAS Capital IV is WCAS CP IV Associates LLC (“CP Associates”).
The managing members of CP Associates are Patrick Welsh, Bruce Anderson, Russ Carson, Tony de
Nicola, Paul Queally, Jon Rather, Sanjay Swani, Chris Solomon, Scott Mackesy, Sean Traynor, Eric Lee,
Mike Donovan, Brian Regan, Tom Scully and Tony Ecock. As a result, and by virtue of the relationships
described above, each of the managing members of CP Associates may be deemed to share beneficial
ownership of the shares owned by WCAS Capital IV. WCAS Management Corporation is the investment
manager for WCAS X. The members of the board of directors of WCAS Management Corporation are Jon
Rather, Paul Queally, Tony de Nicola and Russ Carson. As a result, and by virtue of the relationships
described above, each of the directors of WCAS Management Corporation may be deemed to share
beneficial ownership of the shares owned by WCAS Management Corporation. The address of each of the
entities identified in this footnote is 320 Park Avenue, Suite 2500, New York, New York 10022.

(3) The stockholder is a party to the Stockholders Agreement, which provides for certain voting obligations and
appoints X Associates as such person’s attorney-in-fact in order to vote the stockholder’s shares for certain
matters. For additional information concerning the Stockholders Agreement, see “Certain Relationships and
Related Transactions, and Director Independence—Stockholders Agreement”.

(4) Ernest Group, Inc. is a private corporation that is wholly owned by Mr. Richison and certain trusts for
Mr. Richison’s children, for which Mr. Richison serves as trustee. Mr. Richison may be deemed to
beneficially own the shares of common stock owned by Ernest Group, Inc.
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(5) Includes 62,186 shares of common stock owned by Lenox Capital Group, LLC, for which Mr. Levenson is
the managing member.

(6) Includes 7,170,999 shares of common stock owned by Ernest Group, Inc., 229,135 shares of common stock
owned by The Ruby Group, Inc. and 2,974,915 unvested shares of restricted stock. Mr. Richison is the sole
director of Ernest Group, Inc. and Ernest Group, Inc. is wholly owned by Mr. Richison and certain trusts for
Mr. Richison’s children, for which Mr. Richison serves as trustee. Mr. Richison may be deemed to
beneficially own the shares of common stock owned by Ernest Group, Inc. Mr. Richison is the sole director
and sole shareholder of The Ruby Group, Inc. and may be deemed to beneficially own the shares of
common stock owned by The Ruby Group, Inc.

(7) Includes 266,944 unvested shares of restricted stock.
(8) Includes 270,770 unvested shares of restricted stock.
(9) Includes 879,877 shares of common stock owned by WK-EGI, Inc. and 266,944 unvested shares of

restricted stock. Mr. Kerber is the sole director of WK-EGI, Inc. and WK-EGI, Inc. is wholly owned by
Mr. Kerber and certain trusts for which Mr. Kerber serves as trustee. Mr. Kerber may be deemed to
beneficially own the shares of common stock owned by WK-EGI, Inc.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

We have described transactions since January 1, 2014 to which we have been a participant, in which the
amount involved in the transaction exceeds or will exceed $120,000 and in which any of our directors, executive
officers or holders of more than 5% of our capital stock, or any immediate family member of, or person sharing
the household with, any of these individuals, had or will have a direct or indirect material interest below.

The 2014 Reorganization

In anticipation of our initial public offering, we consummated the 2014 Reorganization as described under
Part II, Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—
Recent Developments—The 2014 Reorganization,” which description is incorporated by reference herein.

2017 Note

In connection with the 2014 Reorganization, we assumed the 2017 Note that was issued by WCAS Holdings
payable to WCAS X. As of March 31, 2014, the outstanding principal amount of the 2017 Note was $46.2
million (which excluded accrued interest of $1.6 million). The 2017 Note was due on April 3, 2017 and interest
was payable at an annual rate of 14.0%, payable semiannually in arrears on June 30 and December 31 of each
year. We could, at our option, choose to defer all or a portion of the accrued interest on the note that was due and
payable on any payment date, provided that such amount of accrued interest was added to the principal amount of
the note on such interest payment date (with the accrued but unpaid interest bearing interest at an annual rate of
14.0%). In April 2014, we paid off the outstanding principal balance of $46.2 million and accrued interest of $1.6
million under the 2017 Note with proceeds from our initial public offering and existing cash.

Stockholders Agreement

Election of Directors

In connection with the 2014 Reorganization, we and the Stockholders Agreement Parties entered into the
Stockholders Agreement. Among other things, the Stockholders Agreement provides that for so long as the
parties thereto continue to collectively hold 40% of our issued and outstanding shares of common stock, each
party will vote and take all other necessary and desirable action within such party’s control to (i) cause the
authorized number of directors of our board of directors to be established at seven and (ii) elect to our board of
directors:

• three representatives designated by the holders of a majority of the shares of common stock held by
WCAS X and any of its affiliates to which shares of common stock are transferred pursuant to the
Stockholders Agreement;
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• one representative designated by the holders of a majority of the shares of common stock held by
WCAS Capital IV and any of its affiliates to which shares of common stock are transferred pursuant to
the Stockholders Agreement; and

• subject to certain conditions, one representative designated by the holders of a majority of the shares of
common stock held by the Minority Holders, who shall be Chad Richison for so long as he is employed
by us.

As such, Welsh, Carson, Anderson & Stowe and its affiliates have effectively designated four
representatives to our initial board of directors. Messrs. Levenson, Swani and Minicucci were designated by
WCAS X. Mr. Mulvee was designated by WCAS Capital IV.

Under the Stockholders Agreement, each of the Stockholders Agreement Parties has also appointed WCAS
X as such person’s true and lawful proxy and attorney-in-fact to vote at any annual or special meeting of
stockholders or to take any action by written consent in lieu of such meeting for the election or removal of
directors and other related matters expressly covered by the Stockholders Agreement.

Termination

The Stockholders Agreement will terminate upon the latest of the date on which: (i) Chad Richison ceases to
be our chief executive officer, (ii) the date on which Chad Richison ceases to be a director and (iii) the parties to
the Stockholders Agreement collectively own less than 40% of our issued and outstanding shares of common
stock.

Registration Rights Agreement

In connection with the 2014 Reorganization, we and Paycom Payroll, LLC (“Payroll”), the WCAS Funds,
WCAS Holdings, the Estate of Richard Aiello, Robert J. Levenson, Sue Ann Jordan, Chad Richison, Jeffrey D.
York and certain entities affiliated with these individuals became parties to a registration rights agreement (the
“Registration Rights Agreement”). The parties to the Registration Rights Agreement are entitled to certain rights
with respect to registration of shares of our common stock under the Securities Act. These shares are referred to
as registrable securities. The holders of these registrable securities will possess the registration rights contained
in the Registration Rights Agreement that are described in additional detail below.

Demand Registration Rights

Under the Registration Rights Agreement, upon the written request of the holders of a majority of the
registrable securities owned by WCAS Holdings and its affiliates to register all or part of their registrable
securities on a registration statement under the Securities Act, we will be obligated to register the sale of all
registrable securities that holders may request in writing to be registered within 20 days of the mailing of a notice
by us to all holders of such registration. We are required to effect no more than four registration statements on
Form S-1, subject to certain exceptions, and an unlimited number of registration statements on Form S-3. We
may postpone the filing of a registration statement for up to 120 days once in a 12-month period if in the good
faith judgment of our board of directors such registration would be materially harmful to our economic prospects,
and we are not required to effect the filing of a registration statement within six months following the effective
date of a previous registration of the registrable securities.

Piggyback Registration Rights

If we register any of our securities for public sale, we will have to register all registrable securities that the
holders of such securities request in writing be registered within 20 days of mailing of notice by us to all holders of
the proposed registration, subject to certain exceptions. However, this right does not apply to a registration
statement on Form S-8 or S-4 or a demand registration. The managing underwriter of any underwritten offering will
have the right to limit, due to marketing reasons, the number of shares registered by these holders.
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Form S-3 Registration Rights

To the extent we are eligible to use a registration statement on Form S-3, the holders of a majority of the
registrable securities owned by WCAS Holdings and its affiliates can request that we register all or a portion of
their shares on a registration statement on Form S-3. We are required to use our best efforts to file one or more
registration statements on Form S-3 upon the exercise of these rights, subject to certain exceptions.

Registration Expenses

We are required to pay all expenses incurred in connection with each of the registrations described above,
including expenses incurred in connection with this registration, except for underwriting discounts and
commissions. We are also required to pay the expenses incurred by the parties to the Registration Rights
Agreement, including WCAS Holdings and its affiliates and the Estate of Richard Aiello, in connection with the
registration of shares of common stock in a follow-on offering that closed in January 2015. We also agreed to
pay expenses incurred in connection with the follow-on offering on behalf of Hank Binkowski and Shannon
Rowe, who is the sister of Chad Richison, our president and chief executive officer. The total amount of these
expenses was less than $100 thousand.

Expiration of Registration Rights

The registration rights described above will terminate as to any stockholder as such time as the stockholder
no longer holds shares of common stock.

2022 Note

In connection with the April 2012 Corporate Reorganization we entered into the 2022 Note with WCAS
Capital IV. The 2022 Note was due on April 3, 2022 and interest accrued at a rate of 10% per annum and was
payable semiannually in arrears on December 31 and June 30 of each year. We could, at our option, choose to
defer all or a portion of the accrued interest on the 2022 Note that was due and payable on any payment date,
provided that such amount of accrued interest was multiplied by 1.3 and added to the principal amount of the
note on such interest payment date (with the result that such interest will have accrued at an effective rate of
13.0% instead of 10.0% through such payment date). In April 2014, we paid off the outstanding principal balance
of the 2022 Note of $18.8 million and the associated amortized discount of $4.1 million with proceeds from our
initial public offering and from existing cash.

Payables

At December 31, 2013, Holdings owed $0.1 million, to Welsh, Carson, Anderson and Stowe, representing
tax distributions and travel expenses paid by Welsh, Carson, Anderson and Stowe and charged to Holdings. In
April 2014, we paid off the balance of this payable.

Lease of Office Space

For the year ended December 31, 2014 we paid rent on our Dallas office space in the amount of $0.3
million. The Dallas office building is owned by 417 Oakbend, LP, a Texas limited partnership. Jeffrey D. York,
our chief sales officer, owns a .01% general partnership interest and a 10.49% limited partnership interest in 417
Oakbend, LP.

Indemnification of Directors and Officers

We have entered and intend to continue to enter into indemnification agreements with our directors which,
subject to certain exceptions, require us to indemnify such persons to the fullest extent permitted by applicable
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law, including indemnification against certain expenses, including attorneys’ fees, judgments, fines or penalties
or other amounts paid in settlement in connection with any legal proceedings to which the director was, or is
threatened to be made, a party by reason of the fact that such director is or was a director, officer, employee,
fiduciary or agent of the Company or was serving as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation,
partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise at the express written request of the Company, provided that
such director or officer acted in good faith and in a manner that the director or officer reasonably believed to be
in, or not opposed to, the best interest of the Company and, with respect to any criminal proceeding, in a manner
in which such person would have had no reasonable cause to believe his conduct was unlawful. Subject to certain
limitations, these indemnification agreements also require us to advance expenses to our directors in advance of
the final disposition of any action or proceeding for which indemnification is required or permitted.

Directed Share Program

Chad Richison, our president, chief executive officer and director, Craig E. Boelte, our chief financial
officer, William X. Kerber III, our chief information officer and Frederick C. Peters II, our director, on behalf of
themselves and certain of their affiliates, purchased 52,600, 5,000, 5,000 and 5,000 shares of our common stock
in our initial public offering in April 2014 for an aggregate purchase price of approximately $789,000, $75,000,
$75,000 and $75,000, respectively, pursuant to the directed share program that was conducted in connection with
our initial public offering.

Review, Approval or Ratification of Transactions with Related Parties

We have adopted a formal written policy that our executive officers, directors, holders of more than 5% of
any class of our voting securities, and any member of the immediate family of and any entity affiliated with any
of the foregoing persons, are not permitted to enter into a related party transaction with us, in which the amount
involved exceeds $120,000, without the prior review and approval of our audit committee. In approving or
rejecting any such proposal, our audit committee will consider all of the relevant facts and circumstances of the
related party transaction and the related party’s relationship and interest in the transaction. All of the transactions
described above were entered into prior to the adoption of this policy, except for the entry into the Stockholders
Agreement, Registration Rights Agreement, the repayment of the 2022 Note and the 2017 Note and the
participation of our executive officers in the directed share program. All of the transactions described above were
either approved or ratified in accordance with the terms of this policy.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The audit committee of our board of directors selected Grant Thornton LLP (“Grant Thornton”) to serve as
our independent registered public accounting firm to audit our consolidated financial statements for the fiscal
year ending December 31, 2015.

The following table sets forth the aggregate fees billed by Grant Thornton for the fiscal years ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013 (dollars in thousands):

December 31,

2014 2013

Audit fees (1) $815 $497
Audit-related fees (2) 31 15
Tax fees (3) 23 10
All other fees (4) 0 17

Total fees $869 $539

(1) Audit fees consist of fees billed for professional services rendered for the audit of our consolidated annual
financial statements, the review of the interim consolidated financial statements included in quarterly reports
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and services that are normally provided by the independent auditor in connection with statutory and
regulatory filings or engagements, consultations concerning financial reporting in connection with
acquisitions and issuances of auditor consents and comfort letters in connection with registration statements
filed with the SEC and related securities offerings. Fiscal 2014 audit fees include fees related to our initial
public offering including audit of our fiscal 2011, fiscal 2012 and fiscal 2013 financial statements, and
related filings.

(2) Audit-related fees consist of fees billed for assurance and related services that are reasonably related to the
performance of the audit or review of our consolidated financial statements and are not reported under
“Audit Fees.”

(3) Tax fees consist of fees billed for professional services rendered for tax compliance, tax advice and tax
planning. These services include assistance regarding federal and state tax compliance.

(4) All other fees consist of fees for products and services other than the services reported above.

Policy on Audit Committee Pre-approval of Audit and Non-audit Services Performed by Independent
Registered Public Accounting Firm

The audit committee has determined that all services performed by Grant Thornton are compatible with
maintaining the independence of Grant Thornton. The audit committee’s policy is to pre-approve all audit and
permissible non-audit services provided by our independent registered public accounting firm. These services
may include audit services, audit-related services, tax services and other services. Unless the specific service has
been pre-approved with respect to that year, the audit committee must approve the permitted service before the
independent registered public accounting firm is engaged to perform it. The independent registered public
accounting firm and management are required to periodically report to the audit committee regarding the extent
of services provided by the independent registered public accounting firm in accordance with this pre-approval
process.

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(a) Documents Filed as part of this Form 10-K

(1) Consolidated Financial Statements: The following consolidated financial statements of Paycom
Software, Inc., together with the report thereon, of Grant Thornton LLP, our Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm, are included in Part II, Item 8 of this Form 10-K:

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2014 and 2013

Consolidated Statements of Income (Loss), Years Ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity, Years Ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, Years Ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(2) Financial Statement Schedules: Financial statement schedules have been omitted as information
required is inapplicable or the information is presented in the consolidated financial statements and the
related notes.

(3) Exhibits:

The following exhibits are included herein or incorporated herein by reference:

Exhibit No. Description

2.1 Merger Agreement, by and among Paycom Software, Inc., Paycom Payroll Holdings, LLC,
Paycom Payroll, LLC and Paycom Merger Sub, LLC, dated December 30, 2013
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.4 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form
S-1 dated March 10, 2014, filed with the SEC on March 10, 2014).
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Exhibit No. Description

2.2 Contribution Agreement, by and between WCAS Capital Partners, IV, L.P. and Paycom
Software, Inc., dated December 30, 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.5 to the
Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 dated March 10, 2014, filed with the SEC on
March 10, 2014).

2.3 Contribution Agreement, by and among Welsh, Carson, Anderson & Stowe X, L.P., WCAS
Management Corporation and Paycom Software, Inc., dated December 30, 2013
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.6 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form
S-1 dated March 10, 2014, filed with the SEC on March 10, 2014).

2.4 Contribution Agreement, by and among Paycom Software, Inc. and each of the signatories
thereto, dated December 30, 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.7 to the Company’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1 dated March 10, 2014, filed with the SEC on March 10,
2014).

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Paycom Software, Inc. (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Amendment No. 1 to the Registration Statement
on Form S-1/A dated March 31, 2014, filed with the SEC on March 31, 2014).

3.2 Bylaws of Paycom Software, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Company’s
Amendment No. 1 to the Registration Statement on Form S-1/A dated March 31, 2014, filed
with the SEC on March 31, 2014).

4.1 Form of Common Stock Certificate (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the
Company’s Amendment No. 1 to the Registration Statement on Form S-1/A dated March 31,
2014, filed with the SEC on March 31, 2014).

4.2 Amended and Restated Stockholders’ Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to
the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 dated March 10, 2014, filed with the
SEC on March 10, 2014).

4.3 Registration Rights Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Company’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1 dated March 10, 2014, filed with the SEC on March 10,
2014).

10.1 Form of Indemnification Agreement between Paycom Software, Inc. and each of its directors
and executive officers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1 dated March 10, 2014, filed with the SEC on March 10,
2014).

10.2 Paycom Software, Inc. 2014 Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 dated March 10, 2014, filed with
the SEC on March 10, 2014).

10.3 Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement (Post-IPO) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.3 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 dated March 10, 2014, filed with
the SEC on March 10, 2014).

10.4 Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement for Non-Executives (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Amendment No. 1 to the Registration Statement on Form
S-1/A dated March 31, 2014, filed with the SEC on March 31, 2014).

10.5 Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement for Executives with Employment Agreements
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Amendment No. 1 to the
Registration Statement on Form S-1/A dated March 31, 2014, filed with the SEC on
March 31, 2014).
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Exhibit No. Description

10.6 Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement for Chief Executive Officer (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Company’s Amendment No. 1 to the Registration Statement
on Form S-1/A dated March 31, 2014, filed with the SEC on March 31, 2014).

10.7 Executive Employment Agreement by and between Paycom Payroll Holdings, LLC and Chad
Richison, dated December 30, 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the
Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 dated March 10, 2014, filed with the SEC on
March 10, 2014).

10.8 Executive Employment Agreement by and between Paycom Payroll Holdings, LLC and
Craig E. Boelte, dated December 30, 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the
Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 dated March 10, 2014, filed with the SEC on
March 10, 2014).

10.9 Executive Employment Agreement by and between Paycom Payroll Holdings, LLC and
Jeffrey D. York, dated December 30, 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the
Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 dated March 10, 2014, filed with the SEC on
March 10, 2014).

10.10 Executive Employment Agreement by and between Paycom Payroll Holdings, LLC and
William X. Kerber III, dated December 30, 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7
to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 dated March 10, 2014, filed with the
SEC on March 10, 2014).

10.11 Consolidated, Amended and Restated Loan Agreement, by and between Kirkpatrick Bank
and Paycom Payroll, LLC, dated December 15, 2011 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.8 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 dated March 10, 2014, filed with
the SEC on March 10, 2014).

10.12 First Loan Modification Agreement, by and between Kirkpatrick Bank and Paycom Payroll,
LLC, dated December 31, 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2014, filed with the SEC on
August 8, 2014).

10.13 Second Loan Modification Agreement, by and between Kirkpatrick Bank and Paycom
Payroll, LLC, dated June 17, 2014 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2014, filed with
the SEC on August 8, 2014).

10.14 4.75% Consolidated, Amended, Restated and Increased Promissory Note, by and between
Kirkpatrick Bank and Paycom Payroll, LLC, dated June 17, 2014 (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
June 30, 2014, filed with the SEC on August 8, 2014).

10.15 Real Property Purchase Agreement by and between Paycom Payroll, LLC and Kilpatrick
Partners, L.L.C., dated November 28, 2012 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to the
Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 dated March 10, 2014, filed with the SEC on
March 10, 2014).

10.16 Real Property Purchase Agreement by and between Paycom Payroll, LLC Kilpatrick
Partners, L.L.C., dated October 16, 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to the
Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 dated March 10, 2014, filed with the SEC on
March 10, 2014).

10.17 Right of First Refusal Agreement, by and between Kilpatrick Partners, L.L.C. and Paycom
Payroll, LLC, dated October 4, 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to the
Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 dated March 10, 2014, filed with the SEC on
March 10, 2014).
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Exhibit No. Description

10.18 Disgorgement Agreement, by and between Paycom Software, Inc. and Robert J. Levenson,
dated January 12, 2015 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to the Company’s
Amendment No. 1 to the Registration Statement on Form S-1 dated January 12, 2015, filed
with the SEC on January 12, 2015).

21.1* List of subsidiaries of the Company

31.1* Certification of the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, pursuant to the Section 302 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

31.2* Certification of the Chief Financial Officer of the Company, pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.1** Certification of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the Company,
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

101.INS* XBRL Instance Document.

101.SCH* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101.CAL* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

101.DEF* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

101.LAB* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

101.PRE* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

* Filed herewith.
** The certifications attached as Exhibit 32.1 are not deemed “filed” with the SEC and are not to be incorporated
by reference into any filing of Paycom Software, Inc. under the Securities Act or the Exchange Act, whether
made before or after the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, irrespective of any general incorporation
language contained in such filing.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Date: February 26, 2015

PAYCOM SOFTWARE, INC.

By: /s/ Chad Richison

Chad Richison
Chief Executive Officer and Director

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by
the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated.

Date: February 26, 2015

/s/ Chad Richison

Chad Richison
Chief Executive Officer and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Craig E. Boelte

Craig E. Boelte
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Accounting and Financial Officer)

/s/ Jason D. Clark

Jason D. Clark
Director

/s/ Robert J. Levenson

Robert J. Levenson
Director

/s/ Rob Minicucci

Rob Minicucci
Chairman of the Board

/s/ Conner Mulvee

Conner Mulvee
Director

/s/ Frederick C. Peters II

Frederick C. Peters II
Director

/s/ Sanjay Swani

Sanjay Swani
Director
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Exhibit 21.1

SUBSIDIARIES OF PAYCOM SOFTWARE, INC.

Name of Subsidiary Jurisdiction of Incorporation

WCAS Paycom Holdings, Inc. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Delaware

WCAS CP IV Blocker, Inc. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Delaware

Paycom Benefits, LLC . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Delaware

Paycom Payroll Holdings, LLC . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Delaware

Paycom Payroll, LLC . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Delaware



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

I, Chad Richison, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Paycom Software, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state
a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control
over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and
have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to
be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end
of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the
case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the
registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 26, 2015 By: /s/ Chad Richison

Chad Richison
Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

I, Craig E. Boelte, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Paycom Software, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state
a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control
over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and
have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to
be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end
of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the
case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the
registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 26, 2015 By: /s/ Craig E. Boelte

Craig E. Boelte
Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014 (the “Report”) of
Paycom Software, Inc. (the “Company”), the undersigned hereby certify in their capacities as Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, respectively, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to their knowledge:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

(2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company as of, and for, the periods presented in the
Report.

Date: February 26, 2015 By: /s/ Chad Richison

Chad Richison
Chief Executive Officer

Date: February 26, 2015 By: /s/ Craig E. Boelte

Craig E. Boelte
Chief Financial Officer

The foregoing certifications are not deemed “filed” with the Securities and Exchange Commission for
purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and are not to be incorporated by
reference into any filing of the Company under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, whether made before or after the date hereof, regardless of any general
incorporation language contained in such filing.



  2014
ACCOLADES
Inc. Build 100 – Based on rigorous economic analysis, Inc. magazine’s Build 100 identified
Paycom as one of the elite firms whose track records of sustained growth have statistically pre-
dicted future success.

Selling Power’s 50 Best Companies to Sell For – Chosen based on its compensation and ben-
efits, training opportunities, company reputation and ability to grow and retain clients, Paycom 
was ranked as one of Selling Power magazine’s 50 Best Companies to Sell For in 2014.

Inc. 500|5000 – Paycom’s ninth and final year on the list of the nation’s fastest-growing private 
companies was an honor shared with only 23 companies who have earned a spot on the presti-
gious list for nine years or more.

Leadership 500 Excellence Awards – HR.com’s Leadership Excellence awards identified and 
recognized the top 500 leadership organizations and their strategies and solutions. In its first 
appearance, Paycom ranked among the top of the mid-sized business category.

Glassdoor’s Best Places to Work – A two-time honoree, Paycom was ranked among the 
nation’s best places to work in 2014. This award is a testament to Paycom’s dedication to its 
employees who helped earn this recognition by submitting anonymous and voluntary reviews of 
Paycom throughout the year.  

The Oklahoman’s Top Workplaces – Paycom was ranked as one of the Sooner State’s best places
to work. This marks the second consecutive year Paycom was ranked among Oklahoma’s best.

The Oklahoman’s Most Ethical Company – Strong ethics and values are cornerstones of any 
great business because garnering the trust and respect of co-workers and clients is not automat-
ic; it must be earned. Paycom received recognition as The Oklahoman’s Most Ethical Company in 
the state. 

Glassdoor’s Top Rated CEO – Paycom’s CEO and founder Chad Richison was named one of Glass-
door’s highest-rated CEOs. Richison received a 94 percent approval rating, which is one of the highest 
rankings for businesses in the small- and medium-size category in Glassdoor’s online survey.

Metro 50 – Paycom earned its 12th consecutive appearance on the list, making it the
longest-tenured company to earn the recognition for being one of Oklahoma City’s
fastest-growing, privately owned businesses.

Annual Meeting
The annual meeting of stockholders will be held 
Tuesday, May 5, 2015 at Gaillardia, Salon C.

5300 Gaillardia Blvd
Oklahoma City, OK 73142

Investor Relations 
For more information about Paycom’s Investor 
Relations, please email Investors@Paycom.com or
call (855) 603-1620. 

Paycom Software, Inc., financial
information can be accessed at
Investors.Paycom.com.



7501 W. Memorial Road
Oklahoma City, OK 73142

800-580-4505 • 405-722-6900

paycom.com
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